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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
{In millions, except per share data)

Revenues

Netincome®

Net income per diluted share
Dividends per share**

*

Weighted average
diluted shares outstanding
Common shares
outstanding at year-end

* Includes cne-time alter-1ax gain on sale of the timbestands tor $1,265 ot $11.69 per diluted share in 2007

** Includes a $10.25 special dividend in 2007

§ 3,926 $ 4,185
$ 1,305 § 468
$12.08 $ 4.22
$11.37 $ 1.00
108.1 110.8
106.1 104.9
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Doyle Simons

Chairman of the Board and CEQO

Welcome to the new Temple-Inland. | am Doyle Simons, your Chairman of the Board and CEQ.

, our management team and our 12,000 employees are excited about the future of our company and
the opportunity to continue to create value for you, our shareholders. But before | discuss the new
Temple-Inland, let me summarize our significant accomplishments in 2007.

Under the leadership of Kenny Jastrow, who retired from our company on December 28,2007, your
Board of Directors announced a Transformation Plan to maximize shareholder value by separating
Temple-inland into three focused, stand-alone public companies and selling our timberlands and
returning a majority of the proceeds to shareholders. In fourth quarter 2007, we sold our strategic
timbertands for $2.4 billion and paid a $10.25 special dividend to shareholders. On December 28,
2007, we spun off our financial services operation, Guaranty Financial Group, and our real estate
operation, Forestar Real Estate Group. Each of the three companies, Temple-Intand, Guaranty
Financial Group and Forestar Real Estate Group is well positioned in the marketplace with an
appropriate capital structure and greater strategic focus. On behalf of your Board and our employees,
we want to thank Kenny for his vision, strategy and leadership over his 29 years of outstanding
service, which helped drive our success.,

Now to the future. We are committed to making the new Temple-Inland the best and continuing
to create value for shareholders, customers and employees. Let me tell you about our company
and why we are excited about the future.
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The New Temple-Inland

Low-Cost, Highly Efficient Manufacturing Company The“new” Temple-Inland is a low-cost,
highly efficient manufacturing company focused on corrugated packaging and building products.
Today we are the third-largest manufacturer of corrugated packaging in North America, producing

34 million tons of boxes annually. The corrugated packaging industry has fundamentally changed and
we believe it is the best-positioned paper grade. Significant capacity has been taken out of the market
resulting in high operating rates, inventories are at historic lows, and pricing for both containerboard
and boxes is improving.

In building products, we are a low-cost producer of a tailored portfolio of building products for new
home, repair and remodel, and commercial markets. While building products markets are currently
challenged, this business has historically been an excellent performer and we believe the long-term
industry fundamentals for this business are compelling.

Committed to Two Key Objectives: (1} Maximizing ROI and (2) Profitably Growing
Our Business Our two key objectives at Temple-Inland are maximizing return on investment (ROI)
and profitably growing our business. We will focus on maximizing RO because we fundamentally
believe there is a direct correlation between ROl and shareholder value. We define RO! very simply:
sarnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by investment {(assets minus current liabilities).
We will also look for opportunities to profitably grow our business because we have demonstrated
our ability to drive ROl and believe we can create additional value for shareholders through
disciplined growth focused on ROL




At Temple-lniand, we are
committed to Maximizing
RO! and profitably
Growing our business.
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Driving ROI through Execution
of Strategic Initiatives

Corrugated Packaging By lowering operating costs and maximizing asset utilization, we have

become a leader in the corrugated packaging industry. We will continue to drive value in this
business through four key strategic initiatives:

= Maintaining full integration, eliminating the need for market-related downtime

» Driving for low cost through a focus on asset utilization and manufacturing excellence
= Improving mix and margins through sales excellence

» Growing the business organically at existing facilities and through acquisition

As a result of our execution of these four key strategic initiatives, our corrugated packaging
operation achieved the second-highest ROI in the industry in 2007 and generated the highest
relative improvement in return on assets over the past four years. While we have made significant
progress, there is more to come through manufacturing and sales excellence.

From 2003-20086, we drove $225 million of business improvement to the bottom line. With
what we have in our plans, both on the sales and manufacturing sides of our business, we will
drive at least an additional $100 million to the bottom line by year-end 2009. We realized $37
million in business improvement in 2007.




CORRUGATED
PACKAGING ROI
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Building Products |n our building products business, we benefit from low-cost, efficient
converting operations that are located near large, attractive, high-growth markets. We are
focused on four key strategic initiatives:

+ Delivering a tailored portfolio of building products designed for new home, repair and
remodel, and commercial markets

» Driving low cost through manufacturing excellence and leading-edge technology

« Serving targeted markets with favorable demographics

* Providing sales excellence through unequaled customer service

Even though current markets are challenging, the long-term fundamentals for housing are
compelling, driven by favorable demographic trends. We have generated strong ROl from
this business and believe that industry fundamentals, coupled with our low-cost system,
focus on customers and proximity to large and growing markets, positions us to generate
strong ROI going forward.,




0%

of our building
products facilities
are In the lowest
cost quartile,

Our facilities are focated
near large and growing
markets including Houston,
Austin, Dallas, San Antonio,
Atlanta and the Carolinas.
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Foundation for
the Future
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We used $700 million in proceeds from the sale of our timberlands to pay down debt. As a
result, we have a capital structure that allows us to pursue our cbjectives of maximizing RO!
and profitably growing our business.

In terms of our financial priorities, our board declared a quarterly dividend of 10 cents per
share in February 2008, In addition, we will continue to look to invest in our business
through capital expenditures on a disciplined ROl basis. Our financial priorities also include
profitable growth and returning cash to shareholders through share repurchases and
dividend increases.




is our long-term
debt to enterprise
value ratio.

+ Investment in our business
- RO discipling

* Profitable growth
- Organic
- Acquisition
+ Return cash toshareholders

- Dividends
- Share repurchases
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Staying True to

QOur Core Values

While much has changed at Temple-Inland, some things are not changing. Our vision, mission and
values have served us well and will continue to provide us with a roadmap of where we are going,
how we are going to get there and, mast important, our guiding principles along the way. And
while we will be passionate about winning, we will win the right way. We will not cut corners, morally,
ethically or legally. Integrity matters —to everyone at Temple-Inland.

Committed to Being the Best At Temple-Inland, we have outstanding employees and dedicated
leadership committed to being the best. Our ability to win and consistently outperform our competitors
depends entirely on the skills, experiences, expertise and commitment of every one of our employees.
It is their dedication {0 hard work and being the best that makes Temple-Intand successful.

Pat Maley was named President and Chief Operating Officer as part of the Transformation Plan.
Pat has been instrumental in making us a leader in the corrugated packaging industry. | look forward
to working closely with Pat to continue to drive value for shareholders, employees and customers.

Finally, to you our shareholders, thank you for your support. We are committed to maximizing
shareholder value and are focused on the future.

Hogce R domiv—

Doyle R.Simons
Chairman of the Board and CEC
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PART 1

Item 1. Business

Introduction

Temple-Inland Inc. is a Delaware corporation that was organized in 1983. We manufacture corrugated
packaging and building products, which we report as separate operating segments. The following charnt
presents our corporate structure at year-end 2007. It does not contain all our subsidiaries, many of which are
dormant or immaterial entities. A list of our subsidiaries is filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. All subsidiaries shown are 100 percent owned by their immediate parent company listed in the
chart, unless indicated otherwise,

0

Temple-Inland Inc.
(Delaware)

. vy

A
TIN Inc.*

(Delaware)
)

A P H ™ 1
Temple-Inland Del-Tin Fiber LLC Premier Boxbourd TIN Land Financing TIN Timber |

Resource Company (Delaware) LL.C LLC* Financing LLLC* ‘

(Nevada) ) (509%) L (Dg?)\;a)ﬁ) J (Delaware) (Delaware)

Temple-Inland
Funding
Corporation
{Nevada)

* Significant subsidiaries

Our principal executive offices are located at 1300 MoPac Expressway South, 3™ Floor, Austin, Texas
78746. Our telephone number is (512) 434-5800.

Financial Information |

Financial information about our principal operating segments and revenues by geographic arcas are shown
in our notes to financial statements contained in ftem 8, and tevenues and unit sales by product line are
contained in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Transformation Plan

On February 25, 2007, our board of directors unanimousiy authorized a transformation plan that included
the spin-off of our real estate business and our financial services business. The spin-offs were completed on
December 28, 2007 through distributions to our stockholders of all of the shares of common stock of Forestar
Real Estate Group Inc., which holds all of the assets and liabilities formerly associated with our real estate
business, and Guaranty Financial Group Inc.. which holds all of the assets and liabitities formerly associated
with our financial services business. Our consolidated financial statements contained in this Annual Report on
Form [0-K have been reclassified for all periods presented to report Forestar and Guaranty as discontinued
operalions.

As part of the transformation plan, we also sold our strategic timberland on October 31, 2007 for
approximately $2.38 billion, The total consideration consisted almost entirely of notes due in 2027, which are

o



secured by irrevocable standby letters of credit. In December 2007, we pledged the notes as collateral for
nonrecourse loans. The net cash proceeds from the nonrecourse loans, after current taxes and transaction costs,
were approximately $1.8 billion, We used these proceeds to pay a special dividend to our shareholders of
$10.25 per share and reduce debt by approximately $700 million.

Narrative Description of the Business

Caorrugated Packaging. Our corrugated packaging segment provided 77.5 percent of our 2007 consoli-
dated net revenues. Our vertically integrated corrugated packaging operation includes:

+ five linerboard mills,
* one corrugating medium mill, and
¢ 64 converting facilities.

We manufacture containerboard and convert it into a complete line of corrugated packaging. We sold
eight percent of the containerboard we produced in 2007 in the domestic and export markets. We converted
the remaining internal production, in combination with containerboard we purchased from other producers,
into corrugated containers at our converting facilities. While we have the capacity to convert more container-
board than we produce, we routinely buy and sell various grades of containerboard depending on our product
mix.

Our nationwide network of converting facilitics produces a wide range of products from commodity
brown boxes to intricate die cut containers that can be printed with multi-color graphics. Even though the
corrugated packaging business is characterized by commodity pricing, each order for each customer is a
custom order. Our corrugated packaging is sold to a variety of customers in the food, paper, glass containers,
chemical, appliance, and plastics industries, among others. We also manufacture bulk containers constructed of
multi-wall corrugated board for extra strength, which are used for bulk shipments of various materials.

We serve over 9,500 corrugated packaging customers with 17.000 shipping destinations. We have no
single customer to which sales equal ten percent or more of consolidated revenues or the loss of which would
have a material adverse effect on our corrugated packaging segment.

Sales of corrugated packaging track changing population patterns and other demographics. Historically.
there has been a correlation between the demand for corrugated packaging and orders for nondurable goods.

We also own a 50 percent interest in Premier Boxboard Limited LLC, a joint venture that produces light-
weight gypsum facing paper and corrugating medium at a mill in Newport, Indiana.

Building Products.  QOur building products segment provided 20.5 percent of our 2007 consolidated net
revenues. We manufacture a wide range of building products, including:

* lumber,

« gypsum waliboard,

= particleboard,

» medium density fiberboard (or MDF), and
+ fiberboard.

We sell building products throughout the continental United States, with the majority of sales occurring in
the southern United States. We have no single customer to which sales equal ten percent or more of
consolidated revenues or the loss of which would have a material adverse effect on our building products
segment. Most of our products are sold by account managers and representatives to distributors, retailers, and
original equipment manufacturers. Sales of building products are heavily dependent upon the level of
residential housing expenditures, including the repair and remodeling market.
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We also own a 50 percent interest in Del-Tin Fiber LLC, a joint venture that produces MDF at a facility
in El Dorado, Arkansas.

Raw Materials

Wood fiber, in various forms, is the principal raw material we use in manufacturing our products. In
October 2007, in conjunction with our transformation plan, we sold our 1.5 million acres of strategic
timberland and entered into long-term fiber supply agreements with the purchaser. During 2007, owned
timberland supplied approximately 41 percent of our virgin wood fiber requirements. The balance of our virgin
wood fiber requirements was purchased from numerous landowners and other timber owners. as well as other
producers of wood by-products. In 2008, we currently expect that we will purchase at market prices
approximately 50 percent of our wood fiber requirements under our long-term fiber supply agreements, the
most significant of which were entered into in connection with our timberland sale. The remainder of our
virgin wood fiber requirements will be purchased at market prices from numerous landowners and other timber
owners, as well as other producers of wood by-products.

Linerboard and corrugating medium are the principal matcrials used to make corrugated boxes. Our mills
at Rome, Georgia and Bogalusa, Louisiana, only manufacture linerboard. Qur Ontario, California; Maysville,
Kentucky; and Orange, Texas, mills are traditionally linerboard mills, but can also manufacture corrugating
medium. Our New Johnsonville, Tennessee, mill only manufactures corrugating medium. The principal raw
material used by the Rome, Georgia; Orange, Texas; and Bogalusa, Louisiana, mills is virgin wood fiber. but
each mill is also able to use recycled fiber for up to 15 percent of its wood fiber requirements. The Ontario,
California, and Maysville, Kentucky, mills use only recycled fiber. The mill at New Johnsonville, Tennessee,
uses a combination of virgin wood and recycled fiber.

In 2007, recycled fiber represented approximately 36 percent of the total wood fiber needs of our
containerboard operations. We purchase recycled fiber at market prices on the open market from numerous
suppliers. We generally produce more linerboard and less corrugating medium than is used by our converting
facilities. The deficit of corrugating medium is filled through open market purchases and/or trades, and we sell
any excess linerboard in the open market.

We obtain gypsum for our wallboard operations in Fletcher, Oklahoma, from one outside source through
a long-term purchase contract at market prices. At our gypsum wallboard plants in West Memphis, Arkansas,
and Cumberland City, Tennessee, synthetic gypsum is used as a raw material, Synthetic gypsum is a by-
product of coal-burning electrical power plants. We have a long-term supply agreement for synthetic gypsum
produced at a Tennessce Valley Authority electrical plant located adjacent to our Cumberland City plant.
Synthetic gypsum acquired pursuant to this agreement supplies all the synthetic gypsum required by our
Cumberland City and West Memphis plants. In 2007, our gypsum wallboard plant in McQueeney, Texas,
primarily used gypsum obtained from its own quarry and gypsum acquired from the same source that supplies
the Fletcher, Oklahoma, plant. In 2008, we expect the McQueecney plant will use synthetic gypsum and
gypsum from our quarry.

We believe the sources outlined above will be sufficient to supply our raw material needs for the
foreseeable future. We hedge very little of our raw material costs. The wood fiber market is difficult to predict
and there can be no assurance of the future direction of prices for virgin wood or recycled fiber. Future
increases in wood fiber prices could adversely affect our results of operations.

Energy

Electricity and steam requirements at our manufacturing facilities are either supplied by a local utility or
generated internally through the use of a variety of fuels, including natural gas, fuel oil, coal, petroleum coke,
tire derived fuel, wood bark, and other waste products resulting from the manufacturing process. By utilizing
these waste products and other wood by-products as a biomass fuel to generate electricity and steam, we were
able to generate approximately 84 percent of our energy requirements in 2007 at our mills in Rome, Georgia;
Bogalusa, Louisiana; and Orange, Texas. In some cases where natural gas or fuel oil is used, our facilities
possess a dual capacity enabling the use of either fuel as a source of energy.

3



The natural gas needed to run our natural gas fueled power boilers, package boilers, and turbines is
acquired pursuant to a multiple vendor solicitation process that provides for the purchase of gas, primarily on
a firm basis with a few operations on an interruptible basis, at rates favorable to spot market rates. It is likely
that prices of natural gas will continue to fluctate in the future. We hedge very little of our energy costs.

Employees

We have approximately 12,000 employees, of which approximately 5,000 are covered by collective
bargaining agreements. These agreements generally run for a term of three 10 six years and have varying
expiration dates. The following table summarizes certain information about our principal collective bargaining

agreements:

Location

Linerboard Mill, Orange,
Texas

Linerboard Mill,
Bogalusa, Louisiana

Linerboard Mill, Rome,
Georgia

Evansville, Indiana and
Middletown, QOhio,
Box Plants {or
Northern Multiple)

Rome, Georgia and
Orlando, Florida, Box
Plants {or Southern
Multiple)

Bargaining Unit(s)

United Steel, Paper and
Forestry. Rubber,
Manufacturing. Energy,
Allied Industrial and
Service Workers
International Union {or
USW), Local 1398, and
USW, Local 391

USW, Local 189, and
Internattonal
Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers (or
IBEW), Local 1077

USW, Local 804, IBEW,
Local 613, United
Association of
Journeymen &
Apprentices of the
Plumbing & Pipefitting
Industry Local 72, and
International Association
of Machinists &
Aerospace Workers,
Local 414

USW, Local 1046 and
USW, Local 114,
respectively

USW Local 838 and
USW Local 834,
respectively

Approximate Number of
Employees Covered

202 hourly production
employees and 79 hourly
maintenance employees

338 hourly production
employees and 26
electrical maintenance
employees

247 hourly production
employees, 28 electrical
maintenance employees,
25 pipefitter
maintenance employees,
and 63 mechanical
maintenance employees

94 and 100 hourly
production and
maintenance employees,
respectively

112 and 101 hourly
production and
maintenance employees,
respectively

Expiration Dates

July 31, 2008

July 31, 2009

August 31, 2010

April 30, 2008

December 1, 2008

We have additional collective bargaining agreements with employees at various other manufacturing
facilities. These agreements each cover a relatively small number of employees and are negotiated on an
individual basis at each such facility.

We consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Environmental Protection

We are committed to protecting the health and welfare of our employees, the public, and the environment
and strive to maintain compliance with all state and federal environmental regulations in a manner that is also




cost effective. When we construct new facilities or modernize existing facilities, we generally use state of the
art technology for air and water emissions. This forward-looking approach is intended 10 minimize the effect
that changing reguiations have on capital expenditures for environmental compliance.

Our operations are subject to federal, state, and local provisions regulating discharges into the
environment and otherwise related to the protection of the environment. Compliunce with these provisions,
primarily the Federal Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act of 1980 (or CERCLA). as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act
of 1986 (or SARA), and Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (or RCRA), requires us to invest substantial
funds to modify facilities to assure compliance with applicable environmental regulations. Capital expenditures
directly related to environmental compliance totaled $12 million in 2007. This amount does not include capital
expenditures for environmental control facilities made as a part of major mill modernizations and expansions
or capital expenditures made for another purpose that have an indirect benefit on environmental compliance.

Future expenditures for environmental control facilities will depend on new laws and regulations and
other changes in legal requirements and agency interpretations thereof, as well as technological advances. We
expect the prominence of environmental regulation and compliance to continue for the foreseeable future.
Given these uncertainties, we currently estimate that capital expenditures for environmental purposes,
excluding expenditures related to the Maximum Achievable Control Technology (or MACT) programs and
landfill closures discussed below, will be $9 million in 2008, $16 million in 2009, and $9 million in 2010. The
estimated expenditures could be significantly higher if more siringent laws and regulations are implemented.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (or EPA) has issued extensive regulations governing air and
water emissions from the forest products industry. Compliance with these MACT regulations will be required
as they become enacted.

On September 13, 2004, EPA published the Boiler MACT, regulations affecting industrial boilers and
process heaters burning all fuel types with the exception of small gas-fired units. On July 30, 2007, the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit remanded and vacated the Boiler MACT. In order to accurately
gauge our liability regarding future related regulations, we continue 1o monitor and are actively engaged in the
process the EPA is undertaking 1o develop new standards for industrial boilers and process heaters.

The Plywood and Composite Wood Panel (or PCWP) MACT standards were published July 30, 2004,
Compliance with PCWP MACT was required by October 1, 2008. On June 19, 2007, the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the D.C. Circuit rejected the PCWP MACT “low risk option™ and the one-year compliance
extension previously granted by EPA. As a result, the PCWP MACT compliance date reverted back to the
October 1, 2007 deadline contained in the standards published in 2004. We have 12 building products facilities
affected by the regulation. In a limited number of cases, one year extension requests were submitted to state
regulatory agencies to allow for installation of appropriate PCWP MACT pollution control equipment. All of
our extension requests were granted and we anticipate full compliance. Capital expenditures to comply with
PCWP MACT are estimated at $6 million, of which we spent $2 million in 2007.

We use company-owned landfills for disposal of non-hazardous waste at three containerboard mills and
two building products facilities. We also have two additional sites that we are remediating. Based on third-
party cost estimates, we expect 1o spend. on an undiscounted basis. $27 million over the next 25 years to
ensure proper closure of these landfills and remediation of these (wo additional sites for which we have
established a reserve.

At one of these sites, we continue to work with environmental consultants and the Louisiana Department
of Environmental Quality (DEQ) to remediate the source of contaminated water discovered in a manhole
adjacent to our facility in Bogalusa, Louisiana. Phase II of the investigation process, which involved drilling
more and deeper test wells in the affected area, is complete. Our investigation report, including a final
remediation pian, was approved by the Louisiana DEQ in December 2007. We have incurred $2 million in
costs 10 date and estimate that we will incur additional remediation expenses of about $10 million, for which
we have established a reserve.



In addition to these capital expenditures, we spend a significant amount on ongoing mainienance costs to
continue compliance with environmental regulations. We do not believe, however, that these capital expendi-
tures or mainlenance costs will have a material adverse effect on our earnings. In addition, expenditures for
environmental compliance should not have a material effect on our competitive position because our
competitors are also subject to these regulations.

Our facilities are periodically inspected by environmental authorities. We are required to file with these
authorities periodic reports on the discharge of pollutants. Occasionally, one or more of these facilities may
operate in violation of applicable pollution control standards, which could subject the company to fines or
penalties. We believe that any fines or penalties that may be imposed as a result of these violations will not
have a material adverse effect on our earnings or competitive position. No assurance can be given, however,
that any fines levied in the future for any such violations will not be material.

Under CERCLA, liability for the cleanup of a Superfund site may be imposed on waste generators, site
owners and operators, and others regardless of fault or the legality of the original waste disposal activity.
While joint and several liability is authorized under CERCLA, as a practical matter, the cost of cleanup is
generally allocated among the many waste generators. We are named as a potentially responsible party in five
proceedings relating to the cleanup of hazardous waste sites under CERCLA and similar state laws, excluding
sites for which our records disclose no involvement or for which our potential liability has been finally
determined. In all but one of these sites, we are either designated as a de minimus potentially responsible
party or believe our financial exposure is insignificant. We have conducted investigations of all five sites, and
currently estimate that the remediation costs to be allocated to us are about $2 million and should not have a
material effect on our earnings or competitive position. There can be no assurance that we will not be named
as a potentially responsible party at additional Superfund sites in the future or that the costs associated with
the remediation of those sites would not be material.

Competition

We operate in highly competitive industries. The commodity nature of our manufactured products gives
us little control over market pricing or market demand for our preducts. The level of competition in a given
product or market may be affected by economic factors, including interest rates, housing starts, home repair
and remodeling activities, and the strength of the dollar, as well as other market factors including supply and
demand for these products, geographic location, and the operating efficiencies of competitors. Our competitive
position is influenced by varying factors depending on the characteristics of the products involved. The
primary factors are product quality and performance, price, service, and product innovation.

The corrugated packaging industry is highly competitive with over 1,350 box plants in the United States.
Our box plants accounted for approximately 12.5 percent of total industry shipments in 2007, making us the
third largest producer of corrugated packaging in the United States. Although corrugated packaging is
dominant in the national distribution process, our products also compete with various other packaging
materials, including products made of paper, plastics, wood, and metals.

In building products markets, we compete with many companies that are substantially larger and have
greater resources in the manufacturing of building products.




Executive Officers of the Registrant

The names, ages, and titles of our executive officers are:

Name Age Office

Doyle R. Simons . .. .... .. 44 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

J. Patrick Maley I11 .. .. ... 46 President and Chief Operating Officer

Bart I. Doney............ 58 Group Vice President

Jack C. Sweeny . ......... 61 Group Vice President

Dennis J. Vesci . ......... 60 Group Vice President

Grant F. Adamson ... ..... 49 Chief Governance Officer

J. Bradley Johnston . ... ... 52 Chief Administrative Officer

Randall D. Levy. ... ...... 56 Chief Financial Officer

Scott Smith . . ........... 33 Chief Information Officer

Leslie K. O’Neal ......... 52 Vice President, Assistant General Counsel and Secretary
Carolyn C. Sloan . .. .... .. 47 Vice President. Internal Audit

C. Morris Davis. . ........ 65 General Counsel

Troy L. Hester . . .. ... .... 51 Principal Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller
David W. Turpin . ... ... .. 57 Treasurer

Doyle R. Simons became Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Otficer on December 29, 2007. He
was previously named Executive Vice President in February 2005 following his service as Chief Administra-
tive Officer since November 2003. Since joining the Company in 1992, Mr. Simons has served as Vice
President, Administration from November 2000 to November 2003 and Director of Investor Relations from
1994 through 2000.

J. Patrick Maley Il became President and Chief Operating Officer on December 29, 2007. He was
previously named Executive Vice President — Paper in November 2004 following his appointment as Group
Vice President in May 2003, Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Maley served in various capacities from 1992
to 2003 at International Paper.

Bart J. Doney became Group Vice President in February 2000, Mr, Doney has served as an officer of our
corrugated packaging segment since 1990.

Jack C. Sweeny became Group Vice President in May 1996. Since November 1982, Mr. Sweeny has
served in various capacities in our building products segment.

Dennis I. Vesci became Group Vice President in August 2005. Mr. Vesci has served as an officer of our
corrugated packaging segment since 1998,

Grant F. Adamson became Chief Governance Officer in May 2006. Mr. Adamsen joined the Company in
1991 and has served in various capacities including Assistant General Counsel.

J. Bradley Johnston became Chief Administrative Officer in February 2005. Prior to that, Mr. Johnston
served as General Counsel from August 2002 through May 2006 and in various capacities in our former
financial services segment since 1993.

Randall D. Levy became Chief Financial Officer in May 1999. Mr, Levy joined the Company in 1989
serving in various capacities in our former financial services segment before being named Chief Financial
Officer.

Scott Smith became Chief Information Officer in February 2000. Prior to that, Mr. Smith served in
various capacities within our former financial services segment since 1988.

Leslie K. O'Neal was named Vice President in August 2002 and became Secretary in February 2000 after
serving as Assistant Secretary since 1995. Ms. (F’Neal also surves as Assistant General Counsel, a position she
has held since 1985.



Carolyn C. Sloan wus named Vice President, Internal Audit, in August 2005. Ms. Sloan joined the
Company in 2001 as Director, Internal Audit.

C. Morris Davis became General Counsel in May 2006, Mr, Davis joined Temple-Inland after 39 years
with the law firm of McGinnis, Lochridge & Kilgore in Austin, where he served seven years as the firm'’s
managing partner.

Troy L. Hester was named Principal Accounting Officer in August 2006. Mr. Hester has been with
Temple-Inland since 1999 and has served in various capacities including Controller-Financial Services, Vice
President Accounting Center, and was named Corporate Controller in May 2006.

David W. Turpin has served as Treasurer since joining the Company in June 1991,

The Board of Directors annually elects officers 1o serve until their successors have been elected and have
qualified or as otherwise provided in our Bylaws.
Available Information

From our Internet website, fittp:/Avww.templeiniand.com, you may obtain additional information about us
including:

» our annual reports on Form 10-K. quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
including amendments to these reports, and other documents as soon as reasonably practicable after we
file them with the Securities and Exchange Commission (or SEC):

» beneficial ownership reports filed by officers, directors, and principal security holders under Sec-
tion 16{a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {or the Exchange Act); and

* corporate governance information that includes our
= corporate governance principles,
* audit committee charter,
* managenient development and executive compensation committee charter,
* nominating and governance committee charter,
« standards of business conduct and ethics,
« code of ethics for senior financial officers, and
* information on how to communicate directly with our board of directors.

We will also provide printed copies of any of these documents to any shareholder upon request. In
addition, the materials we file with the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. Information about the operation of the Public Reference Room is
available by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site (htp:/iwww.sec.gov)
that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information that is filed electronically with
the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
The business segments in which we operate are highly competitive.

The business segments in which we operate are highly competitive and are affected to varying degrees by
supply and demand factors and economic conditions, including changes in interest rates, new housing starts.
home repair and remodeling activities, and the strength of the U.S. dollar. Given the commodity nature of our
manufactured products. we have little control over market pricing or market demand. No single company is
dominant in any of our industries.




Our corrugated packaging competitors include large, vertically-integrated paperboard and packaging
products companies and numerous smaller companies. Because these products are globally traded commodi-
ties, the industries in which we compete are particularly sensitive to price fluctuations as well as other factors,
including innovation, design, quality, and service, with varying emphasis on these factors depending on the
product line. To the extent that one or more of our competitors become more successful with respect to any
key competitive factor, our business could be materially adversely affected. Although corrugated packaging is
dominant in the national distribution process, our products also compete with various other packaging
materials, including products made of paper, plastics, wood. and various types of metal.

In the building products markets, we compete with many companies that are substantially larger and have
greater resources in the manufacturing of building products.

The profitability of our business is affected by changes in raw material and other costs.

Virgin wood fiber and recycled fiber are the principal raw materials we use to manufacture corrugated
packaging and certain of our building products. We purchase virgin wood fiber in highly competitive, price
sensitive markets. The price for wood fiber has historically fluctuated on a cyclical basis and has often
depended on a variety of factors over which we have no control, including environmental and conservation
regulations, natural disasters, the price and levet of imported timber and the continuation of any applicable
tariffs, and weather. In addition, the increase in demand for old corrugated containers, especially from China,
may cause a significant increase in the cost of recycled fiber used in the manufacture of recycled
containerboard and related products. Such costs are likely to continue to fluctuate. While we have not
experienced any significant difficulty in obtaining virgin wood fiber and recycled fiber in economic proximity
to our facilities, this may not continue to be the case for any or all of our facilities.

Our profitability is also sensitive to changes in the prices of energy and transportation. While we have
attempted to contain energy costs through internal generation and in some instances the use of by-products
from our manufacturing processes as fuel, no assurance can be given that such efforts will be successful in the
future or that energy prices will not rise to levels that would have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations. We hedge very little of our energy needs.

The corrugated packaging and building products industries are cyclical in nature and experience periods
of overcapacity.

The operating results of our corrugated packaging and building products segments reflect each such
industry’s general cyclical pattern. While the cycles of each industry do not historically coincide, demand and
prices in each tend (o drop substantially in an economic downturn. The building products industry is further
influenced by the residential construction and remodeling markets. Further, each industry periodically
experiences substantial overcapacity. Both industries are capital intensive, which leads to high fixed costs and
generally results in continued production as long as prices are sufficient to cover marginal costs. These
conditions have contributed to substantial price competitton and volatility in these industries, even when
demand is strong. Any increased production by our competitors could depress prices for our products. From
lime to time, we have closed certain of our facilities or have taken downtime based on prevailing market
demand for our products and may continue to do so, reducing our total production levels, Certain of our
competitors have also temporarily closed or reduced production at their facilities, but can reopen and/or
increase production capacity at any time, which could exacerbate the overcapacity in these industries and
depress prices.

Our manufacturing activities are subject to environmental regulations and liabilities that could have a
negative effect on our operating results.

Our manufaciuring operations are subject to federal, state, and local provisions regulating the discharge of
materials into the environment and otherwise related 1o the protection of the environment. Compliance with
these provisions has required us to invest substantial funds to modify facilities to ensure compliance with
applicable environmental regulations. In other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we provide
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certain estimates of expenditures we expect to make for environmental compliance in the next few years.
However, we could incur additional significant expenditures due to changes in law or the discovery of new
information, and such expenditures could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, cash flows,
and results of operations.

Downward changes in demand for housing in the market regions where we operate could decrease
profitability in our building products segment.

The residential homebuilding industry is sensitive to changes in economic conditions, including interest
rates and availability of financing. Adverse changes in these conditions generally. or in the market regions
where we operate, could decrease demand for new homes in these areas. Decline in housing demand could
have a negative effect on the pricing and demand for many of our building products, particutarly lumber and
gypsum wallboard, which could result in a decrease in our revenues and earnings.

If certain internal restructuring transactions and the distributions of Forestar and Guaranty are
determined to be taxable for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we and our stockholders that are subject
to U.S. federal income tax could incur significant U.S. federal income tax liabilities.

We enicred into certain internal restructuring transactions in preparation for the spin-offs of Forestar and
Guaranty. These transactions are complex and could cause us to incur significant tax liabilities. We received a
private letter ruling from the IRS and opinions of tax counsel regarding the tax-free nature of these
transactions and the distributions. The ruling and opinions rely on certain facts, assumptions, representations,
and undertakings, from us regarding the past and future conduct of our businesses und other matters, If any of
these are incorrect or not otherwise satisfied, then we and our stockholders may not be able to rely on the
ruling or opinions and could be subject to significant tax liabilities. Notwithstanding the ruling and opinions,
the IRS could determine on audit that the distributions or the internal restructuring transactions should be
treated as taxable transactions if it determines that any of these facts, assumptions, representations, or
undertakings are not correct or have been violated, or if the distributions should become taxable for other
reasons, including as a result of significant changes in stock ownership after the distribution.

If the sale of our strategic timberland did not qualify for installment method reporting for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, we could incur significant U.S. federal income tax liabilities the payment of which
we believe to be deferred.

We sold our strategic timberland in a manner intended for U.S. federal income tax purposes to defer
recognition of a substantial portion of the gain on the sale. Under the installment method, we will not be
required to pay U.S. federal income taxes on the deferred gain until we are required to recognize the gain. We
received opinions of tax counsel regarding the timberland sale and the deferred gain. The opinions rely on
certain facts, assumptions, representations, and undertakings from us regarding the past and future conduct of
our businesses and other matters. If any of these are incorrect or not otherwise satisfied, then we may not be
able to rely on the opinions. Notwithstanding the opinions, the IRS could determine on audit that the gain
does not qualify {or deferral if it determines that any of these facts, assumptions, representations, or
undertakings are not correct or have been violated or that the transaction otherwise does not qualify for the
installment method.

We have interest rate risk in connection with our financial assets and nonrecourse financial linbilities of
special purpose entities.

In October 2007, we received $2.38 billion in notes due in 2027 from the sale of our timberland, which
we later contributed to two wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote special purpose entities. In December 2007, the
special purpose entities pledged the notes as collateral for $2.14 billion nonrecourse loans payable in 2027,
Both the notes and the borrowings require quarterly interest payments based on variable interest rates that reset
quarterly, Becanse of the differences in references rates, margins, and reset dates, there could be periods in
which the interest paid on the nonrecourse financial liabilities is significantly more than the interested received
on the Anancial assets.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We own and operate manufacturing facilities throughout the United States, four converting plants in
Mexico. and one in Puerto Rico. We believe our manufacturing facilities are suitable for their purposes and
adequate for our business. Additional information about selected facilities by business segment follows:

Containerboard Mills

Location Product

Ontario, California ... .. e Linerboard and corrugating medium
Rome, Georgia .. ............ .. Linerboard

Orange, Texas. .. .............. Linerboard and corrugating medium
Bogalusa, Louisiana . ........... Linerboard

Maysville, Kentucky .. .......... Linerboard and corrugating medium
New Johnsonville, Tennessee., .. . .. Corrugating medium

Newport, Indiana*. .. ... ... .. .. Corrugating medium, linerboard,

and gypsum facing paper

Number of Annual 2007
Machines Capacity Production
(In tons}

| 336,000 334479

2 837,000 834,069

2 730,000 725,546

2 915,000 916,021

1 454000 435,102

I 348,000 349,706
3,620,000 3,614,923

1 308.000 300,882

* The table shows the full capacity of this facility that is owned by a joint venture in which we own a 50 per-
cent interest. In 2007, we purchased 52,788 tons of corrugating medium and linerboard and 42,136 tons of

gypsum facing paper from the venture.

Converting Facilities®

Location

PhOeniX, AT ZONa. . o i e e e e e e e e e
Fort Smith, ATKansas. . . .. .. . e e e e
Fort Smith, Arkansas! %%
Bell, Califomia . .. .o e e e

)

Buena Park, Californiall .
El Centro, Californiall . . .

)

Gilray, California™ . . . .. e
Gilroy. California®™ %% .
Ontario, California ... ... . e e
Santa Fe Springs, California . ... e
Santa Fe Springs, California™ ™% _
Santa Fe Springs, Califormia™ %% e
Tracy, Califormia . . . .. .. e
Union City, Californiat™®* e
Wheat Ridge, Colorado . . .. ... e
Orlando, Florida . . .. ... . . e

N

Tampa, Floridat . . ..o e
ROME, GeOTEIA & . . oot e e e e e e
Carol Stream, IIHNOIS . . .. o
Chicago, IIIN0is . . . .. L.

Corrugator
Size
98"
87

None
98"
85"
87"
87"
98"
87




Location

Chicago. Hlinois™*%

Elgin, IIin0is . . ... . e :

Elgin, Inois® %, | e
Crawfordsville, Indiana . . ... ... .o e
Evansville, Indiana . .. ... ... e
Indianapolis, Indiana . . .. .. ... ... L e e
Indianapolis. Indiana®®* . e
St. Anthony, Indiana™** | L e e
Tipton, Indiana***
Garden City, Kansas . ... ... i e e e e e
Kansas City, Kansas . . ... ... e e s
Bogalusa, Louisiana . ... ... ... . e e e
Minden, Louisiana . .. ... ... . e e
Minneapolis, MINNESOtA. . . . . . .. .. e e
St. Louis, MissOUr . . ..o e
St. Louis, Missouri® e e
Milltown, New Jersey ™% ... ... ... e
Spotswood, New Jersey . . ... e e e
Binghamton, New York . . ... ... . e
Buffalo, New York* ¥ . . . e
Scotia, New York*** e
Utica, New Yotk e
Warren County, North Carolina . . ... ... . i e
Madison, Ohlo** % . e e e
Marion, QRO . . ... e
Middletown, Ohio . . . . ... e e e
Streetsboro, ORio . .. ...
Biglerville, Pennsylvania . . .. .. .. e e
Hazleton, Pennsylvania . . ... ... e e e e
Littlestown, Pennsylvania**® . . e
Scranton, Pennsylvania ... ...
Vega Alta, Puerto Rico ... ...
Lexington, South Carolina. . ....... .. . e
Ashland City, Tennessee! " % ..
Elizabethton, Tennessee %% L
Dallas, Texas . ... .. e e
Edinburg, TeXas . ... e e
San Antonio, TeXas . . . . ... i e e e e
San Antonio, Texas™ ® . . . . e
Petersburg, Virginia. .. ... ... . e
" San Jose Iturbide, MEXICO . . .. ..ot e
Monterrey, MeXiCo .. ... it i e e e
Los Mochis, Sinaloa, Mexico. . . ... .o e
Guadalajara, Mexicot™** |

Corrugator
Size
None
78"
None
98"
98"
g7
None
None
1107
98"
87
98"
98"
87
87"
98"
None
98"
87"
None
None
None
98"
None
87"
98"
98"
98"
98"
None
68"
87"




* The annual capacity of the converting facilities is a function of the product mix, customer requirements
and the type of converting equipment installed and operating at each plant, each of which varies from

time to time.
** These plants each contain more than one corrugator.
*** Sheet or sheet feeder plants.

@ Leased facilities.

Additionally, we own a graphics resource center in Indianapolis, Indiana, that has a 100" preprint press.

We lease 37 warehouses located throughout much of the United States.

Building Products

Description Location

LumIber . e e e Diboll, Texas
Lumber . . e e Pineland, Texas
Lamber . Buna, Texas
Lumber . ... e Rome, Georgia
Lumber . ... e DeQuincy, Louisiana

* Includes separate finger jointing capacity of 20 million board feet.

** Includes separate stud mill capacity of 110 million board feet.

Description Location

Gypsum Wallboard . . . .......... ... ... ... .. ... ..... West Memphis, Arkansas

Gypsum Wallboard . . . . ... .. .. ... ... .. Fletcher, Oklahoma

Gypsum Wallboard . .. ......... ... ... ... ............. McQueeney, Texas

Gypsum Wallboard . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... Cumberland City, Tennessee
Total gypsum wallboard ... ........... ... ... ......

Particleboard. . . .. ... ... L Monroeville, Alabama

Particleboard. . .. ... ... . ... . L L L Thomson, Georgia

Particleboard. . . ... .. ... . ... .. .. Diboll, Texas

Particleboard. . ... ... ... .. .. L Hope, Arkansas

Particleboard™® . ... Mt. Jewett, Pennsylvania
Total particleboard . ... ... . ... .. . . L

M F* e e e El Dorado, Arkansas

MDF Y Mt. Jewett, Pennsylvania
Towal MDF . o e

Fiberboard .. ... ... .. .. Diboll, Texas

Rated Annual
Capacity

{In millions of

board feet)

199*
310>
193
165
_198

1,070

Rated Annual
Capacity

{In millions of
square feet)

440
460
400
_800

2,100

160
160
160
200
200

380

160
140

300
460

* The table shows the full capacity of this facility that is owned by a joint venture in which we own a 50 per-

cent interest.

) Leased facilities.

2 Due to market conditions, we curtailed production at this facility beginning in 2003 and made the decision

in 2007 to cease production permanently.
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Other

We occupy approximately 190,000 square feet of leased office space in Austin, Texas. We own and
occupy a 150,000 square feet office building in Diboll, Texas.

At year-end 2007, property and equipment having a net book value of $2 million were subject to liens in
connection with $14 million of debt.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
General

We are involved in various legal proceedings that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of doing
business. We believe that adequate reserves have been cstablished for any probable losses and that the cutcome
of any of these proceedings should not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or long-term
results of operations or cash flows, It is possible, however, that charges related to these matters could be
significant to results of operations or cash flows in any single accounting period. A summary of our more
significant legal matters is set forth below.

Antitrust Litigation

On May 14, 1999, we and eight other linerboard manufacturers were named as defendants in a
consolidated class action complaint that alleged a civil violation of Section | of the Sherman Act. In addition,
complaints containing allegations similar 1o those in the class action were filed by certain opt-out plaintifis,
QOver the last several years, we have paid a otal of $13 million to setile the class action and a majority of the
opt-out claims. In December 2007, we agreed to participate in binding arbitration in an effort to resolve most
of the remaining claims. As a result of the arbitration, we paid $48 million on the claims submitted 1o
arbitration and to settle all remaining opt-out claims in the federal litigation.

One related Kansas state court claim for approximately $26 million in statutory damages, which could be
irebled under applicable state law, is still pending against us.

Bogalusa Litigation

On QOctober 15, 2003, a release of nitrogen dioxide and nitrogen oxide took place at our linerboard mill
in Bogalusa, Louisiana. The mill followed appropriate protocols for handling this type of event, notifying the
Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and local law
enforcement officials. The federal and state environmental agencies have analyzed the reports we prepared and
have not indicated that they will take any action against us.

To date, we have been served with 11 lawsuits seeking damages for various personal injuries allegedly
caused by either exposure to the released gas or fears of exposure. These 11 lawsuits have been consolidated
under Louisiana state rules for purpose of discovery and are set for trial in third quarter 2008. We are
vigorously defending against these allegations,

Asbestos

We are a defendant in various lawsuits involving alleged workplace exposure to asbestos. These cases
involve exposure to asbestos in premises owned or operated by us. We do not manufacture any products that
contain asbestos and all our cases in this area are limited to workplace exposure claims, Historically, our
aggregate annual settlements related to asbestos claims have been approximately $1 million. The number of
claims has remained relatively constant in the past few years despite the fact that the majority of the claims
relate to a facility we sold at the end of 1999,

Other

We are also defending two cases in California state court alleging violations of that state’s on-duty meal
break laws. In 2007, we settled three additional meal break cases.
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Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

We did not submit any matter to a vote of our shareholders in fourth quarter 2007,

PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Market Information

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The high and low sales prices for our
Common Stock and dividends paid in each fiscal quarter in the two most recent fiscal years were:

2007 2006
Price Range Price Range
High Low Dividends High Low Dividends
First Quarter . ................. $63.61  $44.29 $ 028 $47.92  340.83 $0.25
Second Quarter . ............... $6445 $59.00 $ 028 34768  $38.12 $0.25
Third Quarter. . .. .............. $66.28  $49.17 $ 028 $4548 $39.78 $0.25
Fourth Quarter®* . . . ... .......... $57.51  $29.09 $10.53 $46.71  $37.84 $0.25
Forthe Year. .................. $66.28  $29.09 $11.37 $47.92  $37.84 $1.00

* Includes a special dividend of $10.25 per share paid in December 2007,

Shareholders

Our stock transfer records indicated that as of February 22, 2008, there were approximately 4,750 holders
of record of our Common Stock.

Dividend Policy

As indicated above, we paid quarterly dividends during each of the two most recent years in the amounts
shown. In addition to our regular quarterly dividend, we paid a special dividend of $10.25 per share in
December 2007 as part of our transformation plan. On February 1, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a
quarterly dividend on our Common Stock of $0.10 per share payable on March 14, 2008, to sharcholders of
record on February 29, 2008. The Bourd periodically reviews the dividend policy, and the declaration of
dividends will necessarily depend upon our earnings and financial requirements and other factors within the
discretion of the Board.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities'"

Maximum

Total Number - Number of
of Shares Shares That

Purchased as May Yet be

Total Average Part of Publicly Purchased

Number of Price Announced Under the

Shares Paid per Plans or Plans

Period Purchased Share Programs or Programs
Month 1 (10/1/2007 — 1/34/2007) ... ... ... — $— — 6,650,000
Month 2 (11/1/2007 — 11/30/2007) . . . . ... .. — $— — 6,650,000
Month 3 (12/1/2007 — 12/3172007) . ... ... .. — $— — 6,630,000

3

1N
T

I

" On August 4, 2006, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to
6,000,000 shares of our common stock. We have purchased 4,350,000 shares under this authorization, which
has no expiration date. On February 2, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the
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purchase of up to an additional 5,000,000 shares of our common stock, increasing the maximum number of
shares yet to be purchased under our repurchase plans to 6,650,000 shares. We have no plans or programs
that expired during the period covered by the table above and no plans or programs that we intend to termi-
nate prior to exptration or under which we no longer intend to make further purchases,

Performance Graph

We composed an index of our peers consisting of AbitibiBowater Inc., Caraustar Industries, Inc., Domtar
Corporation, International Paper Company, MeadWestvaco Corporation, Packaging Corporation of America,
Smurfit-Stone Container Corporation, and Weyerhaeuser Corporation (Peer Index). During the five preceding
years., our cumulative total stockholder return compared to the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and to the
Peer Index was as shown in the following table:

Comparison of 5 Year Cumutative Total Return
250.00
200.00 ////,“\’
P
100.00 o
50.00
0.00 . . . . X
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
[+ TEMPLE-INLAND —=— S&P 500 Index - Total Retumn —a-- Peer Grougp]
Assumes $100 invested on the last trading day in fiscal year 2002
*Total retumn assumes reinvestment of dividends
Other

See Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters for disclosure regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation

plans.




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

For the Year

2007 2006' 2005 2004 2003®
(Dollars in millions, except per share)
Revenues:
Corrugated packaging . . .. ... ... ... . . $3044 $ 2977 §$2825 $2736 § 2700
Building products. . . .. ... ... 806 1,119 898 851 684
Timber and timberland . . .. .. ... ... ... ... L L. 76 89 120 107 108
Total revenuUEsS . . . .. ... e $3926 § 4.185 $3.843 $ 3694 § 3492
Segmenl operating income:
Corrugated packaging . . . .. .. .. ..., $ 287 $ 255 % 120§ 96 % 18
Building products. . . .. .. ... .. . e e 8 221 125 129 2
Timber and timberland . . . ... .. ... ... Lo L. 65 63 72 52 42
Segment operating income . ... ... .. i 360 539 317 277 62
Items not allocated to segments;
General and administrative ... ....... ... ... ... (100) (107) ©on (79 73)
Share-based compensation. . .. ... ... . L .. (34) (38) 2D (12} 6)
Gain on sale of timberland . .. .. ... ... ... . ... 2,053 — — — —
Other operating income {expense)” . .. .. ... .. ... (188 26 (85) (42) (133)
Other non-operating income (expense)®. ... ... .. ... .... (35) 93 — — 8)
Net interest income on financial assets and nonrecourse financial
liabilities of special purpose entities™. . ... . ... .. ...... 10 — — — —
Interest expense ondebt . . .. ..., ... .. .. ... . . .. ... (11 (123 {109) (125) (135)
Income (lossy before taxes .. ...... ... ... ... ... .. ...... 1.955 390 I 19 (293)
Income tax (expense) benefit™ .. ... L L L. (753) (103) 7 8 264
Income from continuing operations . . ... .................. 1,202 287 i8 27 (29)
Discontinued operations™. . ... ... L 103 181 158 133 131
Effect of accounting chunge‘g) ........................... — — — — (8}
NeLinCOME . . . . .t e et et $1305 $ 468 § 176 5 160 $ 101
Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations .. ................... $11.12 8 259 8 006 5 024 § (027
Discontinued operations® . . . ... ... . . .. 0.96 1.63 1.38 118 1.21
Effect of accounting change‘g’ ......................... — —_ — — (0.01)
Netincome. ... ... .. e $12.08 422 § 154 § 142 § 093
Dividends per common share™ . .. ... ... L $11.37 .00 § 090 $ 122 § 068
Average diluted shares outstanding . ... ... . L. o oL 108.1 110.8 114.5 1124 108.4
Common shares outstanding at year-end. . . ...... ........... 106.1 104.9 111.0 112.2 109.2
Depreciation and amortization. . . .. ...................... $ 214 % 225 % 218 % 219 § 233
Capital expenditures. . . ... ... ... $ 237 % 204 $§ 220 % 219 § 134
At Year-End:
Assels;
Manufacturing assets. . ... ... ..l e $3,559 $ 3,627 % 3411 33,522 §$ 3474
Financial assets of special purpose entities. . .. ........... 2,383 — — — —
Assets of discontinued operations . . . .. ... L L L. — 16,847 18,219 16,622 17,893
Total assets . . . . . o e $5,942  $20474  $21,630 $20,144 321,367
Debt (long-term exciuding current maturities and nonrecourse
financial liabilities of special purpose entities) . . ... ... ... . $ 852 $ 1584 $ 1498 %1485 % 161
Nonrecourse financial liabilities of spectal purpose entities . . . . . 52140 § — % — § - 3 —
Liability for pension and postretirement benefits . . ... ... .... $ 25 $ 366 § 407 & 432 0§ 396
Shareholders” equity . . .. ... ... . . $ 780 $ 2,189 $ 2,080 $ 2,107 $ 1988
Ratio of debt to total capitalization. . . . . ................. 52% 42% 42% 41% 45%
()

In January 2006. we purchased our partner’s 50 percent interest in Standard Gypsum LP for $150 million

and assumed debt of $28 million. Unaudited pro forma information assuming this acquisition and related
financing had occurred at the beginning of 2005 follows: revenues $4.04 billion; income from continuing
operations $32 million; and income from continuing operations, per diluted share $0.28. These pro forma
results are not necessarily an indication of what actually would have occurred if the acquisition and

financing transactions had been completed at the beginning of the periods presented and are not intended

to be indicative of future results.
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{c)

(d)

(e}

)

®

The 2003 fiscal year, which ended on January 3, 2004, had 53 weeks. The extra week did not have a sig-
nificant effect on earnings or financial position. As a result of the consolidation of our administrative
functions and adoption of a shared services concept, beginning 2004, we changed the way we allocate
costs to our business segments. The effect of this change was to increase segment operating income and
to increase unallocated expenses by a like amount. The 2003 amounts have been reclassified 10 reflect this
change.

Other operating and non-operating income (expense) consists of:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In millions)

Other operating income (expense):
Transformation costs (advisory and legal fees, change of control and

employee related) . . ... ... . .. ... 569 $— F— F— 5 —
Closure and sale of converting and production facilities and sale of
NOM-SIFAEZIC OSSELS . & o o oo e i e ot ety e e (55) @ GO @ (8
Liigation .. ... (56) (6} (13 — —
Environmental remediation . . .. .. ... . e e 9 (8) (3) — —
Softwood Lumber Agreement . .. ... ... ... L. L. — 42 — — -
Hurricane related costs and. in 2006, related insurance proceeds . . . . — 2 (16) — —
Consolidation of administrative functions . . . ................. — — (o (48)
Other . .. e =3 @4 @)
$(188) $26  §(83) $(42) $(133)
Other non-operating income (expense):
Charges related to early repayment of debt . . ... .. ... ... ..... S $— s S $ B
Tax litigation and other settlements .. .. .. ... ... . ...... .. ... — 89 2 — —
Interest and otherincome . ... ... ... .. 3 4 4 2

$(35 $93 $— S$— § (

o0
~—

In October 2007, we received $2.38 billion in notes from the sale of our timberland, which we later con-
tributed to two wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote special purpose entities. In December 2007, the special
purpose entities pledged the notes as collateral for $2.14 billion nonrecourse loans payable in 2027. Both
the notes and the borrowings require quarterly interest payments based on variable interest rates that reset
quarterly. We include these two special purpose entities in our consolidated financial statements.

Income taxes include one-time tax benefits of: $7 million in 2007, of which $3 million is related to
changes 1o the State of Texas margin tax and 34 million is related te the reselution of state income tax
matters; $36 million in 2006, of which $6 million is related to the State of Texas margin tax and $30 mil-
lion is related 1o the non-taxable tax litigation settlement; $16 million in 2005 related to the sale of our
Pembroke, Canada MDF facility; and $20 million in 2004 and $165 million in 2003 related to the resolu-
tion and settlement of prior years’ tax examinations.

Discontinued operations include the operations of our financial services and real estate segments, which
were spun off to our shareholders on December 28, 2007, and the nen-strategic operations obtained in the
Gaylord acquisition, including the multi-wall bag business and kraft paper mill which were sold in Janu-
ary 2003 and the chemical business which was sold in August 2007. The resolution and settlement of
environmental and other indemnifications we provided in the 1999 sale of the bleached paperboard opera-
tion are also included in 2004

In 2003, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations, which resulted in an after-tax cumulative effect charge of $1 million.

In 2006, (i) we adopted the modified prospective application of SFAS Ne. 123 (revised December 2004),
Share-Based Payment, which decreased 2006 income before taxes by $6 million; (i) we began applying
the guidance in Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-13, Accounting for Purchases and Sales
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of Inventory with the Same Counterparty, which decreased income before taxes by $7 million in 2006 and
$2 million in 2007; and (iii) we adopted SFAS No. 158, Emplovers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pen-
sion and Other Postretirement Plans, which increased our liability for pension and postretirement benefits
by $76 million, decreased prepaid expenses and other assets by $16 million, decreased deferred income
taxes by $35 million. and decreased shareholders™ equity by $57 million.

In 2007. (i) we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48),
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. which increased assets by $2 million, reduced liabilities by
$3 million and increased beginning retained carnings by $5 million (we also reclassified $11 million from
deferred income taxes to other long-term liabilities), (ii) we adopted the measurement provisions of
SFAS No. 158. Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretivement Plans,
which reduced beginning retained earnings by 35 million, and (iii) we adopted FASB Staff Position

No. AUG AIR-1, Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities, electing the expense-as-incurred
method which had no effect on our annual earnings or financial position.

™ Includes special dividends of $10.25 per share in 2007 and $0.50 per share in 2004.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiul Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the federal securitics Jaws. These forward-looking
statements are identified by their use of terms and phrases such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “could,” “estimate,”
“likely.” “intend,” “may.” “plan,” “expect.” and similar expressions, including references to assumptions, These
statements reflect management’s current views with respect to future events and are subject to risk and
uncertainties. We note that a variety of factors and uncertainties could cause our actual results to differ
signiftcantly from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors and uncertainties that might
cause such differences include, but are not limited to:

LAY

LIRS

* general economic, market, or business conditions;

= the opportunities {or lack thereof) that may be presented to us and that we may pursue;

* fluctuations in costs and expenses including the costs of raw materials, purchased energy, and freight,
* demand for new housing:

« accuracy of accounting assumptions related to impaired assets, pension and postretirement costs, and
CONtINZency reserves;

= competitive actions by other companies;

+ changes in laws or regulations;

* our ability 10 execute certain strategic and business improvement initiatives; and
* other factors, many of which are beyond our control.

Our actual results, performance, or achievement probably will differ from those expressed in, or implied
by, these forward-looking statements, and accordingly, we can give no assurances that any of the events
anticipated by the forward-looking statements will transpire or oceur, or if any of them do so, what impact
they will have on our results of operations or financial condition. In view of these uncertainties, you are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Except as required by law, we
expressly disclaim any obligation to publicly revise any forward-looking statements contained in this report to
reflect the occurrence of events after the date of this report.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

Return on investment (ROI) is an important internal measure for us because it is a key component of our
evaluation of overall performance and the performance of our business segments. Studies have shown that
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there is a direct correlation between shareholder value and ROI and that shareholder value is created when
ROI exceeds the cost of capital. ROI allows us to evaluate our performance on a consistent basis as the
amount we earn relative to the amount invested in our business segments. A significant portion of senior
management’scompensation is based on achieving ROI targets.

In evaluating overall performance, we define ROI as total segment operating income, less general and
administrative expenses and share-based compensation not allocated to segments; divided by total assets, less
certain assets and certain current liabilities. As a result of our transformation in 2007, we modified the return
portion of this calculation. The ROI for all prior years has been recalculated to reflect this change. We do not
believe there is a comparable GAAP financial measure to our definition of ROL The reconciliation of our ROI
calculation to amounts reported under GAAP is included in a later section of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Despite its importance to us, ROl is a non-GAAP financial measure that has no standardized definition
and as a result may not be comparable with other companies’ measures using the same or similar lerms. Also
there may be limits in the usefulness of ROI 1o investors. As a result, we encourage you to read our
consolidated financial statements in their entirety and not to rely on any single financial measure,

Accounting Policies .
Critical Accounting Estimates

In preparing our financial statements, we follow generally accepted accounting principles, which in many
cases require us to make assumptions, estimates, and judgments that affect the amounts reported. Ovur significant
accounting policies are included in Note 1 to the Conselidated Financial Statements. Many of these principles
are relatively straightforward. There are, however, a few accounting policies that are critical because they are
important in determining our financial condition and results, and they are difficult for us to apply. They include
asset impairments, contingency reserves, and pension accounting. The difficulty in applying these policies arises
from the assumptions, estimates and judgments that we have to make currently about matters that are inherently
uncertain, such as future economic conditions, operating results and valuations, as well as our intentions, As the
difficulty increases, the level of precision decreases, meaning actual results can, and probably will, be different
from those currently estimated. We base our assumptions, estimates, and judgments on a combination of
historical experiences und other factors that we believe are reasonable. We have discussed the selection and
disclosure of these critical accounting estimates with our Audit Committee.

* Measuring assets for impairment requires estimating intentions as to holding periods, future operating
cash flows and restdual values of the assets under review. Changes in our intentions, market conditions,
or operating performance could require us to revise the impairment charges we previously provided.

» The expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets is an important assumption in determining
pension expense. In selecting that rate, currently 6.875 percent, particular consideration is given to our
asset allocation because approximately 80 percent of our plan assets are debt related with a duration that
closely matches that of our benefit obligation. Another important consideration is the discount rate used
1o determine the present value of our benefit obligation, currently 6.125 percent. Differences between
actual and expected rates of return and changes in the discount rate will affect future pension expense and
funded status. For example, a 25 basis point change in the discount rate would affect the projected benefit
obligation by about $42 million and the interest cost on the projected benefit obligation by about
$5 miilion. However, due to our move in late 2007 1o a more matched position between our plan assets
and our projected benefit obligation, we would expect a 25 basis point change in the discount rate to
affect the funded status of our plan by only $12 million and the total net periodic benefit expense by only
$2 million.

» Contingency reserves are established for potential losses related to litigation, environmental remediation, and
disputes with taxing authorities, among other items. Estimating these reserves requires us to make certain
judgments and assumptions regarding actual or potential claims, interpretations to be made by courts or
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regulatory bodies, and other factors and events that are outside our control. Changes and inaccuracies in our
interpretations and actions of others could require us to revise the reserves we previously provided.

New Accounting Pronouncemenis and Change in Measurement Date of our Defined Benefir and Postretirement Plans

In the last three years, we adopted a number of new accounting pronouncements, including in 2007,
FASB Suaff Position No. AUG AIR-1, Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities; FIN 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes; and a fiscal year-end measurement date for valuing plan assets
and obligations for our defined benefit and postretirement benefit plans as required by SFAS No. 158,
Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. In addition, there are four
new accounting pronouncements that we will be required to adopt in 2008 and 2009, none of which we expect
to have a significant effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Please read Note 1 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Transformation

On December 28, 2007, we completed our transformation plan that was approved by our board of
directors in February 2007. A summary of the significant elements of the transformation plan follows:

* On October 31, 2007, we sold 1.55 million acres of timberland for $2.38 billion 1o an investment entity
affiliated with The Campbell Group, LLC and recognized a pre-tax gain of $2.053 billion, which is
included in other operating income. The acreage sold consisted of 1.38 million acres owned in fee and
leases covering 175,000 acres. The total consideration consisted almost entirely of notes due in 2027
that are secured by irrevocable letters of credit issued by independent financial institutions. We also
entered into a 20-year fiber supply agreement for pulpwood and a 12-year fiber supply agreement for
sawtimber. Both agreements are at market prices and are subject to extension.

» We contributed the notes and irrevocable letters of credit received in connection with the sale of our
timberland to two wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote special purpose entities. On December 3, 2007,
the special purpose entities pledged the notes received from the sale of (he timberland as coltateral for
$2.14 billion nonrecourse loans payable in 2027. The net cash proceeds, after alternative minimum and
other taxes related to sale of the timberland and transactions costs, were $1.8 billion. We used
$1.1 billion of the net cash proceeds to pay a $10.25 per share special cash dividend to our shareholders
in December 2007. The remaining $700 million was used (o reduce debt. We have concluded that we
are the primary beneficiary of these special purpose entities. As a result, we include these special
purpose entities in our consolidated financial statements,

* On December 28, 2007, we completed the spin-off of our real estate segment, Forestar Real Estate
Group Inc. (Forestar), and our financial services segment, Guaranty Financial Group Inc. (Guaranty).
These spin-offs were effected through tax-free distributions of one share of Forestar and one share of
Guaranty for every three shares of Temple-Inland common stock. These spin-offs reduced retained
earnings by $1.6 billion. Our financial information has been reclassified to reflect Forestar and
Guaranty as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

The transformaticn plan significantly changed our capital structure and operations. At year-end 2007,
Temple-Inland is a manufacturing company focused on corrugated packaging and building products.
Results of Operations for the Years 2007, 2006, and 2005
Summary

Our two key objectives are:

* Maximizing ROl and

= Profitably growing our business
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We will accomplish our key objectives through execution of our strategic initiatives. Our key strategic
initiatives in corrugated packaging are:

* Maintaining full integration,
* Driving for low cost through asset utilization and manufacturing excellence,
= Improving mix and margins through sales excellence. and
« Growing our business.
Our key strategic initiatives in building products are:
» Delivering a tailored portfolio of building preducts,
* Driving for low cost through manufacturing excellence,
» Serving growing markets with favorable demographics, and
* Promoting sales excellence.
In 2007, consistent with our key strategic initiatives:
+ We had record production in our containerboard mills through manufacturing excellence.
« We continued to drive for low cost.
» We improved asset utilization in our box plants through manufacturing excellence,

» We grew our box shipments by one percent through sales excellence (excluding shipments from
Performance Sheets, which was sold in August 2006).

A summary of our consolidated results from continuing operations follows:
For the Year

2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in millions, except per
share)
Consolidated revenUES. . . . .o\ . vttt e $3,926 $4,185 $3,843
Income from continuing operations .. ......................... 1,202 287 t8
Income from continuing operations, per diluted share. .. ... ........ 11.12 2.59 0.16
RO L e e 78% 134% 7.2%

In 2007, significant items affecting income from continuing operations included:

* In connection with our transformation plan, we recognized a $2.053 billion gain on sale of our
strategic timberland, and we incurred $109 million in expenses primarily related to early
repayment of debt, change of control agreements and other employee payments, and legal and
advisory services.

« We experienced higher prices for our corrugated packaging products; however, we experienced
lower prices and volumes for most of our building products.

* While we continue (0 see the benefit in our manufacturing operations from our initiatives to lower
costs, improve asset utilization, and increase operating efficiencies, the higher cost of recycled
fiber used at our containerboard mills offset some of the benefits.

* We recognized $120 million in charges. including $64 million as a result of the decision to cease
production permanently at our Mt, Jewett particleboard facility and $56 million for the settlement
of antitrust and other litigation.

In 2006, significant items affecting income from continuing operations included:
= We continued to see benefits in our manufacturing operations from our initiatives to lower costs.

improve asset utilization. and increase operating efficiencies.
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* We experienced improved markets for our corrugated packaging and building products, principally
gypsum wallboard and particieboard. We acquired our partner’s 50 percent interest in Standard
Gypsum LP in January.

» Charges related to facility closures and environmental remediation at a paper mill site totaled
$12 million.

* We realized one-time cash gains of 389 million related to the settlement of tax litigation and
$42 million related 10 the Softwood Lumber Agreement entered into between the U.S. and Canada.

In 2005, significant items affecting income from continuing operations included:

* We continued to see benefits in our manufacturing operations from our initiatives to lower costs,
improve asset utilization. and increase operating efficiencies.

* Charges related to facility closures were $58 million.

= In connection with the sale of our Canadian MDF facility. we recognized a one-time tax benefit of
$16 million.

* Hurricanes Katrina and Rita adversely affected segment operating income by about $11 million
due to production downtime und re-start expenses.

* Hurricane related losses and other unusual expenses related to litigation and the early repayment
of debt totaled $32 million.

Business Segments

As a result of the transformation plan. at year-end 2007, we have two ongoing business segments:
corrugated packaging and building preducts. Timber and timberland, which managed our timber resources, is
no longer an active segment as a result of the sale of our timberlands in fourth quarter 2007. Our financial
information has been reclassified to reflect the spun-off entitics, Forestar and Guaranty, as discontinued
operations.

Our operations are affected to varying degrees by supply and demand factors and economic conditions
including changes in new housing starts, home repair and remodeling activities. and the strength of the
U.S. dollar. Given the commodity nature of our manufactured products, we have little control over market
pricing or market demand.

Corrugated Packaging

We manufacture linerboard and corrugating medium that we convert into corrugated packaging and sell in
the open market. Our corrugated packaging segment revenues are principally derived from the sale of
corrugated packaging products and, to a lesser degree, from the sale of linerboard in the domestic and export
markets. We also own a 50 percent interest in Premier Boxboard Limited LLC, a joint venture that produces
light-weight gypsum facing paper and corrugating medium at a mill in Newport, Indiana.

A summary of our corrugated packaging results follows:
For the Year

2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in millions})
Revenues ... ... ... . . .. . $3044 $2977 $23825
Costs and eXPensSes . .. . ... ...ttt (2,757 (2.722)  (2,70%)
Segment operating inCome. . .. ... ... ... $ 287 § 255 % 120
Segment ROI .................... R 143%  12.5% 5.6%



Hurricanes Katrina and Rita adversely affected 2005 segment operating results by about $10 million

principally related to mill production downtime and re-start expenses at our Bogalusa, Louisiana and Orange,
Texas linerboard mills.

Fluctuations in product pricing, which includes freight and is net of discounts, and shipments are set forth
below:

Year over Year
Increase (Decrease)

2007 2006 2005

Corrugated packaging

AVETALE PIICES . L ot vttt et it e e e e 3% 6% 2%
Shipments, average week™ .. ... % % 2%
Industry shipments, average week™ . ... ... .. .. L % 1% 1%
Linerboard

AVEIage PriCES. . ... L. e 5% 22% (6)%
Shipments, inthousand ONS. . .. ... ... it e {7 46 (56)

@ Excluding the impact of the sale of Performance Sheets in August 2006, our shipments were up one per-

cent in 2007.

®  Source: Fibre Box Association

In 2007, corrugated packaging prices and linerboard prices moved higher as a result of price increases
implemented in 2006 and 2007. In 2006, corrugated packaging and linerboard prices moved higher reflecting
price increases implemented in late 2005 and in 2006.

Linerboard shipments to third parties were slightly lower than in 2006. Linerboard shipments and sales to
third parties increased in 2006 due to increased mill production.

Costs and expenses were up one percent in 2007 compared with 2006 and up one percent in 2006
compared with 2005. In 2007, higher raw material costs were partially offset by iower pension and
postretirement costs, $8 million in business interruption and other insurance proceeds primarily related 1o an
equipment outage and other operational issues at our mills that occurred in 2006, and cost reductions
attributable to the sale of Performance Sheets. Increased mill reliability and efficiency resulted in lower
maintenance costs and improved raw material yield and energy usage. In 2006, higher wood fiber and freight
costs were partially offset by lower recycled fiber, energy, and healthcare costs.

Fluctuations in our significant cost and expense components included:

Year over Year
Increase (Decrease)
2007 2006 2605

(Tn millions)

Wood fiber. . . .. e e $ 8 Sl §22
Recycled fiber . . ... oo 77 9 (6)
Energy, princtpally natural gas ... ... ... i (1) (8) 30
Freight .. ... . e 3 32 40
Depreciation . ... ... ... ... e e (1n N |
Health Care . ... i e e e e (1 3y (16)
Pension and postretirement. . ... ... e (12) (2) 3)

The costs of our wood and recycled fiber, energy, and freight fluctuate based on the market prices we pay
for these commodities. It is likely that these costs will continue to fluctuate in 2008. The decrease in
depreciation was principally due to the continued use of fully depreciated assets and the sale of Performance
Sheets in August 2006.
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Information about our converting facilities and mills follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005

Number of converting facilities (at yearend) . ..., ... ... ... ... ... .. .. 64 64 65
Corrugated packaging shipments, in milliontons . ...................... 34 34 34
Mill production, in million tons . . ... ..o i e 3.6 3.6 34
Percent mill production used internally . . .............. ... ... ... .o 2% 91% 92%
Percent of total fiber requirements sourced from recycled fiber . .. ... ... ... 6%  34% 36%
Corrugating medium purchases from our Premier Boxboard Limited LLC jeint

venture, inthousand tons . . ... .. ... L. L e e 53 85 68

Building Products

We manufacture lumber, gypsum wallboard, panicleboard. medium density fiberboard (MDF). and

fiberboard. Qur building products segment revenues are principally derived from sales of these products. We
also own a 50 percent interest in Del-Tin Fiber LLC. a joint venture that produces MDF at a facility in El
Dorado, Arkansas.

In 2006, we purchased our partner’s 50 percent interest in Standard Gypsum LP, a joint venture that

produced gypsum wallboard. Results of operations have been consolidated since the date of purchase.

A summary of our building products results follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
Actual Actual Actual Pro forma™

]

(Dollars in millions)

REVENUES . . ... . $806 §$1.119 $ 898 $1.095
Costs and exXpenses . . . ... .ttt (798) (898 (773 (938)
Segment operating income. . . ........ ... ... $ 8 § 221 §$125 $ 157
SegmentROI .. ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... .. 1.4%  371.7% 34.6% 43.5%
@ Pro forma to reflect the results of operations from Standard Gypsum LP as if the acquisition occurred a1
the beginning of 2005.
Fluctuation in product pricing, which includes freight and is net of discounts, and shipments are set forth
below:

Year over Year
Increase (Decrease)

2007 2006 2005

Lumber:
AVETUZE PIICES . . . o vttt e e s (13)% (16)% 5%
ShIpMENTS . . . . . e 1% 1% 1%
Gypsum wallboard:
AVERAge PriCeS . . . . . L. e 2NH% 26% 16%
Shipments . . . .. ... 26)% 132% 12%
Particleboard:
AVEIIEE PrICES . . . L o 2% 15% (1)% -
Shipments .. ... (% )% 8%
MDF:
AVETAZE PIiCES . . o o ottt i et e e e 1% 5% (1Y%
Shipments .. ... (5Y% (3% (20y%
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Demand for most products was down due to challenging market conditions in the housing industry. We

expect this trend to continue in 2008.

Segment operating income also includes our share of income from our gypsum wallboard joint venture

(in 2005) and MDF joint venture of $1 million in 2007, $3 million in 2006, and $28 million in 2005. The
operating results from the joint ventures generally fluctuate in relation to the price and shipmeat changes noted
above.

Costs and expenses were down 11 percent in 2007 compared with 2006, and up 16 percent in 2006

compared with 2005. The lower costs in 2007 were primarily driven by lower volumes. The increase in cost in
2006 is primarily attributable to the acquisition of Standard Gypsum LP in January 2006, partially offset by
lower wood fiber costs and cost reductions attributable to the sale of our Pembroke MDF facility in June
2005.

Fluctuations in our significant cost and expense components included:

Year over Year
Increase (Decrease)

2007 2006 2005

{In millions)

Wood fiber. ..o $(32) $(12) %19
Energy, principally natural gas . ... .. ... ... ... .. e (21) 16 13
Freight .. (12) 26 1t
Chemicals . . ... . e (5) (1) 14
Depreciation . .. ... ... | 9 3)
Health care . ... ... .. . | (1 ()
Pension and postretirement. . .. . ...t it e 1 3 2

The cost of our fiber. energy, freight, and chemicals fluctuates based on the market prices we pay for

these commodities. It is likely that these costs will continue to fluctuate in 2008.

Information about our converting and manufacturing facilities follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005

Number of converting and manufacturing facilities (at yearend). .. ... ...... 16 17 17
Average operating rates for all product lines excluding sold or closed facilities:

High . o e e 12% 106% 102%

oW, 59% 86% 91%
Gypsum facing paper purchases from our Premier Boxboard Limited LLC joint

venture, inthousand tons ... ... ... L o 42 68 71
Percent of gypsum facing paper supplied by our Premier Boxbourd Limited

LLC joint venwure . .. ... ... ... e 65% 6% 17%

Markets for our building products continue to be challenging. Production in our converling operations is

being reduced to match demand for our products. In December 2007, we permanently ceased production at
our Mt. Jewett particleboard manufacturing plant.

Timber and Timberland

Timber and timberland, which managed our timber resources, is no longer an active segment as a result

of the sale of timber and timberland in October 2007.
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A summary of our timber and timberland results follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
{Dollars in millions)

REVENUES . . . . i e e $ 76 $ 8 3120
Costs and BXPENSES. . . . o oottt e (11) (26) (48)
Segment operating income . . ... ... ... . $65 $§63 § 72
Segment ROL . . ... .. e 204% 19.5% 18.0%

) Reflects ten months of operating results.

In 2005, we sold about 7,000 acres of timber and timberland to a joint venture in which our former real
estate segment owned a 50 percent interest and an unrelated public company owned the other 50 percent. This
acreage was sold pursuant 1o the terms of a long-standing option agreement, which was about to expire. The
joint venture intended 10 hold the land for future development and sale. We recognized about half of the
$10 million gain in income in 2005 and recognized the remainder in 2007 when we spun-off our real estate
segment. As a result of Hurricane Rita, we recorded a $7 million loss due to damage to our timberland in
2005, which is not included in segment operating income.

Information about our timber harvest follows:
For the Year
2007 2006 2005

Timber harvest, in million tons:

Sawtimber. . . . ... e 2.1 2.6 24
Pulpwood . ... ... 29 34 33
50 60 87

@ Reflects ten months of operating results.

Income and Expenses Not Allocated to Segments

Unallocated income and expenses represent expenses managed on a company-wide basis and include
corporate general and administrative expense, share-based compensation, other operating and non-operating
income {expense), and interest income and expense.

The decrease in general and administrative expense in 2007 was principally due to a decrease in incentive
compensation. Incentive compensation fluctuates based on changes in ROL

Qur share-based compensation fluctuates because a significant portion of our share-bused awards are cash
based and are affected by changes in the market price of our common stock. Based on our current
expectations, it is likely that share-based compensation expense for 2008 will be in the range of $20 million 10
$30 million.
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Other operating income (expense) not allocated to business segments consists of;

For the Year
2007 2006 2005

(In miflions)
Transformation costs . . ... ... ... ... . e $ 69y $— §—
Closure and sale of converting and production facilities and sale of non-

SLFAEEIC ASSEUS « o o o ottt e (55) (4) 50)
Litigation. . ... .. e e e (56) 6y (13)
Environmental remediation. . .. ... . ... .. . e (D (8) 3
Softwood Lumber Agreement. .. ... .. ... .. 42 —
Hurricane related costs and, in 2006, related insurance proceeds . ......... 2 (16)

Other . . . — _ (3

1
$(188) & Si(é)

We continue our efforts to enhance return on investment by lowering costs, improving operating
efficiencies, and increasing asset utilization. As a result, we continue to review operations that are unable to
meel return objectives and determine appropriate courses of action, including possibly consolidating and
closing facilities and selling under-performing assets. In 2007, we permanently ceased production at our
particleboard plant in Mt Jewett, Pennsylvania and recognized a $64 million charge. primarily related to the
present value of remaining lease payments under our long-term operating lease of the plant and impairment of
the related equipment.

Also, in December 2007, we resolved most of the remaining claims regarding an alteged violation of
Section 1 of the Sherman Act and recognized a charge of $46 million. We are also defending two cases in
California state court alleging violations of that state’s on-duty meal break laws. In 2007, we seitled three
additional meal break cases.

In 2006, the U.S. and Canada entered into the Softwood Lumber Agreement, which provided for the
refund to domestic lumber producers of a portion of duties previously collected by the U.S. government. Qur
pertion of this refund was $42 million.

Other non-operating income (expense} includes $40 million of expenses associated with the early
repayment of debt in 2007 and a gain of $89 million related to the settlement of tax litigation in 2006,

Net interest income on financial assets and nonrecourse financial liabilities of special purpose entities
relates to interest income on the $2.38 billion of notes received from the sale of our timberland in October
2007 and interest expense on the $2.14 billion of borrowings secured by a pledge of the notes receivable in
December 2007. The notes receivable were contributed to and the borrowings were made by two wholly-
owned, bankruptcy-remote special purpose entities, which we consolidate for financial reporting purposes. The
borrowings are nonrecourse to us.

The change in interest expense in 2007 was due to lower average levels of debt outstanding compared
with 2006, At year-end 2007, we had $0.9 billion of debt with fixed interest rates that averaged 7.08 percent.
This compares with 51.4 billion of debt with fixed interest rates that averaged 7.02 percent and $0.2 billion of
debt with variable interest rates that averaged 5.88 percent at year-end 2006.

Income Taxes

Qur effective tax rate, which is income tax expense (benefit) as a percentage of income from continuing
operations before taxes, was 39 percent in 2007, 26 percent in 2006, and (64) percent in 2005. These rates
reflect in 2007, non-deducuble transformation related expenses, one-time tax benefit of $3 miilion related to
changes to the State of Texas margin tax and a $4 million benefit from the resolution of state tax matters; in
2006, one-time benefits resulting from settlement of tax litigation with the U.S. Government and the new State
of Texas margin tax; and in 2005, a one-time benefit related to the sale of a foreign subsidiary.

We anticipate that our effective tax rate in 2008 will approximate 40 percent.
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Discontinued Operations

On December 28, 2007, we spun off to our shareholders in tax free distributions, our real estate segment
and financial services segment, which included certain real estate and minerals activities in our timber and
timberland segment.

As a result, we report the results of operations of these segments as discontinued operations. Expenses
allocated to these discontinued operations included interest expense of $7 million in 2007, $4 million in 2006,
and none in 2005 and share-based compensation expense of $7 million in 2007, $8 million in 2006, and
$5 million in 2005.

In addition, on August 31, 2007 we sold our previously acquired chemical operations. We received cash
proceeds of $1 million and recognized a pre-tax loss of $6 million on the sale.

A summary of earnings from our discontinued operations follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

Real estate income before taxes . .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ... .. . ... $41 % 83 §59
Financial services income before taxes . .. ........ ... . ... 138 204 192
Chemical operations and other™. . . .. . ... ... .. ... .. . . (13) (2) 1
Income from discontinued operations before taxes. . .. ................ 166 285 252
INCOME LAX EXPENSE . . . . o ottt et e i et e (63) (104) 94)
Discontinued OPeralions . .. ......... ... ..t e $103  $ 181 $158

@ 2007 includes a $6 million charge for environmental remediation,

Average Shares Outstanding
Average shares outstanding and average diluted shares owstanding decreased in 2007, 2006, and 2005
due to the effects of share repurchases in 2006 and 2005.
Capital Resources and Liquidity
Sources and Uses of Cash
Cash from operations was $296 million in 2007, $780 million in 2006, and $508 million in 2005.

We operate in cyclical industries and our operating cash flows vary accordingly. Our principal operating
cash requirements are for compensation, wood and recycled fiber, energy, interest. and taxes. We experienced
improved pricing and shipments for most of our products in 2006 and 2005, but experienced deterioration in
pricing and volume for our building products in 2007 due to challenging conditions in the housing marker.
Working capital is subject to cyclical operating needs, the timing of collection of receivables and the payment
of payables and expenses and, to a lesser extent, to seasonal fluctuations in our operations.
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For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

We received cash from:

Operations . ... ... ... $ 296 $0649 § 508
Tax litigation settlement, net ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 0.ii... — 89 —
Softwood Lumber Agreement payments. ... ... ... .. .. ... ... — 42 —
Fromoperations ....... ... ... ... .. ... . ... . ... 296 780 508
Exercise of options and in 2003 the setilement of equity purchase
CONLIACTS .« o ottt e it et e e e e e i e 35 57 393
Nonrecourse borrowing secured by financial assets of special purpose
entities (net of costs of $4 million). .. ........ ... ... .. ..., 2,136 — —
Borrowings, met . ... ... — 40 13
Other .. e e e 36 64 45
Total sources . ... ... 2,503 941 959

We used cash to:
Reduce borrowings, net (including $38 million of debt tender

PIEMILUIN) . .ttt it e et i e e e e e e (780) — —
Return to shareholders through:
Dividends . ... ... . .. .. (1.212)  (108) (102)
Repurchase of common stock. .. ... ... ... . ... ... ...... 24)  (318) (527
Reinvest in the business through:
Capital expenditures . ... ... ... .., 237y  (204) (2200
Acquisition, joint ventures, and other .. . ... ... ... ... . ... .. 2D (149 (23)
Total USeS . . .. e e 2274y (779  (872)
Discontinued operations, net . . .. ... ... ... ... .. e {32) (132) (96)
Change in cash and cash equivalents . ... ....................... $ 197 $ 30 § 9

We issued 1,009,246 net shares of common stock in 2007; 1,736,335 net shares of common stock in
2006; and 1,833,688 net shares in 2005 10 employees exercising options. In addition, in 2005, we issued
10,875,739 shares of our common stock and received $345 million in cash in conjunction with the final
settlement of our Upper DECS®™ equity purchase contracts.

We paid cash dividends to shareholders of $11.37 per share in 2007 including a special dividend of
$10.25 per share, $1.00 per share in 2006, and $0.90 per share in 2005. On February 1, 2008, our Board of
Directors declared a regular quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share payable on March 14, 2008.

From February 2005 through year-end 2007, our Board of Directors approved repurchase programs
aggregating 29.0 million shares. As of year-end 2007, we had repurchased 22.4 million shares under these
programs. In 2007, we initiated no share purchases, but we settled $24 million of share purchases that were
initiated in fourth quarter 2006. As of year-end 2007, there are 6.6 million shares remaining under current
repurchase authorizations.

Capital expenditures and timberland reforestation were 111 percent of depreciation and amortization in
2007, 91 percent in 2006, and 101 percent in 2005. Most of the 2007 expenditures relate to initiatives to
increase reliability and efficiency at our linerboard mills and increase asset utilization in our converting
facilitics. Capital expenditures are expected to approximate $195 million in 2008, or about 97 percent of
expected 2008 depreciation and amortization.

In 2007, we reduced our outstunding debt by $742 million, principally with proceeds from the
transactions related to our transformation plan. In 2006, we used $150 million of our credit facilities to fund
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the purchase of the remaining 50 percent interest in Standard Gypsum LP. Following the purchase, we paid off
$56 million of the venture's long-term debt, of which $28 million was related to the purchased interest. In
2003, market conditions provided the opportunity to lengthen our debt maturity profile in a cost effeciive
manner. As a result, we issued $250 million of debt due in 2016 and $250 million of debt due in 2018. The
proceeds were used to refinance debt due in 2006 and 2007.

Liquidity and Contractual Obligations

At year-end 2007 our contractual obligations consist of:
Paymenits Due or Expiring by Year
Tota) 2008 2009-10 2011-12 Thereafter
(In millions)
Long-term debt (including current maturities)® .. & 855 §$ 13§ 35 $294 $ 513
Nonrecourse financial liabilities of special

purposes entities™. . ... ... o ... 2,140 — — — 2,140
Less. related financial assets of special purpose

entities™ . L (2.140) —_— — — (2.140)
Principal portion of capital lease obligations™ . . . 188 — — — 188
Less, related municipal bonds we own™ . .. .. (183) — — — (138)

Contractual interest payments on fixed- rate.
long-term debt and capital lease obligations,
net of interest on related municipal bonds we

(3 | 37 60 117 116 144
Operating leases™ . ...................... 222 38 61 40 83
Purchase obligations . ... ..... ... ... ... 3073 265 445 441 2,022
Other long-term liabilities™ . ... ... ......... 3 7 21 2 7

$4724  $383  $679 $893 32,769

@ pDenotes items included on our balance sheet.

® n 2007, we recorded an impairment charge related to a long-term operating lease. As a result, $60 miilion
present value of our future operating lease payments are included on our balance sheet, of which, $3 mil-
lion is in current liabilities and $57 million in other long-term liabilities.

© In 2007, we entered into a 20-year fiber supply agreement for pulpwood and a [2-year fiber supply agree-
ment for sawtimber, the terms of which are both subject 1o extension. These purchase obligations are val-
ued at year-end 2007 market prices, however, our actual future purchases will be at the then current
markel price.

Our sources of short-term funding are our operating cash flows and borrowings under our credit
agreements and accounts receivable securitization facility. Qur contractual obligations due in 2008 will likely
be repaid from our operating cash flow or from our unused borrowing capacity. At year-end 2007, we had
$1.067 billion in unused borrowing capacity under our committed credit agreements and accounts receivable
securitization facility:

Accounts
Committed Receivable
Credit Securitization
Agreements Facility Total

(I millions)
Commitled . . ... e $835 $247 $1.082
Less: borrowings and commitments . . ... ... ... ... (14) 1)) (15)
Unused borrowing capacity at year-end 2007 ... ... ........ 3821 $246 $1.067

Our committed credit agreements include a $750 million revolving credit facility that expires in 2011.
The remainder of the committed agreements cxpire between 2008 and 2010.

31




Our accounts receivable securitization facility expires in 2010. Under this facility, a wholly-owned,
bankruptcy-remote subsidiary purchases. on an on-going basis. substantially all of our trade receivables. As we
need funds. the subsidiary draws under its revolving credit agreement. pledges the trade receivables as
collateral, and remits the proceeds 1o us. In the event of liquidation of the subsidiary. its creditors would be
entitled to satisfy their claims from the subsidiary’s pledged receivables prior to distributions back to us. We
included this subsidiary in our consolidated financial statements.

Our debt agreements, accounts receivable securitization facility, and credit agreements contain terms,
conditions. and financial covenants customary for such agreements including minimum levels of interest
coverage and limitations on leverage. At year-end 2007, we had complied with the terms, conditions, and
financial covenants of these agreements. None of our credit agreements or the accounts receivable securitiza-
tion facility are restricted as to availability based on the ratings of our long-term debt. Under the terms of our
Senior Notes duc 2016 and Senior Notes due 2018, the interest rate on the notes automatically adjusts if our
long-term debt rating is decreased below investment grade by Moody's Investor Services, Inc. (Moody's) or
Standard and Poor’s Rating Services, a division of McGraw-Hill, Inc. (S&P). The interest rate on these notes
was increased 25 basis points during third quarter 2007 following a change in our long-term debt rating by
Moody's. In addition, as required by our operating lease agreements for our particleboard and MDF facilities
in Mt. Jewett. Pennsylvania, we provided an $11 million letter of credit to support a portion of our obligations
due to this change in our long-term debt rating. Our long-term debt is currently rated BBB- by S&P and Bal
by Moody's. At year-end 2007, property and equipment having a book value of $2 million were subject to
liens in connection with $14 million of debt.

Operating leases represent pre-tax obligations and include $146 million for the lease of particleboard and
MDF facilities in Mt. Jewett. Penasylvania, which expire in 2019. The rest of our operating lease obligations
are for facilities and equipment. As a result of an impairment charge in 2007, $60 million present value of our
operating lease obligations is included on our balance sheet. of which $3 million is in current liabilities and
$57 million is in other long-term liabilities.

In 2007, we received $2.38 billion in notes from the sale of timberland, which we contributed to two
wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote special purpose entities. The notes are secured by irrevocable letters of
credit und are due in 2027. The special purpose entities pledged the notes and irrevocable letters of credit to
secure $2.14 billion nonrecourse loans payable in 2027. In the event of liquidation of the special purpose
entities. these creditors would be entitled to satisfy their claims from the pledged notes and irrevocable letters
of credit prior to distributions back to us. We include these special purpose entities in our consoclidated
financial statements.

In the 1990°s, we entered into two sale-lease back transactions of production facilities with municipalities,
We entered into these transactions to mitigate property and similar taxes associated with these facilities. The
municipalities purchased these facilities from us for $188 million, our carrying value, and we leased the
facilities back from the municipalities under lease agreements, which expire in 2022 and 2025. Concurrently,
we purchased $188 million of interest-bearing bonds issued by these municipalities. The bond terms are
identical to the lease terms, are secured by payments under the capital lease obligations, and the municipalities
are obligated only to the extent the underlying lease payments are made by us. The interest rate implicit in the
leases is the same as the interest rate on the bonds. As a result, the present value of the capital lease
obligations is $188 million, the same as the principal amount of the bonds. Since there is no legal right of
offset. the $188 million of bonds are included in other assets and the $188 million present value of the capital
lease obligations are included in other long-term liabilities. There is no net effect from these transactions as
we arc in substance both the obligor on, and the holder of, the bonds.

Purchase obligations are market priced obligations principally for pulpwood, timber, and gypsum used in
our manufacturing and converting processes and for major committed capital expenditures.

We have other long-term liabilities, principally liabilities for pension and postretirement benefits,
unrecognized tax benefits, and deferred income taxes that are not included in the table because they do not
have scheduled malurities.
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At year-end 2007, the liability for pension benefits was $119 million and the liability for postretirement
benefits was $137 million. We expect our 2008 voluntary, discretionary contributions to our defined benefit
pension plan to approximate 2008 service cosl, which is estimated to be about $30 million. In addition, we
have amended our supplemental defined benefit pension plan to allow for lump-sum settlements at the time of
retirement. We offered a one-time window for our current retirces 1o take a lump-sum distribution in January
2008, We expect these lump-sum payments to aggregate $42 million in 2008. We also estimate that we will be
required to pay in the range of $17 million to $20 million per year over the next five years to fund payments
1o participants of our supplemental defined benefit plan and retiree health care claims. Please read Pension,
Postretirement Medical and Health Care Matters for additional information,

At year-end 2007, our net deferred income tax liability was $663 million, including $286 million of
alternative minimum tax credits related to the 2007 sale of our timberland. We do not expect any significant
changes in our deferred tax liability in 2008. We expect our cash tax rate in 2008 to be below 20 percent
compared with 15 percent in 2007. The cash tax rate is impacted by utilization of our alternative minimum tax
credits and deductions for 2008 payments associated with our 2007 transformation,

We have interest rate derivative instruments outstanding at year-end 200/7. These interest rate instruments
expire in 2008. They are non-exchange traded and are valued using either third-party resources or models. At
year-end 2007, the aggregate fair value of our interest rate instruments was a 31 million liability.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From time to time, we enter into off-balance sheet arrangements to facilitate our operating activities. At
year-end 2007, our off-balance sheet unfunded arrangements, excluding contractual interest payments, operat-
ing leases, and purchase and other obligations included in the table of contractual obligations, consisted of:

Expiring by Year
Total 2008 2009-10 2011-12 Thereafter
T (In millions)

Joint venture guarantees . .. ................... $70 %18
Performance bonds and recourse obligations . . .. . .. 36 56

$52
5126 $74  $52

I h T

I™h T
T

We participate in two joint ventures engaged in manufacturing and setling paper and building products.
Our partner in each of these ventures is a publicly-held company unrelated to us. At year-end 2007, these
ventures had $85 million in long-term debt and $6 million of debt included in current maturities, along with
various letters of credit. We guaranteed $70 million of the joint ventures’ debt service obligations and letters
of credil. Our joint venture partners also provided guarantees and letters of credit. Generally we would be
calted upon to fund the guarantees due to the lack of specific performance by the joint ventures, such as non-
payment of debt.

Performance bonds and recourse obligations are primarily for workers’ compensation and general liability
claims.

Pension, Postretirement Medical and Health Care Matters

Our non-cash defined benefit pension expense was $35 million in 2007, $46 million in 2006, and
$49 million in 2005. For the year 2008, we expect our non-cash defined benefit pension expense to be about
$37 million. We also expect a one-time expense of $15 million related to lump sum settlements of
supplemental benefits.

For accounting purposes, we measure the projected benefit obligation of our defined benefit plans and
value the plan assets as of year-end 2007 to determine the funded status. The funded status is included on our
balance sheet. At year-end 2007, the funded status of our defined benefit plans was a liability of $119 million
compared with a liability of $231 million at year-end 2006. The change was principally due to an increase in
the discount rate, a better than expected return on plan assets, and an increase in plan assets due in part to the
$60 million of voluntary. discretionary contributions we made in 2007, Unrecognized actuariat losses, which
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are included in accumulated other comprehensive tncome and principally represent the delayed recognition of
changes in the assumed discount rate and differences between expected and actual returns, were $166 million
at year-end 2007 and $253 million at year-end 2006. These losses will be recognized over the average
remaining service period of our current employees, which is about nine years. We expect about $5 million of
these losses will be recognized in 2008, compared with $14 million recognized in 2007.

We did not have any ERISA cash-funding requirement in 2007, and we expect our cash-funding
requirement to be minimal in 2008. We made voluntary, discretionary contributions of $60 million to the
defined benefit plan in 2007. We expect our 2008 voluntary, discretionary contributions to our defined benefit
plan to approximate 2008 service cost, which is estimated to be about $30 million. Passage of the Pension
Protection Act of 2006, which requires a minimum level of annual funding, is not expected to affect
significantly our annual cash contributions.

The benefits payable from our defined benefit plan are a series of fixed monthly retirement payments. On
an annual basis an actuarial assessment of the estimated amount and timing of these retirement payments is
performed. The actuarial estimate is subject to variability due to changes in key assumptions regarding future
wage inflation, participant mortality and other actuarial risks. Prior to the date of retirement. our obligation is
to accumulate funds in our qualified plan sufficient to meet these related benefit payments. The weighted
average timeframe of the retirement payments is generally in the 10-15 year range.

The benefit obligation, which is the present value of the estimated retirement payments, conceptually is
very similar to the fair value of a portfolio of long-term bonds. The funded status of our benefit obligation that
is matched by long-term bonds of similar duration should remain relatively unchanged even if long-term
interest rates change.

In the last two months of 2007, we transitioned to a more matched position between our assets and
liabilities in our qualified defined benefit plan. This action is expected to reduce the volatility of our defined
benefit expense and our funding requirements. As a result, our expected long-term rate of return for 2008
expense is 6.875 percent compared with the 2007 rate of 8 percent. The lower expected long-term rate of
return reflects the higher allocation of invested funds in fixed income securities that better match our defined
benefit obligation.

For accounting purposes we measure the postretirement medical plans projected benefit obligation as of
year-end 2007 to determine the funded status. At year-end 2007, the funded status of these plans was a
liability of $137 million compared with $135 million at year-end 2006.

About 26 percent of our employees participated in a consumer driven health plan in 2007 compared with
29 percent in 2006. In 2007, the total cost of providing health benefits was about $88 million of which we
incurred $57 million and our employees incurred $31 million. In 2006, the total cost of providing health
benefits was about $97 million of which we incurred $67 million and our employees incurred $30 million.

Energy and the Effects of Inflation

Energy costs decreased $22 million in 2007, increased $8 million in 2006, and increased $43 million in
2005. The decrease in 2007 is primarily attributable to reduced production because of the decreased demand
for our building products as a result of the declines in the housing industry. The increase in energy costs for
2006 is primarily attributable io the acquisition of Standard Gypsum LP in January 2006. Our energy costs
fluctuate based on the market prices we pay. We hedge very little of our energy needs. It is likely that these
costs will continue to fluctuate in 2008.

Inflationary increases in compensation and certain input costs such as fiber, energy and freight have had a
negative impact on our operating results, However, we have managed to partially offset the impact of inflation
through increased productivity. Our fixed assets are, and our timber and timberland were, carried at historical
costs. If carried at current replacement costs, depreciation expense and the cost of timber cut or timberland
sold would have been significantly higher than what we reported.
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Environmental Protection

Our operations are subject to federal, state, and local provisions regulating discharges into the
environment and otherwise related to the protection of the environment. Compliance with these provisions
requires us to invest substantial funds to modify facilities to assure compliance with applicable environmental
regulations. A more detailed discussion regarding our compliance with environmental regulation can be found
in Business — Environmental Regulation.

Litigation Matters

We are involved in various legal proceedings that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of doing
business. In our opinion, the possibility of a material loss from any of these proceedings is considered to be
remote, and we do not expect that the effect of these proceedings will be material to our financial position,
results of operations. or cash flow. It is possible, however, that charges related to these matters could be
significant to results of operations or cash flows in any one accounting period. A more detailed discussion
regarding our most significant litigation matters can be found in Legal Proceedings.
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Calculation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Year 2007
Return:
Segment operating income determined in accordance with

GAAP . .. . e

Expenses not allecated to segments:

General and administrative. . . ... .. ... .. .. ... ......
Share-based compensation . . ... ... . .. .

Investment:
Beginning of year total assets or segment assets determined in

accordance with GAAP . .. .. ... .. .. ... .. ... .. ....

Adjustments:

ROI

Current liabilities (excluding current portion of long-term
debty .. ...

Assets of discontinued operations . . .. .. ... ... ... ..

Municipal bonds related to capital leases included in other
ASSELS . . L

Year 2006
Return:
Segment operating income determined in accordance with

GAAP . .

Expenses not allocated to segments:

General and administrative. .. . ....................
Share-based compensation . . . ...... .. ... ...

Investment:
Beginning of year total assets or segment assets determined in

accordance with GAAP . ... ... ... ... .. .. .. ...

Adjustments:

ROI

Current liabilities (excluding current portion of long-term
debt) ...
Assets of discontinued operations . ... ..., ... ... ...
Municipal bonds related to capital leases included in other
ASSBIS . . L.
Acquisition of Standard Gypsum LP in January 2006 . . . ..

Year 2005
Return:
Segment operating income determined in accordance with

GAAP . .

Expenses not allocated to segments:

General and administrative. . . ... ... ... ... .. 0
Share-based compensation . . . .......... . ... ... ..

Investrnent:
Beginning of year total assets or segment assets determined in

accordance with GAAP . ... ... ... . ... .. ... . .....

Adjustments:

Current liabilities (excluding current portion of long-term
debt) . ...

Assets of discontinued operations . . ... ... .. ... . ...

Municipal bonds related to capital leases included in other
ASSEIS . . L. . e
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Corrugated  Building  Timber and
Consolidated Packaging Products  Timherland
(Dollars in millions)
$ 360 5 287 $ 8 $ 65
(100) N/A N/A N/A
(34) N/A N/A N/A
$ 226 § 287 $ 8 $ 65
$ 20474 $2,275 $638 5330
(550) 271) (76) (1)
(16,847) N/A N/A N/A
(188) N/A N/A N/A
$ 2.889 $2.004 $ 562 5319
7.8% 143% 1.4% 204%
$ 539 $ 255 $221 $ 63
(107) N/A N/A N/A
(3%) N/A N/A N/A
$ 394 $ 255 $221 $ 63
$ 21.630 52,308 $ 456 $333
(476) (269) (66) (10
{18,219) N/A N/A N/A
(188) NiA N/A N/A
196 N/A 196 NIA
5 2943 52,039 $ 586 $323
13.4% 12.5% 371.7% 19.5%
$ 317 $ 120 $125 $ 72
9 N/A N/A N/A
(21} N/A N/A N/A
b 205 $ 120 $125 $ 72
$ 20,144 32,448 $423 $ 409
(503) (323) (62) 9
(16,622) N/A N/A N/A
(188) N/A N/A N/A
$ 2,831 $2,125 5361 $ 400
7.2% 5.6% 34.6% 18.0%



Statistical and Other Data

Revenues and unit sales, excluding joint venture operations, follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues

Corrugated Packaging J

Corrugated packaging .. ... . ... i e $2905 52,841  $2,728
Linerboard . ... ... ... .. . ... 139 136 97

$3,044 352977  $2,825

Building Products

Pine lumber ... ... ... . . ... e $ 244 § 278 % 312
Particleboard. . . ... ... . . . . e 18] 214 195
Gypsum wallboard™ . ... ... .. 228 420 143
Medium density fiberboard™. ... ... .. ... 62 65 87
Fiberboard . ... ... e 52 72 83
Other ... ... 39 70 78

§ 206 3LI119 § 898

Timber and Timberland

Fiberand other . . .. ... .. .. ... . .. . $ 76 % 8 § 120
Unit sales

Corrugated Packaging

Corrugated packaging, thousands of tons . ... ................... 3,351 3,371 3.437
Linerboard, thousands of tons .. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. 303 310 264

3,654 3,681 3,701

Building Products

Pine lumber, million board feet . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... .. .. ... 838 829 777
Particleboard, million square feet. . .. ......................... 506 609 640
Gypsum wallboard, million square feet™ . ... ... ... . ... ....... 1,475 1,990 859
Medium density fiberboard, million square feet™ . . ... ... .. ...... 135 142 202
Fiberboard, million square feet ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .......... 288 362 431

@ Comparisons of revenue and unit sales of gypsum wallboard are affected by the 2006 acquisition of our
partner’s interest in Standard Gypsum LP. Comparisons for MDF are affected by the sale of the Pembroke
facility in second quarter 2005.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our current level of interest rate risk is primarily due to our variable-rate, long-term debt and financial
assets and nonrecourse financial liabilities of special purpose entities. The following table illustrates the
estimated effect on our pre-tax income of immediate, parallel, and sustained shifts in interest rates for the next
12 months at year-end 2007, with comparative year-end 2006 information. These estimates assume that debt
reductions from contractual payments will be replaced with short-term, variable-rate debt; however, that may
not be the financing alternative we choose to follow.

Increase (Decrease) in
Income Before Taxes

Change in

Interest Rates At Year-End 2007 At Year-End 2006
(In millions)

B2l e e e $(4) $(3)

10D (2) (2)

=1 e e 2 2

A 4 4

Interest rate changes impact earnings due to the resulting increase or decrease in the cost of our variable-
rate, long-term debt. The interest rate sensitivity change from year-end 2006 is due to a decrease in variable-
rate debt. Additionally. changes in interest rates will affect the value of our interest rate swap agreements
{currently $50 million notional amount). We believe that any changes in the value of these agreements would
not be significant.

Foreign Currency Risk
We do not have significant exposure to foreign currency fluctuations on our financial instruments because
most of these instruments are denominated in U.S. dollars.

Commodity Price Risk

From time to time we use commodity derivative instruments to mitigate our exposure to changes in
product pricing and manufacturing costs. These instruments cover a small portion of our volume and range in
duration from three months to three years. Considering the fair value of these instruments at year-end 2007,
we believe the potential loss in fair value resulting from a hypothetical ten percent change in the underlying
commodity prices would not be significant.
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MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Temple-Inland is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequale internal
control over financial reporting. Management has designed our internal control over financial reporting to
provide reasonable assurance that our published financial statements are fairly presented, in all material
respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Management is required by paragraph {c) of Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, to assess the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of each year end. In
making this assessment, management used the fnternal Control — Integrated Framewaork issued in July 1994
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COSO).

Management conducted the required assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of year end. Based upon this assessment, management believes that our internal control over
financial reporting is effective as of year-end 2007.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our financial
statements included in this Form 10-K, has also audited our internal control over financial reporting. Their
attestation report follows this report of management.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBRLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Temple-Inland Inc.:

We have audited Temple-Inland Inc’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 29, 2007
based on criteria established in lnternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Temple-Inland Inc.'s management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting including in the accompanying Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting. assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating cifectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also. projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 10 future periods are subject 10 the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Temple-Inland Inc. and subsidiaries maintained. in all material respects, eftective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 29, 2007 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Temple-Inland Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 29, 2007 and our report dated
February 25, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

Austin, Texas
February 235, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Temple-Inland Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Temple-Iniand Inc. and subsidiarics as
of December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 29, 2007. These
financial staternents are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An aundit includes
examining, on a lest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evalvating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Temple-Iniand Inc. and subsidiaries at December 29, 2007 and December 30,
2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 29, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepled accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, in 2006, the Company changed its
method of accounting for the funded status of defined pension and other postretirement benefit plans, and in
2007 the Company changed the measurement date for measuring the funded status of defined pension and
other postretirement benefit plans. Additionally, during 2007 the Company changed its method of accounting
for and disclosure of uncertainties associated with certain aspects of measurement and recognition of income
1axes.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Temple-inland Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 29, 2007, based on criteria established in Iternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 25, 2008
expressed an ungualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

Austin, Texas
February 25, 2008
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TEMPLE-INLAND INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

2007 2006
(In millions)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash eqUivalents . . . .. ... L s § 227 § 30
Trade receivables. net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $14 in 2007 and $14 in 2006 ... ... .. 433 452
Inventories:
Work in process and finished goods. .. ... .. .. 116 109
Raw Maleriils . . o oo e e e e e 224 211
Supplies and other . . . .. L L e e e 121 115
Total INVERROTIES - < - o v v e o it e e e e e et e e e et e e e e e e e e 461 435
Defermed taX AS8€L . . . o vt ittt e e e e e e e 99 61
Prepaid expenses and other. . . .. .. . . L e 57 60
Total CUITENl BSSEIS . . . . o oottt et e e e e e }.277 1.038
Timber and Timberland. . . .. . ... ... . e e e —-— 315
Property and Equipment
Land and buildings . . . .. ... e e 641 637
Machinery and equipment . . ... .. e 3423 3,400
CONSIMUCHON B0 PIOSTESS. « & v o vttt s et et e et et e e st a e e e 120 82
Less allowances for depreciation . . . . ... it i e e {2.552) (2491)
Total property and eqUIPMENT . . .. ... Lt e e 1,632 1.628
Financial Assets of Special Purpose Entities . .. ..... ... ... ... ... .. . ... . ... .. .. 2,383 —
Goodwill . . . ... e e 365 365
Assets of Discontinued Operations . .. ... .. .. .. L e e — 16,847
Other ASSElS . . . .. e e e 285 281
TOTAL ASSE TS . . e e e $5942  $20474
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
ACCOUNS PaYAblE . . L . $ 244 § 229
Accrued employee compensation and benefits. . .. ... ... L ool 108 126
Accrued IMIETESE . . .. L e 31 32
ACCTUEd ProPerty LAXES . . oo vttt ot et e e e e e e e e e L1 19
Accrued INCOME LAXES . . . oot ittt ettt e e e e e 258 —
Other accrued eXPeNSeS . . . . .. ... e e e 173 129
Current portion of long-term debt . . . .. ... . . e 3 13
Current portion of pension and postretirement benefits. .. ... ... ... . . i 62 15
Total current Habilities . . . . . . ... .. e 890 563
Long-Term Debt . .. ... e e 852 1,584
Nonrecourse Financial Liabilities of Special Purpose Entities. . . . .. ... ................ 2.140 —
Deferred Tax Liability . . . ... .. e 762 244
Liability for Pension Benefits . . . ... .. .. .. ... . e 71 229
Liability for Postretirement Benefits. . . . . .. .. ... ... ... . . ... .. . ... 123 122
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations . .. ......... ... ... ... . . i — 15.291
Other Long-Term Liabilities . . ... ... . ... . . . i 324 252
TOTAL LIABILITIES . . . .. e e e e 5.162 18.285
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock — par vatue 31 per share: authorized 25,000,000 shares; none issued .. .......... — —
Common stock — par value $1 per share: authorized 200,000,000 shares: issued 123.605.344 shares
in 2007 and 2006, including shares held inthe treasury . ... ... ... .. ... ... . .., 124 124
Additional paid-in capital . . ... ... .. e 475 468
Accumulated other comprehensive 1085 .. .. ... e (139) (191)
Retained earnings . . . .. . ..o e s 987 2,501
Cost of shares held in the treasury: 17.464,189 shares in 2007 and 18,754,907 shares in 2006 . ... .. (667) (713)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ... ... ... i i e 780 2,189
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY .. .......... ... .. . oo $5942  $20.474

Please read the notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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TEMPLE-INLAND INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Year

2007 2006 2005
(In millions)
NET REVENUES. . ... e $3926 $4,185 § 3,843
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Costof sales .. ... .. 3,390y (3.476) (3,382)
Selling . . o e e (112) (107) (97)
General and adminisirative . . ... ... . L o (197N (214) (198)
Gain on sale of timberland . . . .. ... ... ... L L 2,053 — —
Other operating income (€Xpense). . . .. oo vttt it (189) 32 (46)
(1,835) (3,765) (3,723)
OPERATING INCOME. .. .. ... ... i e 2,091 420 120
Other non-operating income (EXPENSE) . ..ottt ittt e (35) 93 —
Interest income on financial assets of special purpose entities .. ......... 19 — —
Interest expense on nonrecourse financial liabilities of special purpose
L 1T 12 ) — —
Interestexpense ondebt . . . ... ... .. (11 (123) (109)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES ... .. 1,955 390 11
Income 1ax eXPensSe . . .. .\ttt (753) (103) 7
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS . .. ... ... ... ..... 1,202 287 138
Discontinued Operations . . .. ... ...t e e 103 181 158
NET INCOME . . ... e e $1305 § 468 $ 176
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
BasiC o o e e 106.0 108.8 (12,6
Diluted. . ... e 108.1 110.8 114.5
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic:
Income from continuing Operations . . ......... .. it $I11133 8 264 § 016
Discontinued operations . ... ... . ... ..l 0.98 1.66 1.40
Net IMCOMIE. .« . o ot e e et e e $1231 § 430 §$ 1.56
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations . . . ....... ... .., $11.12  § 259 § 0.6
Discontinued operations . .......... i (.96 1.63 1.38
Net INCOME. L . o oottt e e e i e $1208 $ 422 § 154

Please read the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEMPLE-INLAND INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year

2007 2006 2005
{In millions)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATIONS
Net income . ... e $1305 3% 468 § 176
Adjustments:
Gainon sale of timberland . . . . .. ... .. e (2,053) —_ —
IMpPairmMEnts . .. . .o e e e 64 — 24
Lossonearly paymentof debt . ... ... .. ... .. .. ... 40 —_ —
Lossonsaleof Pembroke ... ... ... ... . . ... .. .. ... . ... ... — — 25
Depreciation and amortization . . ... ... .. .. 214 225 218
Non-cash share-based compensation . ............. .. .. .. ... .. . ... 39 38 26
Non-cash pension and postretirtement eXpense. . . .. .. ... u v it e n. .. 44 56 58
Cash contribution to pension and postretirement plans . .. .. .................. (80 (76) (76)
Deferred InCOmME 1aXES . . . ot i e e 435 34 40
Earnings of Joint venures. . . .. ... ... . e e (5) (11 39
Dividends from joint ventures. . .. ... ... ... .. ... 8 12 43
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . .. ... ... ... . i — — 7
Other . . e 14 18 16
Changes in:
Receivables . .. ... e 19 (28) (16)
IV eMIOmIES .« . . . {30) (10} —
Accounts payable and accrued expenses. . .. ... ... e 274 32 4
Prepaid expenses and other. . .. .. ... ... L L 8 22 2
296 780 508
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING
Capital expenditures . . ... ... e e e (225) (187) {192)
Reforestation and net acquisition of timber and timberland .. . ... . .............. 12) (1n (28)
Saleof imberland . . . ... ... .. .. e 210 — —
Sales of non-strategic assets and operations and proceeds from sale of property and
CQUIPIMENE . . .t e e e e 24 64 45
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and joint ventures . ... ... ... ... . . ... (5) {148) (5)
Oher. . e e 4 1 2
(235} (287) (178)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) FINANCING
Nonrecourse borrowing secured by financial assets of special purpose entities . . ... ... 2,140 e —
Payments of debt . . ... .. ... . .. (567) 47 (502)
Borrowings under accounts receivable securitization facility. net. . ... ............. (163) 133 15
Borrowings under revolving credit facility, nev. . ... ... ... . o (12) (56) —
Change inbook overdrafts . . ... ... . .. . .. 13 2 (13)
Fees associated with debt. . . . ... .. . . . 42) — —
Other additions todebt . . . . ... ... .. . ... e — 10 500
Cash dividends paid to shareholders . . . ... ... ... ... . . ... .. ... (1,212) (108) (102)
Repurchase of common stock. . . . .. ... . L . (24) (318) (327
Exercise of Options . . . .. ... . e e 20 47 48
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . . . .. ... ... .. .. . .. .. e 15 10 —
Settlement of equity purchase contracts. . . ... ... ... ... ... — —_ 345
Other. .. e e e — (4) (7)
168 (331) (243)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities . .. ...... ... ... ........... (33 255 78
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities. . . . ....... .. . ............. (619) 1.056 (1.785)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities . .. ........ _.............. 620 (1.443) 1,611
(32) (132} (96}
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . . . ... ............ ... — — —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ... ..., ... .. ............ 197 30 (9)
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of year . . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... ... .... 30 — 9
Cash and cash equivalents at yearend . . ... ... ... .. ... .. ... . . $ 227 § 30 —

Please read the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEMPLE-INLAND INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at year-end 2004 . . . . ... ... .. ... ... . ...,
Comprehensive income, net of tax:

Netincome . . . ... .. .. e
Unrealized gains/(losses) on securities .. ...............
Defined benefits. . ... ... ... ... ... ...
Foreign currency translation adjustment . .. .............
Derivative financial instruments. . ... .. ... ... .........

Comprehensive income for the year 2005 . . . ... ... .. ...,

Dividends paid on common stock — $0.90 per share . . .. ... ..

Share-based compensation. net of distributions —

ST8. T4 shares. . ... ... i e
Exercise of stock options — 1,833,688 net shares . ... . ... ..
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . . .. ...........
Settlement of equity purchase contracts — 10,875,739 shares . . .
Repurchase of common stock — 14,500,000 shares . .. .. .. ..

Balance at year-end 2005 . . .. .. .. ... ... L.

Comprehensive income, net of tax:

Nel ICOmE . . .. ... o e e et e e e e
Unrealized gains/(losses) on securities ... ... ... ...
Defined benefits. . ... ... ... .. .. . ...
Foreign currency translation adjustment .. .. ... ... .. ...
Derivative financial instruments . . . .. .................

Comprehensive income for the year 2006 . ... ........ ...

Dividends paid on common stock — $1.00 per share . . .. ... ..
Share-based compensation. net of distributions —

10,289 shares ... . v r i e e e

Exercise of stock options — 1.736.335 net shares . . . .. .. .. ..
Tax benefit from exercise of stockoptions . .. . ............

Repurchase of common stock — 7,850,000 shares. .. ........

Adoption of SFAS No. 158, netoftax . . ... ..............
Balance at year-end 2006 . ., . ... ... ... . L.

Comprehensive income, net of tax:

Net INCOME . . . . .. o e e it e e i e
Unrealized gains/{losses) on securities .. ... ... ... ..
Defined benefits. . . ... ... ... . ... ... .. ... .. ...
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . ... ..........
Derivative financial instruments. . . ... ................

Comprehensive income for the year 2007 . ... ... .. ... ..

Regular dividends paid on common stock — $1.12 per share . . .
Special dividend paid on common stock — $10.25 per share . . .

Share-based compensation, net of distributions —

2BLA4T2shares. .. ... .
Exercise of stock options — 1,009,246 net shares .. .. .......

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . .. .............
Adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 48, netof tax. . .. ... ...

Adoption of measurement provisions of SFAS No. 158, net of
K ot e e

Spin-off of Forestar . . . .. ... ... .. ... .. .. .. . o,
Spin-offof Guaranty . ... ...... ... .. .

Balance at year-end 2007 . . .. .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ...

Common

Stock

Additional

Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated

Other

Comprchensive Retained  Treasury
Income / (Loss) Earnings  Stock Total

$123

$350

(In millions)

$(192)

(3
3
4
|

m

$ 2,067 $(241) $ 2.107

176 — 176

(o2y — (102)

—_ 19 32
— 48 48

— 269 345
— (336) _ (536)

$(189)

52,141 $(441) 5 2.080

28
(15)
10

(N

57

(2)
1

57

468 — 468
— — (D
—_ - 57
- - @)

1

523
(108y —  (108)

— (b 27
— 6 47
- — 10
— (333)  (333)
— — (37}

$468

S(190)

$ 2,501 $(713) § 2,189

(%)
53

35

1305 — 1305
- — (36)
- - s3

(118) —  (118)
(L094)  — (1,004

— 16 18
— 30 20
— — 15

5 — 5

(3) — (3)
(434) — (434)
(1.173) — (1,138)

$(139)

3 987 $(667) 3 780

Please read the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TEMPLE-INLAND INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

On December 28. 2007, we completed our transformation plan that was approved by our board of
directors in February 2007. A summary of the significant elements of the transformation plan follows:

* On Octeber 31, 2007, we sold 1.55 million acres of timberland for $2.38 billion to an investment entity
affiliated with The Campbell Group. LLC and recognized a pre-tax gain of $2.053 billion, which is
included in other operating income. The acreage sold consisted of 1.38 million acres owned in fee and
leases covering 175,000 acres. The total consideration consisted almost entirely of notes due in 2027,
which are secured by irrevocable letters of credit issued by independent financial institutions. We also
entered into a 20-year fiber supply agreement for pulpwood and a 12-year fiber supply agreement for
sawtimber. Both agreements are at market prices, and are subject to extension.

= We contributed the notes and irrevocable letters of credit received in connection with the sale of our
timberlands to two wholly-owned. bankruptcy-remote special purpose entities. On December 3, 2007,
the special purpose entities pledged the notes receivable from the sale of timberland as collaterat for
$2.14 billion nonrecourse loans payable 2027. The net cash proceeds, after alternative minimum and
other taxes related to sale of the umberland and transaction costs, were $1.8 billion. We used
$1.1 billion of the net cash proceeds to pay a $10.25 per share special cash dividend to our shareholders
in December 2007, The remaining $700 million was vsed to reduce debt. We have concluded that we
are the primary beneficiary of these special purpose entities. As a result we include these special
purpose entities in our consolidated financial statements,

* On December 28, 2007, we completed the spin-off of our real estate segment, Forestar Real Estate
Group Inc. (Forestar), and our financial services segment, Guaranty Financial Group Inc. (Guaranty).
These spin-offs were effected through tax-free distributions of one share of Forestar and one share of
Guaranty for every three shares of Temple-Inland common stock. These spin-offs reduced retained
earnings by $1.6 billion. Our financial information has been reclassified to reflect Forestar and
Guaranty as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

The transformation plan significantly changed our capital structure and operations. At year-end 2007,
Temple-Inland is a manufacturing company focused on corrugated packaging and building products.

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Temple-Inland Inc., its subsidiaries and
special purpose and variable interest entities of which we are the primary beneficiary. We account for our
investment in other entities in which we have significant influence over operaticns and financial policies using
the equity method.

We prepare our financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which
require us to make estimates and assumptions about future events. Actual results can, and probably will, differ
from those we currently estimate. We eliminate all material intercompany accounts and transactions.

Qur fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to December 31, which from time to time means that a fiscal
year will include 53 weeks instead of 52 weeks. All of the periods presented had 52 weeks. Fiscal year 2007
ended on December 29, 2007, fiscal year 2006 ended on December 30, 2006, and fiscal year 2005 ended on
December 31, 2005.

We translate the balance sheets of our international operations where the functional currency is other than
the U.S. dollar into U.S. dolfars at year-end exchange rates. We include adjustments resulting from financial
statement translation in other comprehensive income.
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TEMPLE-INLAND INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Asset Retirement Obligations and Environmental Obligations

We recognize legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets when the obligation is
incurred. We record the estimated present value of the retirement obligation and increase the carrying value of
the long-lived asset by a like amount. Over time, we accrete or increase the liability to its settlement value and
we depreciate or decrease the asset 1o zero. When we settle the obligation we recognize a gain or loss for any
difference between the settlement amount and the then recorded obligation. At year-end 2005, we adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asser
Retirement Obligarions an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143. This interpretation clarified that the term
“conditional asset retirement obligation” refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement obligation
in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional on future events that may or may not be
within our control. As a result, even though the timing and/or method of settlement may be uncertain, the
retirement obligation should be recognized if it can be reasonably estimated. The effect on earnings and
financial position of adopting this interpretation was not significant.

Qur asset retirement obligations consist principally of costs to remediate tandfills we operate. The present
value of these asset retirement obligations was $13 million at year-end 2007 and $16 million at year-end 2006
and is included in other long-term liabilities. Accretion expense was less than $1 million in 2007, $1 million
in 2006 and less than $1 million in 2005.

Many of our manufacturing facilities contain asbestos and lead paint. We are currently not required to
remove any of these materials, but we could be required to do so in the future if we were to demolish or
undertake major renovations of these facilities. At this time, we have no such plans, which makes it
impractical to estimate the fair value of any related asset retirement obligations. Accordingly, a liability has
not been recognized for these asset retirement obligations.

In addition, we record environmental remediation liabilities on an undiscounted basis when environmental
assessments or remediation are probable and we can reasonably estimate the cost. We adjust these liabilities as
further information is obtained or circumstances change. Accrued remediation liabilities were $13 million at
year-end 2007, of which $11 million is included in other accrued expenses and $2 million in other long-term
liabilities. At year-end 2006, accrued remediation liabilities were $13 million of which $9 million were
included in other accrued expenses, $2 million in other long-term liabilities, and $2 million in liabilities of
discontinued operations.

Capitalized Saoftware

We capitalize purchased software costs as well as the direct internal and external costs associated with
software we develop for our own use, We amortize these capitalized costs using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives ranging from three to seven years. The carrying value of capitalized software was
$35 million at year-end 2007 and $46 million at year-end 2006 and is included in other assets. The
amortization of these capitalized costs was $15 million in 2007, $17 million in 2006, and $15 millien in 2005
and is included in cost of sales and general and administrative expense.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and other short-term instruments with original maturities of three
months or less.

Derivatives

We use, from time to time and then only to a limited degree, derivative instruments to mitigate our
exposure 1o risks associated with changes in interest rates, product pricing and manufacturing costs. We do not
enter into derivatives for trading purposes. We defer and include in other comprehensive income changes in
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the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges until the hedged transactions are
cormpleted. At that time, we recognize these deferred gains or losses in income. We recognize the ineffective
portion of these hedges, which is not significant, in income. We recognize changes in the fair value of
derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges in income, as well as changes in the fair value of the
hedged item. We recognize changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are not designated as
hedges in income. We include the carrying value of derivative instruments in other assets and other liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments are designated and documented as hedges at the inception of the contract
and on an ongoing basis. We assess and measure the effectiveness of derivative instruments, using correlation
ratios, at inception and on an ongoing basis. If a derivative instrument ceases to be highly effective as a hedge
or if the derivative instrument is terminated or settled prior (o the expected maturity or realization of the
underlying item, we stop using hedge accounting.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In the absence of quoted market prices, we estimate the fair value of financial instruments. Our estimates
are affected by the assumptions we make, including the discount rate and estimates of the amount and timing
of future cash flows. Where these fair values approximate carrying value, no separate disclosure of fair value
is shown.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We do not amortize goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets. Instead, we measure these assets
for impairment based on estimated fair values at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators
exist. We perform the annual impairment measurement as of the beginning of the fourth guarter of each year.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over their estimated lives.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets held for use for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that their
carrying value may not be recoverable. [mpairment exists if the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is not
recoverable from the undiscounted cash flows expected from its use and eventual disposition. We determine
the amount of the impairment loss by comparing the carrying value of the long-lived asset to its estimated fair
value. In the absence of quoted market prices, we determine estimated fair value generally based on the
present value of future probability weighted cash flows expected from the use and eventual disposition of the
long-lived asset. We carry assets held for sale at the lower of carrying value or estimated fair value less costs
to sell.

Income Taxes

We provide deferred income taxes using current tax rates for temporary differences between the financial
accounting carrying value of assets and liabilities and their tax accounting carrying values.-We recognize and
value income tax exposures for the various taxing jurisdictions where we operale based on Lax laws, tax
elections, commonly accepted tax positions. and management estimates. We include tax penalties and interest
in income tax expense.

In 2007, we adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes. As a result of the implementation, we increased assets by $2 million, reduced liabilities by $3 million,
and increased beginning retained earnings by $5 million. We also reclassified $11 million from deferred
income taxes to other tong-term liabilities.
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Inventories

We carry inventories at the lower of cost or market, We determine cost using the average cost method,
which approximates the first-in, first-out method.

In 2006, we began applying the guidance in Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-13,
Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty. This guidance requires that non-
monetary exchanges of similar inventory be valued at the carrying value of the inventory given up instead of
the fair value of the inventory received and is applied to exchange agreements entered into or renewed
subsequent to first quarter 2006. Our corrugated packaging segment enters into these agreements that generally
represent the exchange of linerboard we manufacture for corrugated medium manufactured by others. We
include these exchanges in cost of sales. The effect of applying this guidance was t¢ increase cost of sales
$2 million in 2007 and $7 million in 2006.

Pension and Postretirement Plans

At year-end 2006 we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 158, Emplovers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, requiring the funded status of defined
benefit plans be shown on the balance sheet. In 2007, we transitioned to a year-end measurement date for
valuing plan assets and obligations for our defined benefit and postreticement benefit plans as further required
by SFAS No. 158. Previously we used a measurement date of September 30. Upon transition, we reduced
2007 beginning shareholders® equity by $5 million, representing the net periodic benefit cost of the three
month period from the last measurement date to year-end 2006, net of tax, and increased liability for pension
benefits.

The following table shows the effect of applying SFAS No. 158 on individual line items in the 2006
consolidated balance shect:

Before Application Adjustments After Application
of SFAS No. 158 Increase (Decrease)  of SFAS No. 158

{In millions)

Prepaid expenses andother . . . . ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 76 $(16) $ 60
Deferred tax fability . ... ... ... ... .. ... ..., ... 279 (35) 244
Liability for pension benefits . . .. ... .. ............ 136 73 229
Liability for postretirement benefits. . ., ., . .......... 119 3 122
Total liabilities . . . ... ... ... ... . 18,244 4] 18,285
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... ... .. ... .. 134 57 191
Total shareholders” equity . . ... ... ... ......... 2,246 57 2,189
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Property and Equipment

We carry property and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation. We capitalize the cost of
significant additions and improvements, and we expense the cost of repairs and maintenance, including
planned major maintenance. We capitalize interest costs incurred on major construction projects. We depreciate
these ussets using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Carrying
Value At
Estimated Year-End
Classification Useful Lives 2007
(In millions)
Land and fand improvements . . . .. ... ... N/A $ 40
Buildings and building improvemenis . . ... ... L e 10 10 40 vears 298

Machinery and equipment:

Paper machines . . . ... . . e 510 25 years 632
ML EQUIPIMENL . . . e e s 510 25 years 79
Converting equipPIent . . . . o o oo vt m e e e e e e e e 3 to 20} years 410
Other production equipment . . . . ..o o ou e e 510 25 years 5
Transportation eqUIPMENL . . ... .. oo e 3 to 20 years 28
Office and other eqUIPMENt . . .. . . L e 3 1o 5 years 20
Construction I ProfIESS . . . .. .t i vttt e e e e N/A 120
$1,632

We include in property and equipment $57 million of assets subject to capital leases. We depreciate these
assets and any improvements to leased assets using the straight-line method over the shorter of their lease term
or their estimated useful lives. We expense operating leases ratably over the lease term.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize product revenue upon passage of title, which occurs at the time the product is delivered to
the customer, the price is fixed and determinable, and we are reasonably sure of collection. Other revenue,
which is not significant, is recognized when the service has been performed, the value is determinable, and we
are reasonably sure of collection.

We include the amounts billed to customers for shipping in net revenues and the related costs in cost of
sales,

We exclude from revenue, amounts we collect from customers that represent sales tax or other taxes that
are based on the sale. These amounts are included in other accrued expenses until paid.

Share-Based Compensation

Beginning January 2006, we adopted the modified prospective application method contained in
SFAS No. 123 (revised December 2004), Share-Based Paviment (SFAS 123(R)), 10 account for share-based
payments. As a result, we apply this pronouncement to new awards or modifications of existing awards in
2006 and thereafter. We had been expensing over the service period the fair value of share-based compensation
awards granted, modified or settled in 2003 through 2005, using the prospective transition method of
accounting contained in SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,
an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123. The principal effects of adopting SFAS 123(R) are:

» ‘The fair value of awards granted to retirement eligible employees is expensed at the date of grant
because our stock option awards and some of our other awards provide for accelerated or continued
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vesting upon retirement. Previously, the fair value of these awards was expensed over the expected
service period. This change accelerated about $6 million of expense into first quarter 2006 related to
awards granted in 2006. We will continue 10 expense the fair value of awards granted prior to 2006
over the expected service period.

« Forfeitures over the expected term of the award are estimated at the date of grant and the estimates
adjusted to reflect actual subsequent forfeitures. Previously, we had reflected forfeitures as they
occurred. The effect of this change was not significant.

* Tax benefils recognized as a result of the exercise of employee stock options are classified as a
financing cash flow. Prior to 2006, we classified these tax benefits as an operating cash flow.

* The fair value of unvested outstanding options at the beginning of first quarter 2006 will be expensed
over the remaining service period. The effect of this change was not significant because we began
accounting for options at fair value determined at the date of grant in 2003. As a result, this applied
only to our unvested outstanding options granted prior to 2003.

Adoption of this new pronouncement did not change the methodology we use to determine the fair value
of our share-based compensation arrangements. We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model for
stock options and the grant date or period-end fair value of our common stock for all other awards.

Prior to 2003, we used the intrinsic value method in accounting for stock options. As a result, no share-
based compensation expense related to those stock options granted prior to 2003 is reflected in net income for
2005. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the fair value
methed had been applied to all options granted.

For the Year
2005

(In millions,
except per share)

Netincome, as reported. . . . oo e e $176
Add: Share-based compensation expense, net of related tax effects, included in the determination of

reported netincome™ . L L L 19
Deduct: Total share-based compensation expense, net of related tax effects, determined under the fair valve

based method for all awards™ . . . ... _{23)
Pro forma DetinCOME . . . . .. e 172

Eamings per share

Basic,as reported . . . . . .. ... e 31.56
Basic, proforma. . .. .. .. e 31.53
Diluted, as reported . . . . .« . oo e 51.54
Diluted, pro forma . . . . oo e $1.50

) Includes treasury stock contributions to fulfitl our obligation for matching contributions to our 401(k)

plans of $3 million, net of related tax effects.

Special Purpose and Variable Interest Entities

We account for special purpose and variable interest entities using FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised
December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities an Interpreiation of ARB No. 51. This interpreta-
tion provides guidance for determining whether an entity is a variable interest entity and which beneficiary of
the varizble interest entity, if any, should consolidate the variable interest entity,
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Timber and Timberland
In 2007, we sold all of our strategic timber and timberland.

We carried timber and timberland at cost, less the cost of timber cut. We capitalized the costs we paid to
purchase timber and timberland, and we allocated that cost to the timber, timberland, and if applicable,
mineral rights, based on estimated relative fair values, which in the case of significant purchases, we based on
third-party appraisals.

We expensed the cost of timber cut based on the relationship of the timber carrying value 1o the estimated
volume of recoverable timber multiplied by the amount of timber cut. We included the cost of timber cut in
depreciation expense. We determined the estimated volume of recoverable timber using statistical information
and other data related to growth rates and yields gathered from physical observations, models, and other
information gathering iechniques. Changes in yields were generally due to adjustments in growth rates and
similar matiers and were accounted for prospectively as changes in estimates. We capitalized reforestation
costs incurred in developing viable seedling plantations (up to two years from planting). such as site
preparation, seedlings, planting, fertilization, insect and wildlife control. and herbicide application. We
expensed all other costs, such as property taxes and costs of forest management personnel, as incurred. Once
the seedling plantation was viable, we expensed all costs to maintain the viable plantations, such as
fertilization, herbicide application, insect and wildlife control, and thinning, as incurred. We capitalized costs
incurred to initially build roads as land improvements. and we expensed as incurred costs to maintain these
roads.

We determined the carrying value of timberland sold using the area method by county, which was based
on the relationship of carrying value of timberland to total acres of timberland multiplied by acres of
timberland sold. We determined the carrying value of timber sold by the average cost method, which was
based on the relationship of timber carrying value to the estimate of recoverable timber muliiplied by the
amount of timber sold.

Pending Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations — This new standard requires most identifiable assets,
liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and goodwill acquired in a business combination to be recorded at full fair
value. The new standard also changes the approach to determining the purchase price; the accounting for
acquisition cost; and the accounting practices for acquired contingencies, restructuring costs, long-lived assets,
in-process research and development, share-based payment awards, indemnification costs, and tax benefits.
SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for any business combination occurring after our year-end 2008.

SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measures — This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This guidance applies to fair
value measurements already required or permitted and will be effective for our first quarter 2008. We do not
expect that adoption will have a significant effect on our earnings or financial position.

SFAS No. 159, The Fair Vaiue Options for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — This standard
permits the election of fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement method for many financial assets
and liabilities. Subsequent changes in the fair value would be recognized in earnings as they occur. Electing
the fair value option requires the disclosure of the fair value of affected assets and liabilities on the balance
sheet or in the notes to the financial statements. SFAS No. 159 is effective for our first quarter 2008. We do
not anticipate electing this option. '

SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Starements — This new standard
specifies that noncontrolling interests be reported as a part of equily, not as a liability or other item outside of
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equity. SFAS No. 160 is effective for our first quarter 2009. Based on our current understanding, we do not
expect that adoption will have a significant effect on our earnings or financial position,

Note 2 — Acquisitions

In 2006, we purchased for $150 million our partner’s 50 percent interest in Standard Gypsum LP, which
manufactured and sold gypsum wallboard. We also paid off the partnership’s $56 million credit agreement, of
which $28 million related to the purchased interest. We financed this purchase with borrowings under our
revolving credit facilities. We believe that this acquisition will allow us to continue to generale earnings and
returns from our gypsum wallboard operations, as these operations are low cost and are located near fast
egrowing markets.

We no longer maintain Standard Gypsum as a separate legal entity and include all of its assets and
liabilities, results of operations, and cash flows in our consolidated financial statements. Previously we had
accounted for our interest in Standard Gypsum using the equity method. We allocated the purchase price to
the 50 percent of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on our estimates of their fair value at the
date of acquisition. We based these estimates of fair values on independent appraisals and other information.
Goodwill is allocated to the building products segment, and we anticipate that all of the goodwill will be
deductible for income tax purposes. The other 50 percent of the assets and liabilities, which we already owned,
were included at their carrying value.

A summary of the net assets at the date of acquisition {50 percent at fair value and 50 percent at carrying
value) follows:

Total
{In millions)

CUITENML A5SBIS. v v v v e e v st e bt e e e s m e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 35
Property and eqUIPIMENL . . . . . L Lo e e 74
Goodwill. . . e e e e e e 129
0T T 238
Current Liabilities . . . . e e e e e e e {13)
Current portion of long-term debt. . . . . .. .. .. L (56)
Total Habilities . . . . . o e e e e (69)
Net assets ot date of acqUISIION . . . . . oL e e 3169

Unaudited pro forma information assuming this acquisition and related financing had occurred at the
beginning of 2005 would have resulted in revenues of $4.04 billion, income from continuing operations of
$32 million, and income from continuing operations per diluted share of $0.28.

We derived these pro forma results by adjusting for the effects of the purchase price allocations and
financing described above. These pro forma results are not necessarily an indication of what would have
occurred if the acquisition and financing had been completed at the beginning of 2005 and are not intended to
be indicative of future results.

Note 3 — Joint Ventures

Qur significant manufacturing joint venture investments at year-end 2007 are: Premier Boxboard Limited
LLC, a 50 percent owned venture that produces gypsum facing paper and corrugating medium in Newport,
Indiana , and Del-Tin Fiber LLC, a 50 percent owned venture that preduces medium density fiberboard in El
Dorado, Arkansas.. The joint venture partner in each of these ventures is a publicly-held company unrelated to
us. In January 2006, we purchased our partner’s 30 percent interest in Standard Gypsum LP. As a result,
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beginning in 2006, we include all of its assets and liabilities, results of operations, and cash flow in our
consolidated financial statements. Please read Note 2 for additional information.

Combined summarized financial information for these joint ventures follows:
At Year-End

2007 2006
{In millions)
CUITEINL SSBIS . . L 0 vt v vt e e et e it e e e e e e e e e e $20 %26
6L 234 21
Current liabilities ™ . . . . 25 24
Long-term debt . . . . . 85 90
BqUIlY . oo e 124 127
Our investment in jeint ventures:
50 percent share in JoINt vemtures’ GquItY . . . . i i e e $62 §63
Unamortized basis difference . .« . . ... e _330) (G
Investment in joinl VENIUFES. . . . .. ... ... $32 §31

@ Includes current maturities of debt of $6 million in 2007 and $6 million in 2006,

For the Year
2007 2006 2005

(In millions)
NETEEVEIUSE . . . . oottt et ettt e e et e e e e $200 %192 $378
Operating iNCOME .+ o . . ittt e e e i e e e e e e s 13 24 85
Bamings . . .. o e e 3 17 74

Qur equity in carnings:

30 percent share of €aMINEs. . o .. L L e $ 3 $ 8 $37
Amortization of basis difference . . . .. ... L L 2 3 2
Equity in earnings of joint ventures . . .. ... ... ... $ 5 $11 339

||
|
ll

We and our joint venture partners contribute to these ventures and receive distributions from them equally.
In 2007, we contributed $4 million to these ventures and received $8 million in distributions, in 2006 we
contributed $3 million and received $12 million in distributions, and in 2005 we contributed $5 million and
reccived $43 million in distributions.

Our investment in these joint ventures is included in other assets, and our equity in their earnings is
included in other operating income (expense). Our investment in and our equity in their earnings differs from
our 50 percent interest due to the difference between the fair value of net assets contributed to the Premier
Boxboard joint venture and our carrying value of those assets. When we contributed the Newport, Indiana mill
and its associated debt to the Premier Boxboard joint venture in 2000, the fair value of the net assets exceeded
our carrying value by $55 million. The joint venture recorded the contributed assets at fair value. We did not
recognize a gain as a result of the contribution of assets, thus creating a difference in the carrying value of our
investment and our underlying equity in the venture. We are amortizing this difference over the same period as
the underlying mill assets are being depreciated by the joint venture to reflect depreciation of the mill as if it
were consolidated by us at its historical carrying value. At year-end 2007, the unamortized basis difference
was $3¢ million.

We provide marketing services to the Del-Tin joint venture, and prior to 2006, we provided marketing
and management services Lo the Standard Gypsum joint venture. Fees for these services were $2 million in
2007, $3 million in 2006, and $8 million in 2005 and are included as a reduction of cost of sales and selling
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expense. We also purchase, at market rates, finished products from the Premier Boxboard joint venture, which
aggregated $47 million in 2007, $62 million in 2006, and $40 million in 2005,

In 2005, we sold about 7,000 acres of timber and timberland to a joint venture in which our former real
estate segment owned 50 percent and an unrelated public company owned the other 50 percent. This acreage
was sold pursuant to the terms of a long-stunding option agreement, which was about to expire. The joint
venture intended to hold the land for future development and sale. We recognized about half of the $10 million
gain in income in 2005 and recognized the remainder in 2007 when we spun off our real estate segment.

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisis of:
At Year-End

(In millions)
Borrowings under bank credit agreements — average interest rate of 6.26% in 2007 and 5.89% in 2006 ... .. $§— § 12
Accounts receivable securitization facility — average interest rate of 5.44% in 2007 and 5.05% in 2006 ... .. | 164
6.75% Notes, payable in 2009 . . .. .. 14 300
7.875% Senior Noles, payable in 2012, netof discounts. . .. ... .. o 285 498
6.375% Senior Notes, pavable in 2016, netof discounts. . .. .. ... ... L 249 249
6.625% Senior Notes, payable in 2018. netof discounts. . . .. ..., ... .. ... .. . . ... ... 248 248
Revenue bonds, payable 2007 through 2024 — average interest rate of 5.41% in 2007 and 5.75% in 2006 . . . . 5t 65
Other indebtedness due through 2027 — average interest rate of 7.89% in 2007 and 6.99% in 2006 . ... .. .. 1 61
855 1,597
Less current portion of leng-termidebt . ... .. Lo __Q) _(13]
3852  §$1.584

At year-end 2007, we had $835 million in committed credit agreecments. These committed agreements
include a $750 million credit agreement that expires in 2011. The remaining $85 million of credit agreements
expire between 2008 and 2010. At year-end 2007, our unused capacity under these facilities was $821 million.

At year-end 2007, we had a $250 million accounts receivable securitization facility that expires in 2010,
Under this facility, a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote subsidiary purchases, on an on-going basis, substan-
tially all our trade receivables. As we need funds, the subsidiary draws under its revolving credit arrangement,
pledges the trade receivables as collateral. and remits the proceeds 10 us. In the event of liquidation of the
subsidiary, its creditors would be entitled to satisfy their claims from the subsidiary’s assets prior to
distributions back to us. At year-end 2007, the subsidiary owned $361 million in net trade receivables against
which it had borrowed $1 million under this facility. At year-end 2007. the unused capacity under this facility
was $246 million. We include this subsidiary in our consolidated financial siatements.

Maturities of our debt during the next five years are (in millions): 2008 — $3; 2009 — $33; 2010 — $2:
2011 — $11; 2012 — $293; and thereafter — $513. We have classified $10 million of 2008 stated maturities
as long-term based on our intent and ability to refinance them on a long-term basis.

In December 2007, we completed a cash tender offer for $286 million of 6.75% Notes payable in 2009
and $213 million of 7.875% Senior Notes payable in 2012. We incurred $40 miilion in costs related (o these
tender offers, which was included in other non-operating (income) expense.

In December 2005, we completed a cash tender offer for $425 million of debt. We incurred $6 million in
costs related to this tender offer. which was included in other non-operating (income) expense.
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We capitalized and deducted from interest expense interest incurred on major construction and informa-
tion technology projects of 31 million in 2007, $1 million in 2006, and $1 million in 2005. We paid interest of
$125 million in 2007, $106 million in 2006, and $109 million in 2005.

Note 5 — Financial Assets and Nonrecourse Financial Liabilities of Special Purpose Entities

In October 2007, we received $2.38 billion in notes from the sale of 1.55 million acres of timberland.
which we contributed to two wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote special purpose entities. The notes are secured
by irrevocable letters of credit, are due in 2027. and require quarterly interest payments based on variable
interest rates that reset quarterly (4.98 percent at year-end 2007).

In December 2007, the special purpose entities pledged the notes and irrevocable letters of credit to
secure $2.14 billion nonrecourse loans payable in 2027. These borrowings require quarterly interest payments
based on variable interest rates that reset quarterly (5.67 percent at year-end 2007).

We include these special purpose entities in our consolidated financial statements.

Note 6 — Capital Stock

From February 2005 through year-end 2007, our Board of Directors approved repurchase programs
aggregating 29.0 million shares. As of year-end 2007, we had repurchased 22.4 million shares under these
programs. In 2007, we initiated no share purchases , but we settled $24 million of share purchases that were
initiated in fourth quarter 2006. As of year-end 2007, there are 6.6 million shares remaining under current
repurchase authorizations.

Pursuant to the Shareholder Rights Plan, each share of common stock outstanding is coupled with one-
quarter of a preferred stock purchase right (Right). Each Right entitles our shareholders to purchase, under
certain conditions, one one-hundredth of a share of newly issued Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock
at an exercise price of $200. Rights will be exercisable only if someone acquires beneficial ownership of
20 percent or more of our common shares or commences a tender or exchange offer. upon consummation of
which they would beneficially own 25 percent or more of our common shares. We will generally be entitled to
redeem the Rights at $0.01 per Right at any time until the 10th business day following public anncuncement
that a 20 percent position has been acquired. The Rights will expire on February 20, 2009,

Please read Note 9 for information about additiona!l shares of common stock that could be issued under
terms of our share-based compensation plans.
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Note 7 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The components of and changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were:

Unrealized
Gains (Losses) Foreign
on Available-  Defined Currency
For-Sale Benefit  Translation Derivative
Securities Plans Adjustment  Instruments  Total
(In millions)

Balance at beginning of year 2005. . . ... ... .. ... .. $5 517D 5(20) $— 3(192)
Changes during the year. .. ........ . ... . .... 4) 6 4 8} 5
Deferred taxes onchanges .. .. .......... .. ... 1 (3} — = 2)

Netchange for 2005 .. ... ... ........ ... _ 3 3 _ 4 D __ 3

Balance at year-end 2005 . ... ... L L L 52 S(168} $(22) w) $(189)
Changes during the year. . . .. ........ ... ..... n 95 (2) 1 93
Deferred taxes on changes . .. ... . .......... — (38) — — (38)

Net change for 2006 ... ... .............. ¢)] 57 (2) 1 55
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of deferred taxes of
5 — _ (5T = = _ (57

Balance at year-end 2006 . ... ........ ... ..., §1 $(168) $(24) $— $191)
Changes during the year. . . .. ... ... ... ... ... (56) 85 — — 29
Deferred taxes onchanges .. ... .. ... .. ... .. _20 (32) — = 12)

Net change for 2007 . ... ... ... ... ... ..... (36) 53 — — 17
Spin-offof Guaranty . ... ......... ... ........ _3 — = P 335
Balance at year-end 2007 .. ... ... $— $(515) $(24) §— $(139)

Note 8 — Pension and Postretirement Plans

The annual expense of our benefit plans consists of:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

401 (Kymatching plan . . .. ... e 517 $16 $16
Defimed benefil. . . . .ot e e e e e 46 49

Postretirement medical . . . . . . ... e e e e 9 8

35
_8
S0 ST ST

I

Our 401 (k) matching plan covers substantially all employees and is fully funded.

QOur defined benefit plan covers substantially all salaried and hourly employees. Salaried and nonunion
hourly employee benefits are based on compensation and years of service, while unien hourly plans are based
on negotiated benefits and years of service. Our policy is to fund our qualified defined benefit plan on an
actuarial basis to accumulate assets sufficient to meet the benefits (o be paid in accordance with ERISA
requirements. However, from time to time we may make voluntary, discretionary contributions. Our supple-
mental defined benefit plan is unfunded.

Our postretirement medical plan provides medical benefits to eligible salaried and hourly employees who
begin drawing retirement benefits immediately after termination of employment. Qur postretirement plan
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provides for medical coverage, including a prescription drug subsidy, for certain participants. Our postretire-

ment plan is funded to the extent of benefit payments.

Additional information about our defined benefit and postretirement medical plans follows.

Obligations and Funded Status

Beginning in 2007, we measure the defined benefit and postretirement medical plans benefit obligation,
value plan assets, and determine funded status and annual expense at year end. Prior to 2007, we used
September 30 as our measurement date. The projected benefit obligation of our defined benefit plan represents
the present value of benefits earned adjusted for projected future compensation increases to the date of
retirement. The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of our postretirement benefits plan represents
the present value of benefits attributable to employee service periods. The projected benefit obligation and the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation are coltectively referred to as benefit obligation. The fair value
of plan assets represents the fair value, generally market value at the measurement date, of all plan assets. The
funded status for the plans represents the difference between the benefit obligation and the fair value of the

plan assets.

A summary of the changes in the benefit obligation, plan assets, and funded status follows:

For the Year

Defined Benefits

Postretirement
Qualified Supplemental Total Benefits
2007 2006 2991 % 2007 2006 2007 2006
(In millions)

Benefit obligation — beginning of valuation peried . ... .. $(1,284) S$(1,300)  $(56) $(51) $(1,340) $(1.351) $(139) $(155)
Service cosl. . .. oot {32) N [§3] (1) (33) (28) (2) (2)
Interest €OSt. . . .. .. (943 1€2)) L) (93] (98} {73 (10 {8}
Plan amendments . ... ... .. e — (1) — _— - [4)] — _
Acwarial gain (loss) .. ... ... . ... ... . .. 16 51 (4) 4) 12 47 {3) 11
Benefispaid by the plan . . ... .. ... ... . ... . ... 84 o4 6 2 90 66 21 18
Participant contributions . . . .. . ... ... ... L., — — - = — —_— {4) (3)
Benefit obligation — end of valuation period .. ........ L3100 (28 (5% (36)  (1.369)  (1,340) (137 _(339)
Fair value of plan assets — beginning of valuation period . . 1.094 1,004 — — 1,094 1.004 — —
Actual returm - . ... L. e 165 94 — — 165 94 — -
Benefits paid by theplan . .. ... ... . ... . ... ... .. (84) (64) (6) (2) (90} (66) 21) (19
Contributions we made. . . . ... ... .., . ... 75 60 6 2 81 62 17 16
Participant contributions . . . ., .. ... ... .. eeon. . — - = _— — — 4 3
Fair value of plan assets — end of valuation period . . .. .. 1.250 Loy - - 1.250 1,094 — —
Funded status — end of valuation period . . .. ......... (60) sy (59  (56) (1P (246) (137) (139
Contributions we made after the annual measurement date. . — 15 - = — 15 — 4
Funded status at year-end . . ... ... ... .. oo $ 60 5 (175 $(59 $G56) § (19 $ (231} $03D $035)
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Assets and (liabilities) included in the consolidated balance sheet and a reconciliation to funded status
follows:

At Year-End
Defined Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006
(In millions}

Liability/funded statis. . . . ..o s (119  $(231) 30137  $(135)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Unrecognized NELIOSS . . . .o oot $166 $253 5 21 519
Unamortized prior Service coSt . . . . . . .. L e 13 16 (13) (16}

Additional Information

The accumulated benefit obligation of our defined benefit plan represents the present value of benefits
earned without regard to projected future compensation increases. Our defined benefit plans have accumulated
benelit obligations in excess of plan assets as follows:

At Year-End
2007 2006
{In millions)

Projected benefit obligation . . . . . . L e e e e e $(1,369)  $(1.34)
Accumulated benefit obligation . . . . ... .. $(1.305)  $(1.267)
Fair value of plan assets . . . . .. . L e e 1.250 1.094
Contributions we made after the annual measurement date . . . .. . ... ... L e —_ 15
Excess of accumulated benefit obligation over fair value of planassets. . . ... ... ..ottt $ (55 5% (I158)

Excess of accumulated benefit obligation over fair value of plan assets consists of:
Qualified Plan. . . . . oo e $ M $ o
Supplemental plan . . . . ... e (54) (50)
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Components of Net Periodic Benefit Expense and Other Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive

Income
For the Year
Postretirement
Defined Benehts Benefits
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
(In millions)
Net periodic benefit expense:
Service costs — benefits eammed during the period . . . ... ... ... ... . Ll $27 $22 $25 §1 $2 $2
Interest cost on benefit obligation . . ... ... ... ... .. ... .., .. 78 73 72 8 8
Expected return on plan assels . . .. L e (85) 78 {72) — —_ —
Amortization of prior ServiCe COSIS. . . . o vt e 2 2 2 (2} (2) (2)
Amortization of actuarial net loss .. ... ... L _ 14 _22 _2 | 1 =
Total net periodic benefit expense™ . . . .. ... L. L 36 47 50 8 9 8
Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income, pre-tax. - . .. .. ... ..o [£1U)] 93) _(&) _ 5 = —
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expense and other comprehensive income. pre-
- S $(54) $(48) S 44 $13 $9 58
(a)

Includes amounts allocated to discontinued operations of $1 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005.

We estimate that our 2008 net periodic pension expense will be about $37 million. In addition, we expect

a one-time expense of $15 million in 2008 related to lump-sum settlements of supplemental benefits. The

2008 net periodic pension expense includes $5 million of net loss and $6 million of prior service cost that will
be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss. We estimate that our 2008 net periodic postretire-

ment expense will be about $8 million, which includes $1 million of net loss that will be amortized from

accumulated other comprehensive loss and a credit of 32 mitlion for prior service cost that will be amortized

from a gain component of the net accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Assumptions

The assumptions we used to determine defined benefit obligations were:

Defined Postretirement

Benefits Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006

DHSCOUNT FAtE . . . o . e e e e e e e 6.125%  6.00% 6.125%  6.00%

Rate of compensation InCrease . .. ... ... ... .. e 370%  3.80% — —

The assumptions we used to determine annual net periodic benefit expense were:

Postretirement
Delined Benefits Benefits

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Discount rate. . . ., . . oo e e 6.00% 5.50% 6.00% 6.00% 550% 6.00%
Expected retun on plan ssets . . ... ... ... e 8.00% 8.00% 8.50% — — -
Rate of compensation INCrease . . .. . ...ttt i e e it 3.80% 3.70% 3.10% — — —

The discount rate is used to determine the present value of the benefit obligations. To arrive at this rate

for 2007, we used the December one-month average of the Moody’s AA corporate bond rate adjusted to

reflect the effect of compounding and for 2006, we used the September one-month average. We believe that

this rate is a reasonable proxy for the rate necessary to accumulate funds required to pay the benefits when

due.
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The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is an assumption we make reflecting the anticipated
weighted average rate of earnings on the plan assets over the long-term. To arrive at this rate. we developed
estimates of the key components underlying capital asset returns including: market-based estimates of inflation,
real risk-free rates of return, yield curve structure, credit risk premiums, and equity risk premiums. As
appropriate, these components were used to develop benchmark estimates of expected long-term rates of return
for each asset class, which were portfolio weighted. Our actual return on plan assets was 9.8 percent in 2007,
10.0 percent in 2006, and 15.0 percent in 2005.

We used the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Tables to determine benefit obligations and annual defined
benefit expense.

The assumed health care cost trend rates we used to determine the expense of the postretirement benefit
plans were:

For the Year

2007 2006
Health care trend rate assumed forthe next year. . . .. .. ... .. 9.0% R0%
Rate o which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (ultimate trend rate) . . .. ... .. ... . ... 45% 4.5%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate . . . . . .. ... . e e 2014 2013

These assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
postretirement benefit plans. For example, a one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend
rates would have the following effect:

1 Percentage 1 Percentage
Point Increase  Point Decrease

{In millions)

Increase (decrease) in:

Total service and interest COSE COMPONERLS .+« v v vt v vt v v v e e s e e e $1 (1)
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation . .. .. ... . o oL 1 %
Plan Assets

Our defined benefit investment strategies have been developed as part of a comprehensive asset/liability
management process that considers the interaction between both assets and liabilities of the plan. These
strategies consider not only the expected risk and returns on plan assets, but also the detailed actuarial
projections of liabilities as well as plan-level objectives such as projected contributions, expense, and funded
status.

In prior years, our principal pension investment strategies included asset allocation and active asset
management. The range of target asset allocations was determined after giving consideration to the expected
retuns of each asset chass, the expected variability or volatility of the asset class returns over time, and the
complementary nature or correlation of the asset classes within the portfolio. The strategy also employed an
active management approach for the portfolio. Each asset class was managed by one or more external money
managers with the objective of generating returns, net of management fees that exceed market-based
benchmarks.

In the last two months of 2007, we made significant changes to our asset allocation to a more matched
position between our assets and liabilities in our qualified defined benefit plan. This action is expected to
reduce the volatility of our defined benefit expense and our funding requirements. As shown in the following
table, we have moved to an 80 percent asset allocation of debt securities. This portfolio of debt securities has
a duration that we believe reasonably approximates our benefit obligation. The remaining 20 percent asset
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allocation (15 percenl equity securities; 5 percent real estate) provides market exposure to help mitigate the
effects of inflation risk, mortality risk and actuarial risk.

The defined benefit plan weighted-average asset allocations and the range of target allocations follow:

Percentage
of
Range of Plan Assets
Target at
Allocations Year-End

2007 2006 2007 2006

Asset category:

Debt secunilies . .. . .. L e e e 78-88% 33-37% 80% 35%
Equity securities . . . . . ... 10-15% 50-61% 15 39
Real estale . . . . o 0-7% 0-7% 5 _6

Equity securities include 591,896 shares of Temple-tnland common stock totaling $12 million or one
percent of total plan assets at year-end 2007 and $31 million or three percent of total plan assets as of the
2006 measurement date,

Cash Flows

We expect our 2008 voluntary, discretionary contributions to our defined benefit plan to approximate
2008 service cost, which is estimated to be about $30 million. We have no minimum 2008 funding
requirement under ERISA. Beginning in 2008, benefits earned under the supplemental defined benefit plan
will be paid upon retirement or when the employee terminates. In addition, existing retirees were given the
option to receive, in January 2008, a lump-sum settlement of supplemental benefits earned. We expect to make
lump-sum settlement payments of $42 million in 2008,

The postretirement benefit plan is not subject to minimun regulatory funding requirements. Since the
postretirement benefit plans are unfunded, the expected $13 million contribution represents the estimated
health claims to be paid for plan participants, net of retiree contributions in 2008.

At year-end 2007, the plans are expected to make the following benefit payments over the next ten years:

Defined Benefits

Postretirement
Qualified  Supplemental Benefits
(In millions)
2008 . e $72 $49 $13
2009 e e e 75 6 12
2000 L e e e e e e e 78 6 i2
7 82 5 12
L 85 5 12
20032007 L 470 17 56

@ Includes $42 million in lump-sum settlements in the supplemental plan.

Note 9 — Share-Based Compensation

We have shareholder approved share-based compensation plans that permit awards to key employees and
non-employee directors in the form of restricted or performance units, restricted stock, or options to purchase
shares of our common stock. As a result of the spin-off of Forestar and Guaranty. all outstanding share-based
awards were equitably adjusted into three separate awards: one related 10 Temple-Inland common stock, one
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related to Forestar common stock, and one related to Guaranty common stock. The adjustment was made so
that immediately following the spin-off, the number of shares relating to each award were adjusted to reflect
the distribution ratios and, for options, the per share option exercise price of the original award. was
proportionally allocated between Temple-Inland, Forestar, and Guaranty awards based on relative per share
trading prices of their common stock immediately following the spin-off. All awards issued as part of this
adjustment and the Temple-Inland awards will continue to be subject to their original vesting schedules.
Share-based compensation expense on awards held by employees of Temple-Inland will be based on the
original grant date fair value for share settled awards, the original grant date Black-Scholes-Merten value for
stock option awards, and the sum of the period-end market prices (adjusted for the distribution ratios) of the
three companies stock for cash settled awards. After the spin-off, Forestar and Guaranty employees no longer
participate in our share-based compensation plans.

We generally grant awards annually in February, and we use treasury stock to fulfill awards settled in
common stock and stock option exercises. A summary of these plans follows:

Restricted or performance units

Restricted or performance units generally have a three-year term; vest after three years from the date of
grant or the attainment of stated RO1 based performance goals, generally measured over a three-year period;
and are settled in cash or common stock as determined on the date of grant. The restricted and performance
units provide for accelerated vesting upon retirement, death, disability, or if there is a change in control. We
also have director awards and bonus deferral plans that can be settled in cash or stock, A summary of activity
for 2007 follows:

Weighted Average Aggregate

Grant Date Fair Current
Units Value per Unit Value
(In thousands) (In millions)
Not vested beginning of 2007 . . . ... ... ... oL 1,408 $39
Granmted . ... e 949 52
Vested . .o (539 30
Forfeited . .. ... .o e (16) 44
Awards held by Forestar employees a1 date of spin-off . . .. ... ... .. (121) 50
Awards held by Guaranty employees at date of spin-off . . ... ... ... _(265) 49
Not vested year-end 2007, . . . . ... ... .. ... Ll 1416 48 $43
Not vested year-end 2007 10 be settled in cash and subject to:
Time vesting requiTements . . . . ... .ot oo i e Tt $22
Performance requirements . ... .o v v uin v i i i e e v i i arn e __7_05 21

1416 $43
The fair value of units vested was $26 million in 2007, less than $1 million in 2006, and $1 million in
2005. The fair value of units vested and to be settled in cash was $26 million at year-end 2007 of which
$4 million is included in other current liabilities and $22 million is included in long-term liabilities. The fair
value of awards settled in cash in 2007 was less than $1 million. There were no awards settled in cash in 2006
or 2005.

Restricted stock

Restricted stock awards generally vest after three 1o six years, and provide for accelerated vesting upon
retirement, death, disability, or if there is a change in control. Compensation costs are recognized ratably over
the service period. There were no restricted stock awards granted in 2007. There were 435,600 restricted stock
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awards outstanding at year-end 2007 with a weighted average grant date fair value of $33 per share and an
aggregate current value of $13 million or $30 per share. The fair value of restricted stock vested in 2007 was
$4 million.

Stock options

Stock options have a ten-year term, generally become exercisable ratably over four years and provide for
accelerated or continued vesting upon retirement, death, disability, or if there is a change in control. Options
are granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of our common stock on the date of grant. In
addition to the equitable adjustments related to the Forestar and Guaranty spin-offs, the exercise price of all
stock option awards was equitably adjusted by $9.85 per share to reflect the effect of the special cash dividend
paid in December 2007. The adjustment was based on the difference between the closing price on the day
before the stock traded ex-dividend and the opening price on the day the stock began trading ex-dividend. A
summary of our activity for 2007 follows:

Weighted Aggregate
Weighted Average Intrinsic Value
Average Remaining  {Current value
Exercise Price  Contractual less exercise
Shares per Share'™ Term price)
(In thousands) {In years) (In millions)
Qutstanding beginning of 2007 . .. .............. 6012 $15
Granted . ... ... 1,028 25
Exercised . . ... ... . ... e (1,057 21
Forfeited . . . ... ... ... ... . . . . (35) 40
Awards held by Forestar employees at date of spin-off . . (266) 17
Awards held by Guaranmty employees at date of spin-
off .. s (971) 17
Qutstanding year-end 2007 . .. .. ... ... ... ... .. 4,711 15 6 $i4
Exercisable year-end 2007 .. ... ... ... ... .. ... 2,889 12 4 $19

@  The weighted average exercise price per share has been adjusted to reflect the spin-off of Forestar and

Guaranty, and the special cash dividend.

The intrinsic value of options exercised was $29 million in 2007, $31 million in 2006, and $24 million in
2005.

We estimated the fair value of the options granted using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model
and the following assumptions:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005

Expected dividend yield . ....... . ... . ... .. 2.3% 2.4% 2.3%
Expected stock price volatility . ... .. . 228% 251% 28.2%
Risk-free inMerest Fale . . . . . . . . ... e e e 4.9% 4.4% 4.2%
Expected hife of options inyears. . . . ... . ... e 6 6 8
Weighted average estimated fair value of options granted adjusted for spin-offs:
Temple-Inland OpUONS . . . .. . .. L $739 $ 682 § 661
FOrEslar OPUIOMS . . . . v v vt v et e et e e e 3.09 285 2.77
Guaranty OptionS . . . . .. . L e e e 1.99 1.83 .77
Weighted average estimated fair value of options at original grant date. . . .. ... .... ..., §1247  $11.50  $11.15
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The share-based compensation expense on awards held by employees of Temple-Inland will be based on
the original grant date Black-Scholes-Merton value. The expected stock price volatility is based on historical
prices of our common stock for a period corresponding to the expected life of the options with appropriate
consideration given to current conditions and events. The expected life of options is based on historical
experience. We use historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures stratified into two groups based on job

level.

Share-based compensation expense

Share-based compensation expense consists of:

Restricted or performance units-cash

Restricted or performance units-stock

BOCK O ONS . L L ot e e e e e
ORI MalCh . . . . e e e e e

Share-based compensation expense is included in:

oSt O Sa1ES . . L e e e
Bellim g B PEISE. . o it e e e e e e

General and adminisIralive . . .. .ot e e e
Other operating income {(expense)

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

$23 $15 $3

6 1 13
10 12 5
= = _2
339 $38 32

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
{In millions)

517 $6 $5

2 1 1

25 31 20
5 = =

SO

Share-based compensation expense for awards granted to Forestar and Guaranty employees is included in

discontinued operations.

The amount of share-based compensation capitalized was not significant. We contributed treasury stock to

fulfill our 401{k) matching obligation in first quarter 2005.

The fair value of awards granted to retirement-eligible employees and expensed at the date of grant was
$3 million in 2007, primarily related to stock options. The increase in share-based compensation in 2006 is

due to an increase in our share price.

Unrecognized share-based compensation for all awards not vested was $23 million at year-end 2007. It is

likely that this cost will be recognized as expense over the next 3 years.
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Note 10 — Other Operating Income (Expense)

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

TransfOrMAtON COSIS. .« « o« o o e e ot e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e $69 53— §—
Closures and sales of converting and production facilities and sales of non-strategic assets . ... .. ... (35) (4) (50}
T T I (56) (6) {13)
Environmental remediation. . . . . . . ... e e e e ()] (8) 3
Softwood Lumber ABreement . . . .. ... ... — 42 —
Hurricane related costs, and in 2006, related insurance recoveries . .. ... ... ... — 2 (16)
OUHEr CRATEES . . . o o oottt e e e e e et em e e e e e (5) (5) 3)
Equity in earnings of manufacturing joint ventures . . .. ... ... L e - |

$189) $32  3146)

||

We continue our efforts to enhance return on investment by lowering costs, improving operating
efficiencies, and increasing asset utilization. As a result, we continuc to review operations that are unable to
meet return objectives and determine appropriate courses of action. including consolidating and closing
facilities and selling under-performing assets.

In 2007. we permanently ceased production at our Mt. Jewett particleboard manufucturing facility, which
we lease [rom a third party. As a result, we recognized charges of $64 million, including $60 million that
represents the present value of the $77 million of future operating lease payments. This charge does not affect
our continuing obligations under the lease, including paying rent and maintaining the equipment. The present
value of the future payments is included on our balance sheet, of which $3 million is included in current
liabilities and $57 million in other long-term liabilities.

In December 2007, we entered into arbitration in an effort to resolve most of the remaining claims
regarding an alleged viotation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The arbitrator awarded plaintiffs $46 million
on the claims submitted to arbitration. Also in 2007, we reached agreements to settle three of the five cases in
California state court alleging violations of that state’s on duty meal break laws. We recognized $10 million of
liigation expense in 2007 related to this matter.

In 2006, we sold one corrugated packaging converting facility, sold certain non-strategic assets, and
finalized our estimates of losses related to the prior year’s closures. In addition, we increased accruals for
ongoing environmental remediation at the Antioch, California paper mill site closed in connection with our
acquisition of Gaylord in 2002. As a result of these actions, we recognized losses of $12 million. Alsc in
2006, we received $42 million in connection with the Softweed Lumber Agreement between the U.S. and
Canada, and we received $2 million of insurance proceeds related to cost incurred in connection with the 2005
hurricanes.

In 2005. we closed four corrugated packaging facilities, sold our Pembroke, Canada MDF facility, and
effected other workforce reductions. As a result, we recognized losses of $53 million, including $38 million in
impairments and losses on sales, $8 million in severance and retention obligations, and $7 million in other exit
costs. The loss on the sale of the Pembroke MDF facility was $25 million, and other exit costs associated with
the sale were $1 million. Also in 2005, Hurricanes Katrina and Rita adversely affected our operations. In
addition to being forced to curtail production and incur start up costs at several facilities, we recognized losses
and unusual expenses of $16 million, including $7 million in impairments related to our Texas and Louisiana
timberland. $6 million in facility damages, and $3 million in employee and community assistance and other
costs.
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Activity within our accruals for exit costs was:

Beginning  Additions/ Cash Yeur-
of Year Revisions  Payments End

{In milljons)
For the Year 2007

Involuntary employee terminations . . ... ..... .. ... ... ..., .. $1 $— (D $—
Demolition and environmental remediation. . .. .. ... ... ... ..., _ 8 _ @) (8) 1
59 s 59 st
For the Year 2006
Involuntary employee terminations . . . ... ... .. ... ..o $1 $1 $ () $1
Contract termination penalties . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. . ... 2 — (2) -
Demolition and environmental remediation. . . . .. ..... ..., ..... ..., 9 _§(a) (9 _8
512 59 sy 59
For the Year 2005
Involuntary employee terminations . . . ... ... ... . . . . ..., §2 $7 3 (8 51
Contract termination penaltics . . . .. .. ... ... ... . 6 (4) —_
Demolition and environmental remediation. . . ... .. ... ... ... .. ... .. Lﬁ _I (8) _2
$24 54 5(16) §t2

@ In 2007 and 2006, we revised our estimates relating to the demolition and related environmental remedia-

tion costs associated with our exit activities. We added $6 million in 2007 and $8 million in 2006 10 this
accrual by charging other operating expense. We transferred $6 million to Forestar as part of the spin-off.

Note 11 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense on income from continuing operations consist of:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

Current tax provision:
US. Federal. . . ... ... e $278) $ (57 $57
State and Other . . . . . o e e e e e (10 & 3

{288) (65) 54

ULS. Federal. . . . .o e 410) (43) @7
Sate And OheT . . . . . e e e e e e e e e _B5 5 -

(465) _ (38 (4D
INCOME 1AX EXPEASE . . . . ottt e e e 3005 Iy 0§ 7
Income taxes (paid) refunded, net. . . . . ... ... § 3 %88 39

In 2007, we recognized one-time tax benefits of $3 million resulting from changes to the State of Texas
margin tax enacted in May 2007 and another $4 millicn related to the settlement of state tax examinations.

In 2006, we entered into a settlement agreement with the U.S. Government to resolve pending tax
litigation we filed to recover tax benefits promised to us in connection with our savings and loan acquisitions
in 1988. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, we received a $95 million non-taxable cash payment
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for past and future tax benefits that would have been available to us had legislation enacted in 1993 not
eliminated those tax benefits and $4 million of taxable interest income. In connection with the settlement, we
incurred legal fees of $10 million. which were contingent upon the settlement. The net pre-tax gain related to
this settlement was $89 million and is included in other non-operating income {expense).

Also in 2006, the Texas State Legislature enacted a new margin tax to replace the existing franchise tax,
which for us results in a lower overall State of Texas tax rate. As a result, we recognized a one-time, non-cash
benefit of $6 million of which $2 million related to the reduction of previously provided deferred state income
taxes and $4 million related to reducing the valuation allowance for Texas investment credits.

In 2005, we recognized a one-time tax benefit of $16 million as a result of the sale of our Pembroke,
Canada MDF facility.

Income from continuing operations before taxes consist of:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

U S, e e e e e $1.948  $381 34
NNl S, L e e e e e e 7 9 7
$11

I

$1.955 3390

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the effective income tax rate on continuing operations
follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005

Federal SIatUIOry Fie . . . . . . o0t e e e 5% 35% 35%
State, net of federal benefit . . . . ... L e 3 — 5
{171 — — 4)
L1071 T i = 37
9%  35% 83%
Settlement of 1ax Liigation . . .. .. ... .. e e — (8) —
State of Texas tax legislation . . . . .. ... L e — ()
Sale of foreign subsidiary . . . . . ... e — — (147
Effective 1aX Tale. . . . . . . o e e e e e e 39% 6% (61)%
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Significant components of deferred taxes are:

At Year-End
2007 2006

{In millions)

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Property, equipment. and intangible assets . . . . .. ... L e $(350) (330
Timber and timberland. including deferred gainonsale in 2007 . . .. ... ... ... L L oL L (822) (77
U.S. taxes on unremitted TOreign earnings. . . . .. o i e e e (o) (14)
Other . . . e e e e e e _ﬁ_) _ (15

(1.192)  (436)

Deferred Tax Assets:

Alternative minimum Lax credits . . . . . ... L e e e e e e 286 —
Foreign and state net operating loss camryforwards . .. . .. .. e 2 26
Pension and postretirement benefits. . . . . .. . L L e e e 104 140
Employee benefits . . . . ... e e e e 59 33

Accruals not deductible until paid. . . . ... .. e e e e 51 31

Oher . o e e 35 30
Gross deferred 1aK @SS€1S. . . . . . . . . L e e e e e e e e 557 280
Less valuition allowance, . . . . . ... . e e e e e e e 28) 27

529 253
Net Deferred Tax Liability. . . . . .. ... ... e e e $(663) $(183)

The net deferred tax liability is classified on our balance sheet as follows:

At Year-End
2007 2006
(In millions}

Current deferred 1ax assels . . o o e e e e e e e $ 99 % 6l
Non-current deferred tax habilities. . . . . . . ... . L e {(162)  (244)
Net deferred tax liability . . . .. .. e e e $(663) $(183)

The increase in deferred taxes primarily reflects the deferred gain on the sale of our strategic timberland

offset by the resulting payment of alternative minimum taxes. Our alternative minimum tax credit can be

carried forward indefinitely. Our foreign and state net operating loss carryforwards and credits will expire from

2008 through 2027. A valuation allowance is provided for these foreign and state net operating loss
carryforwards and credits.

We or one of our subsidiaries files U.S. federal income tax returns, and income tax returns in various
states and foreign jurisdictions. The Internal Revenue Service has completed the examinations of our tax

returns through 2003, and we are no longer subject to examination by state or foreign tax authorities for years
before 2000. We have various income tax audits in process as of year-end 2007, and we do not expect that the

resolution of these matters will have a significant effect on our earnings or financial position.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

{In miilions)

Balance beginning of 2007 . . . . . . ... e $20
Additions based on tax positions related tothe current year . . . ... .. ... L L oL L il 4
Reductions for tax positions of prior years . . . .. .. ... e (H
Settlements/collections . . . . . . L ... e 3

Balance end of 2007 . . . . . e e e e e e e e e ﬁ

Of the $26 million of unrecognized tax benefits, $13 million would affect our effective tax rate if
recognized. Interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits is included in income tax {expense) benefit,
Unrecognized tax benefits includes approximately 31 million of accrued interest and no penalties related to
years 2007, 2006, and 2005. We do not expect material changes to our tax reserve during the next 12 months.

Note 12 — Litigation

We are involved in various legal proceedings that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of doing
business and believe that adequate reserves have been established for any probable losses. Expenses related to
litigation are included in operating income. We do not believe that the outcome of any of these proceedings
should have a significant adverse effect on our financial position, long-term results of operations, or cash
flows, It is possible, however, that charges related to these matters could be significant to our results or cash
flows in any one accounting period.

We are a defendant in litigation alleging a civil violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. We and the
other defendants have entered into various settlement agreements that resolved the class action portion of this
litigation and the majority of the opt-out claims. Our payments under the settlement agreements have totaled
$59 million of which $46 million was paid in 2007, $5 million in 2005, and $8 million in 2003. The trial for
our one remaining state court ctaim is presently scheduled for first quarter 2008. We believe that we have
established adequate reserves for this case.

We are also defending two cases in California state court alleging violations of that state’s on duty meal
break laws, In 2007, we settled three additional meal break cases. We believe we have established adequate
reserves for these cases.

Note 13 — Commitments and Other Contingencies

We lease manufacturing and other facilities and equipment under operating lease agreements. Future
minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases having a remaining term in excess of one
year are (in millions): 2008 — $38; 2009 — $34; 2010 — $27; 2011 — $22; 2012 — $18; and thereafter —
$83. Total rent expense was $43 million in 2007, $43 million in 2006, and $46 million in 2005. In 2007, we
recorded an impairment charge related to a long-term operating lease. As a result, $60 million of our future
operating lease payments are included on our balance sheet, of which $3 million is in current liabilities and
$57 million is in other long-term liabilities.

We also lease two production facilities under sale-lease back transactions with two municipalities. The
municipalities purchased the production facilities from us in 1992 and 1995 for $188 million, our carrying
value. and we leased the facilities back from the municipalities under lease agreements, which expire in 2022
and 2025. Concurrently, we purchased $188 million of interest-bearing bonds issued by these municipalities.
The bonds have terms that are identical to the lease terms, are secured by payments under the capital lease
obligation, and the municipalities are obligated only to the extent the underlying lease payments are made by
us. The interest rates implicit in the leases are the same as the interest rates on the bonds. As a result, the
present value of the capital lease obligations is $188 million, the same as the principal amount of the bonds.
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Because there is no legal right of offset, the bonds are included in other assets at their cost of $188 million
and the $188 million present value of the sale-lease back obligations are included in other long-term liabilities.
The implicit interest expense on the leases and the interest income on the bonds are included in other non-
operating income {(expense). There is no net effect from these transactions as we are in substance both the
obligor on, and the holder of, the bonds.

At year-end 2007, we had unconditional purchase obligations, principally for sawtimber, pulpwood and
gypsum, aggregating $3.173 billion that will be paid over the next twelve to twenty years. This includes
$1.470 billion related to a 20-year fiber supply agreement for pulpwood and a 12-year fiber supply agreement
for sawtimber. Both of these agreements are subject to extension. These purchase obligations are valued at
year-end 2007 market prices, however, our actual future purchases will be at the then current market price.

In connection with our joint venture operations, we have guaranteed debt service and other obligations
and letters of credit aggregating $70 million at year-end 2007, Generally we would fund these guarantees for
lack of specific performance by the joint ventures, such as non-payment of debt.

Note 14 — Derivative Instruments and Variable Interest Entities

We have used interest rate agreements in the normal course of business to mitigate the risk inherent in
interest rate fluctuations by entering into contracts with major U.S. securities firms. At year-end 2007, we have
two interest rate swap agreements that mature in 2008. The two agreements have a total notional amount of
$50 million.

Under these swap agreements, we pay a fixed interest rate of 6.55 percent and receive a floating interest
rate (4.60 percent at year-end 2007). At year-cnd 2007, the fair value of these interest rate swaps was a
31 million liability which is included in other current liabilities. The interest rate swap agreements were
initially designated as a hedge of interest cash flows anticipated from specific variable-rate borrowings. By
year-end 2007, no portion of the interest rate swap agreements qualified for hedge accounting since we have
repaid virtually all of our variable-rate borrowings. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap
agreements that qualified for hedge accounting increased other comprehensive income by $1 million in 2006
and decreased other comprehensive income $1 million in 2005. There was no materiat hedge ineffectiveness in
2006 or 2005. As a result of the termination of the hedge designation in 2007, we reclassified less than
$1 million from other comprehensive income and charged other non-operating expense. Changes in the fair
value of the interest rate swap agreements that did not qualify for hedge accounting were less than $1 million
of expense in 2007, $1 million of income in 2006, and $2 million of income in 2005, and are included in
other non-operating income (expense).

We also have used, to a limited degree, derivative instruments to mitigate our exposure to changes in
anticipated cash flows from sale of products and manufacturing costs. These derivative contracts had notional
amounts that represent Jess than one percent of our annual sales of linerboard and purchases of recycled fiber.
These instruments expired in 2005. Operating income increased $1 million in 2005 as a result of linerboard
and recycled fiber derivatives, and there was no material hedge ineffectiveness.

In 1999, we entered into an agreement to lease particleboard and medium density fiberboard facilities in
Mt. Jewett, Pennsylvania. The lease is for 20 years and includes fixed price purchase options in 2014 and at
the end of the lease. The option prices were intended to approximate the estimated fair values of the facilities
at those dates and do not represent a guarantee of the facilities’ residual values. After exhaustive efforts, we
were unable to determine whether the lease is with a variable interest entity or if there is a primary beneficiary
because the unrelated third-party lessors will not provide the necessary financial information. We account for
the lease as an operating lease, and at year-end 2007 our financial interest was limited to our obligation to
make the remaining $146 million of contractual lease payments, approximately $12 million per year.
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Note 15 — Other Information

Our allowance for doubtful accounts was $14 million at year-end 2007 and $14 million at year-end 2006.
The provision for doubtful accounts was $3 million in 2007, $3 million in 2006, and $4 million in 2005.
Accounts charged-off, net of recoveries were $3 million in 2007, $3 million in 2006, and $6 million in 2005,

Note 16 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Carrying value and the estimated fair value of our financial instruments are:
At Year-End

2007 2006
Carrying  Fair  Carrying Fair
Value Yalue Value Value

(In millions)
Financial liabilities
Fixed-rate, long-term debt . . ... .. .. ... ... .. L $854 $909 $1.413 $1.483

Differences between carrying value and fair value are primarily due to instruments that provide fixed
interest rates or contain fixed interest rate elements. Inherently, such instruments are subject to fluctuations in
fair value due to subsequent movements in interest rates. We value other financial instruments using quoted
market prices where available or expected cash flows, discounted using rates that represent current rates for
similar instruments. We excluded financial instruments from the table that are either carried at fair value or
have fair values that approximate their carrying amount due to their short-term nature or variable interest rates.

At year-end 2007, we had guaranteed joint venture obligations principally related to fixed-rate debt
instruments totaling $70 million. The estimated fair value of these guarantees is not significant.

Note 17 — Earnings Per Share

We compute earnings per share by dividing income by weighted average shares outstanding using the
following:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
{In millions)

Earnings for basic and diluted earnings per share:

[ncome from continuing Operalions. - . . .. . . . ... $1202 % 287 § 18
Discontinued Operations . . . . .. e 103 181 158
Nel inCOME . . . ..t e e e e 51305 % 468 § 176
Weighted average shares outstanding;
Weighted average shares outstanding —basic. . .. ... ... ... . e 106.0 t08.8 1126
Dilutive effect of equity purchase contracts . ... ... ... . e — — 0.4
Dilutive effect of stock options (NOte 9) . . . . .. oottt e 21 2.0 1.5
Weighted average shares outstanding —diluted. . .. ......... .. ... .. .. ..., 108.1 110.8 114.5

Average common shares outstanding exclude unvested restricted shares. At year-end 2007, options for
1,122,545 shares were antidilutive.

Certain employees of Forestar and Guaranty participated in our employee stock option program.
Following the spin-offs, these employees retained stock option rights associated with our stock. These stock
options will remain a consideration in our dilutive effect of stock options until they are exercised, cancelled or
expire. At year-end 2007, employees of Forestar and Guaranty held options for 1.236,437 shares of Temple-
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Inland stock, of which 551,627 were exercisable. The weighted average exercise price of thesc options at vear-

end 2007 was $17 per share and the weighted average remaining contractual term is 7 years.

Note 18 — Segment Information

At year-end 2007, we have two business segments: corrugated packaging and building products. Timber
and timberiand is no longer an active segment as a result of the sale of our timberlands in fourth quarter 2007.
Corrugated packaging manufactures containerboard and corrugated packaging. Building products manufactures

a variety of building products. Timber and timberland managed our timber resources.

We evaluate performance based on operating income before unallocaled items and income taxes,
Unallocated items represent itemns managed on a company-wide basis and include corporate general and

administrative expense, share-based compensation, other operating and non-operaling income (expense), and
interest expense. Other operating income (expense) includes gain or loss on sale of assets, asset impairments,

and unusual expenses. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the
accounting policy notes to the financial statements. Intersegment sales are recorded at market prices.
Intersegment sales and shared service expense atlocations are netted in costs and expenses.

Ttems Not

Allocated to
Corrugated  Building  Timber and  Segments and

Packaging Products  Timberland Eliminations Total
{In millions)
For the year or at year-end 2007:
Revenues from external custormers. ... . ... ... .. ... ... $3.044 $ 806 576 5 — $3.926
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... .o 142 45 11 16 214
Equity income from joint ventures. . .. .. .............. 4 i — — 5
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes. . . . . .. 287 8 65 1,595 1.955
Total assels. . . . . ... 2301 623 — 3.018 5.942
Investment in equity method investees and joint ventures . . . . . 11 23 — — 34
Goodwill .. .. 236 129 — — 365
Capital expenditures and reforestation . ................ 67 42 13 15 237
For the year or at year-end 2006:
Revenues from external customers. . . ... ..., ..., . ... 52,977 $1.119 $ 89 - 54,185
Depreciation and amertizakion . ... . .. ... . e 153 44 14 14 225
Equity income from joint ventures, . . ... ... P 8 3 — — 11
Income (loss) from continuing operations before laxes. . . . . . . 255 221 63 {149y 390
TOtal @8SE18. . . . .o 2275 638 330 384 3627
Investment in equity method investees and joint ventures . . . . . Lt 22 — - 33
Goodwill ... .. .. . . 236 129 _ — 365
Capital expenditures and reforestation . .. ... ... .. .. ny 46 19 22 204
For the year or at year-end 2005:
Revenues from external customers, . . .. .. ... .......... $2.825 S 808 5120 5 — 53.843
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... .. ... .. ... 160 35 12 It 218
Equity income from joint veatures. . . ... ... ... ... 11 28 _ — 3
Income (loss} from continuing operations before taxes. . . .. .. 120 125 72 (306)™ ]
Total SSELS. . o oot e 2,308 456 333 314 340®
Investment in equity method investees and joint ventures . . . .. 11 36 — -— 47
Goodwill . ... ... . e 236 — — — 236
Cupital expenditures and reforestation . ... ............. 126 43 30 21 220

@ Excludes assets of discontinued operations of $16,847 million in 2006 and $18,219 million in 2005.
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™ Ttems not allocated to segments consists of:
For the Year
2007 2006 2005
{in millions)
General and administrative . . . .. . .. e $om  SQ07 $ On
Share-based compensalion . . . . . . L. (34) (38) 2n
Gainonsaleof timberland . . . ... .. L e 2053 —_— _—
Other operating INCOME (EBXPEASEY . . . v vt e e e e (188) 26 (85
Gther non-operating iNCOME (EXPENSEY . . o oottt et it e e e e e {35) 93 —
Net interest income on financial assets and nonrecourse financial liabilities of special purpose
CMHTIES .« L vttt et e e e e e e e e 10 — —
L0 (1) (123) (109}
$1.595  $(149)  $(306)
Other operating income (expense) applies to:
Cormugated PaCKaging. . . . . oo e S (6 S(2h) 5 (38
Building products . . . . . .. e e e (63) 42 27
Timber and timberland . ... .. e e 2,060 -— —_
Unallocated . . . ... e e (68) 5 (20)
$1.865 § 26 8 (8%)
Please read Note 10 for further information about other operating income {expense).
Revenues and property and equipment based on the location of our operations were:
For the Year
Geographic Information 2007 2006 2005
(In millions)
Revenues from exiernal customers:
United Stales . . . ... .o e e $3,739 34009  $3.660
Mexico . .« 187 176 156
Canada™ . — — 27
$3926 $4.185 33843
At Year-End
2007 2006 2005
{In millions)
Property and equipment:
United States . . . . . oo e e $1.596  §$1.591  $1.582
MIEXICO . . . oL L e e e 36 37 38
Canada'™ .. e — — 1
$1,632 51,628 S$1.621
(a)

In 2005, we sold our MDF facility located in Pembroke. Canada, as a result. we have no significant assets
or ongoing operations in Canada.
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Note 19 — Summary of Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly financial results for 2007 and 2006 have been reclassified to reflect Forestar and
Guaranty as discontinued operations:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter  Quarter Quarter  Quarter
(In millions, except per share)

2007
Total TEVENUES . . . . oo e e e e $1.003 $1.023 $963 $ 937
Gross profil . o . L L e s 144 $ 146 $129 117
Income from continuing operations™. . . .. L e e $ 7 $ 26 3 11 $1,158
Discontinued Operations . . . . ... e e 31 40 25 7
NELIRCOME . L L o i e e e e e e e e 5 138 5 66 3 36 $1.165
Eamings per sharc®™
Basic:
Income from continuing OPerations. . . . . .. ... .. Ll $ 0.07 $ 024 30.11 $10.88
Discontinued OpPerations . . . . .. ... ... ... 0.29 0.39 (.23 0.08
NELIMCOME . . o o e e e e e e e e e $ 0.36 $ 063 $0.34 $10.96
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations. . . . ... ... ... Lo § 0.07 $024 0.1 $10.69
Discontinued operations . . . ... ... e e 0.28 0.38 (.22 0.07
NEeLIICOIME . . . o et e e e e $ 0.35 $ 0.62 $0.33 $10.76
(a)

Income from continuing operations includes the following items:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

{Tn millions}

Gainon sale of timberland .. ..o o §— 3— $— $2,053
Other operating income {cxpense):
Transformation costs (advisory and legal fees. change of control and employee
related) . ... 3@ 5 5 5 (59)
Closures and sales of converting and production fucilities and sales of non-strategic
T — 8 (N (62)
LIUGALON . . o ot e e s (1o — —_ (46)
Environmental remediation. . . . . . L L e — — — (9
OHheT . L e e — _5) _) 9
S S S® 5 U6
Other non-operating income (expense):
Charges related 1o early repayment of debt . .. ... ... ... .. oo $— $— $— 5 4o
Interest and other INCOME. . . ... 0o i e — 1 1 3
§— 31 $1 $ (3D

® The sum of earnings per share for the quarters does not equal earnings per share for the year due to the
use of average shares outstanding for each period.
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2006

TOtl FEVENUEE . L L e e e e
Gross profit . . . . ... e

(a)h)

Income from continuing Operations’™ " . . . L. e e e

Discontinued operations . . ... ... .. ... ...

b}

Net incomet™ . . ..

Earnings per share®®
Basic:
)

Income from continuing operations™ . .. .. ... L L

Discontinued Operations . . . . .. v v it e e

(o)

Nt ICOME . L e e e e e e e

Diluted:

Income from continving operations™ . . ... ...

Discontinued operations . . .. .. ... ... ... L. oL

by

Netincome™ . . L.

(a}

Other operating income (expense);

Closures and sales of convening and production facilities and sales of non-strategic
T

LIGEZATION . o . o0t i e st e e e e
Environmental remediation. . . . ... ... e e e
Softwood Lumber Agreement . . . . ... ..
Hurricane related InSURNCE TECOVEIES . . . . . . o vttt et e e e e e e

Other non-operating income (expense}:

Tax litigation selllement . . ... .. . .. e
Interest and other income. . . . . . ... L L e

Income from continuing operations includes the following items:

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third

Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

{In millions, except per share)

$1.043 $1.090 51.05! $1.001
S 155 $ 203 $ 190 $ 161
$ 29 $ 148 $ 49 $ 6l
50 43 46 42
L) $ 19] $ 95 $ 103
$ 0.26 $ 1.35 $ 045 $ 059
045 0.39 042 0.40
$ 071 $1.74 $ 087 $ 099
$ 0.26 $ 1.32 3044 $ 0.57
0.44 0.38 0.42 0.39
$ 070 $ 170 $ 0.86 $ 0,96
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter
(In millions)
$— (1) $4 $1
- - 4) @
— — — (8}
—_ —_ — 42
— — —~ 2
= s 3@ s
5— 389 $— $—
| _2 L) =
s1o® sl

™ 2006 quarters have been recast for the retrospective application of FASB Staff Position No. AUG AIR — 1

Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance.
(c}

use of average shares outstanding for each period.

Note 20 — Discontinued Operations

The sum of earnings per share for the quarters does not equal earnings per share for the year due to the

On December 28, 2007, we spun off to our shareholders in tax-free distributions, our real estate segment
and our financial services segment, which included certain real estate and minerals activities in our timber and

timberland segment.
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As a result, we report the assets and liabilities and results of operations of these segments as discontinued
operations. Expense allocated to these discontinued operations included interest expense of $7 million in 2007,
$4 million in 2006, and none in 2005 and sharc-based compensation expense of $7 million in 2007, $8 million
in 2006, and $5 million in 2005.

In addition, on August 31, 2007 we sold the previously acquired chemicul operations. We received cash
proceeds of $1 million and recognized a pre-tax loss of $6 million on the sale. Assets of this operation were
previously reporied as assets held-for-sale. We have ongoing environmental remediation activities related to
this operation for which we have established a reserve. Any changes to our estimate of cost will impact
current operations.

A summary of the assets and liabilities of discontinued operations at year-end 2006 follows:

Chemical
Real Financial  Operations
Estate  Services and Other Total
{In millions)

Cuash and cash equivalents . . ... ... .. L $ 3 § 372 $5 § 380
Loans and leans held forsale . . ... ... ... . .. L. L —_ 9.640 — 9.640
SCUrEES . . . o e e — 5.644 — 5.644
Real estale . . .. ..o e e 564 — — 564
Property and equipment . . . ... ... e 2 214 7 223
Other AS8eLS. L . oo it e e 3 357 _8 396
Total ASSEIS . . oot e e $600 $16.227 $20 $16.847
DePositS . . e e §— $ 9,486 5— $ 9486
Debt . e 44 5177 — 5221
Other labilitles . . .. .. . e 43 87 7 137
Subordinated notes payable o trust . .. .. Lo L L o — 142 — 142
Preferred stock issued by subsidiaries .. . ... oL Lo oL L = 305 = 305
Totab Liabilities. . .o o e $ 87 315,197 $7 $15.29]

1

A summary of earnings from our discontinued operations follows:

For the Year
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)

Real estate income before 1Xes . . . . . .. L e e e $41 § 8 5359
Financial services income belore 1axes . . . .. L. L. L e 138 204 1952
Chemical operations and other™ . (13) 2) |
Income from discontinued operations before taxes . .. ... .. L L e 166 285 252
INCOME 18X EXPEISE . . . L it ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e e 63y  (104) 94
Discontinued operalions. . . .. . L. e SH3 381 $158

@ 2007 includes a $6 million charge for environmental remediation.

Note 21 — Subsequent Events

On February 1, 2008, cur Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share payable on
March 14, 2008.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

We have had no changes in or disagreements with our independent registered public accounting firm to
report.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Disclosure controls and procedures

Our management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (or the Exchange Act))
as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation. our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective in recording. processing. summarizing and reporting, on a timely basis. information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act and are effective
in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b} Intermal control over financial reporting

Management’s report on internal control over financial reperting is included in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) in fourth quarter 2007 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect. our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None,
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Set forth below is certain information about the members of our Board of Directors:

Name ﬁ
Doyle R. Simons. . ................ 44
Afsaneh M. Beschloss . . ............ 52
Dr. Donald M. Carlton. . ............ 70
CassandraC. Carr . ................ 63
E. Linn Draper, Jr. ................ 66
Larry R, Faulkner ......... ... ... 62
James T. Hackett. . ................ 54
Jeffrey M. Heller. ................. 68
J. Patrick Maley, HI................ 46
W, AllenReed. ................... 60
Richard M. Smith . ................ 62
Arthur Temple 1T ... .............. 66
Larry E-Temple ............ ... ... 72

Year First
Elected to

the Board

2007
2002
2003
2004
2004
2005
2000

2004
2007

2000

2006
1983

1991

Principal Occupation

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Temple-Inland Inc.

President and Chief Executive Officer of The
Rock Creek Group

Former Prestdent and Chief Executive Officer of
Radian International LLC

Senior Advisor, Public Strategies, Inc,

Former Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of American Electric Power
Company, Inc.

President of Houston Endowment [nc.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Anadarko Petroleum Corporation
Vice Chairman of Electronic Data Systems, inc.
President and Chief Operating Officer of
Temple-Inland Inc.

Former Chairman of the Board of General
Motors Asset Management Corporation
Chairman of Newsweek

Chairman of the Board of First Bank & Trust,
East Texas and the T.L.L. Temple Foundation
Attorney-at-law

The remaining information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from our definitive
proxy statement, involving the election of directors, 10 be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the SEC nat
later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K (or Definitive Proxy Statement).
Certain information required by this item concerning executive officers is included in Part I of this report,

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement.
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Item 2. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Information at year-end 2007 about our compensation plans under which our Common Stock may be
issued follows:

(c)
Number of Securities
(a) (b) Remaining Availahle
Number of Securitics Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Under Equity
Exercise of Qutstanding  Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Options, Warrants and Warrants and {Excluding Securities
Plan Category Rights Rights Reflected in Column(a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders . ................. 7,108,174 $15 None
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders . . ... ......... .. None None None
Total ... ... L 7,108,174 315 None

The remaining information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our Definitive Proxy
Statement.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement,

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement.

PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
{a) Documents Filed as Part of Report.
1. Financial Statements
Our consolidated financial statements are included in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statemenr Schedules

All schedules are omitted as the required information is either inapplicable or the information is presented
in our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in liem § above,

3. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Exhibit

3.0l  — Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007, and filed with the Commission on August 7, 2007)

302 — Amended and Reswted Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30. 2007, and filed with the Commission on August 7, 2007)

401  — Form of Specimen Common Stock Centificate of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4,03 to registration
statement on Form §-8 (Reg. No. 33-27286) filed by the Company with the Commission on March 2, 1989)

4.02  —Indenture dated as of September 1, 1986, between the Registrant and Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.

(successor lo Chemical Bank), as Trustee (or Senior Notes Indenture) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to
registration statement on Form 5-1 (Reg. No. 33-8362) filed by the Company with the Commission on August 29,
1986)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit
4.03 — First Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Notes indenture. dated as of April 15, 1988. between the Company and
Bank of New York Trust Company. N.A. (successor 10 The Chase Manhattan Bank and Chemical Bank). as Trustee
(incorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 4.02 to registration statement on Form S-3. Registration No. 33-20431. filed
with the Commission on March 2, 1988)

404 - Second Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Notes Indenture. dated as of December 27. 1990, between the
Company and Bank of New York Trust Company. N.A. (successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank and Chemical
Bank), as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.03 to Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on
December 27, 1990)

4.05 — Third Supplemental Indenture 1o the Senior Notes Indenture, dated as of May 9, 1991, between the Company and
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank and Chemical Bank). as Trustee
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 1o Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29. 1991, filed with the Commission
on August 7, 1991)

4.06 — Certificate of Designation. Preferences and Rights of Series A Junior Paricipating Preferred Stock. daied
February 16, 1989 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.04 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31. 1988, and filed with the Commission on March 21, 1989)

407 — Rights Agreement, dated February 20, 1999. between the Company and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. {f/k/a
First Chicago Trust Company of New York). as Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit { 10 the
Company’s registration statement on Form 8A filed with the Commission on February 19, 1999}

4.08 — Form of Fixed-rate Medium Term Note, Series F, of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.05 1o the
Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 3. 1998)

4.09 — Form of 7.875% Senior Notes due 2012 of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company s
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 3, 2002)

4.10 — Form of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2016 of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 6, 2005)

4.11 = Form of 6.625% Senior Notes due 2018 of the Company (incorperated by reference (o Exhibit 4.2 1o the Company’s
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 6. 2005)

10.01 —-Credit Agreement dated July 28, 2005, with Bank of America, N.A.. as administrative agent and 1/C Issuer:
Cilibank. N.A. and The Toronto Dominion Bank, as co-syndication agents; BNP Paribas and The Bank Of Nova
Scotia, as co-documentation agents; Banc of America Securities LLC and Citigroup Global Markets Inc.. as joint
lead arrangers and joint book managers: and the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 1, 2005)

10.02* — Temple-Inland Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement
in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held May 6, 1994, and filed with the Commission on
March 21, 1994}

10.03* — First amendment to Temple-Inland Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, and filed with the Commission en November 7.
2006)

10.04* — Temple-Inland Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan {incorporated by reference to the Company’'s Definitive Proxy Statement
in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held May 2, 1997, and filed with the Commission on
March 17, 1997). as amended May 7. 1999 {(incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement
in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held May 7, 1999, and filed with the Commission on
March 26, 1999)

[0.05* — First amendment to Temple-Inland Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 1o the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30. 2006, and filed with the Commission on November 7.
2006)

10.06%* — Temple-Inland Inc. 1997 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Definitive Proxy
Statement in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held May 2, 1997, and filed with the Commission
on March 17, 1997)

10.07* — Temple-Inland Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy
statement in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held May 4, 2001, and filed with the Commission
on March 23, 2001)
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

10.08* — First amendment to Temple-Inland Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporited by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, and filed with the Commission on November 7.
2006)

10.09* — Temple-Inland Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan {incorporated by reference to Appendix A of the Company’s definitive
proxy statement dated March 31, 2003, and prepared in connection with the annual meeting of stockholders held
May 2. 2003)

10.10% — First amendment to Temple-Inland Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, and filed with the Commission on November 7,
2006}

10.11* —— Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement issued pursuant to the Temple-Inland Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended January 3. 2004. and
filed with the Commission on February 23, 2004)

10.12* — Revised Form of Performance Stock Units Agreement issued pursuant to the Temple-Inland Inc. 2003 Stock
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.08 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005, and filed with the commission on March &, 2006}

10.13* — Revised Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement issued pursuant to the Temple-Inland Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.09 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2005. and filed with the commission on March 8, 2006)

10.14* — Revised Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors issued pursuant to the Temple-
Inland Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005. and filed with the commission on March 8. 2006)

10.15% —— Amendment to outstanding Temple-Inland Option Agreements and Restricied Stock Agreements (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 31,
2007)

10.16* — Amended and restated Temple-Inland Nonqualified Defeired Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commisston on December 31, 2007)

10.17* — Amended and restated Temple-Inland Directors’ Fee Deferral Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 31, 2007)

10.18* — Amended and restated Temple-Inland Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 31, 2007)

10.19* — Employment Agreement between the company and Doyle R, Simons. dated August 9. 2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 10,
2007)

10.20* — Change in Control Agreement dated June 1. 2003, between the Company and J. Patrick Maley HI (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form $0-Q for the quarter ended September 28. 2003. and filed with the
Commission on November 12, 2003)

10.21* — Change in Control Agreement dated October 2. 2000, between the Company and Jack C. Sweeny {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.29 1o the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 30, 2000. and filed with the
Commission on March 5, 2001)

10.22% -— Change in Control Agreement dated October 2, 2000, between the Company and Randall D. Levy (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 30. 2000, and filed with the
Commission on March 5, 2001)

10.23 — Loan Agreement, dated December 3, 2007, by and among TIN Land Financing, LLC. Citibank, N.A., Citicorp
North America. Inc.. as Agent. and the other Lenders named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 4, 2007)

10.24 — Loun Agreement, dated December 3, 2007, by and among TIN Timber Financing, LLC, Citibank. N.A., Citicorp
North America. Inc., as Ageni. and the other Lenders named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 4, 2007)

10.25 — Pulpwood Supply Agreement. dated October 31, 2007, by and between TIN Inc. and CPT LOGCO, LLC (1)(2}
10.26 — Sawtimber Supply Agreement, dated October 31, 2007, by and between TIN Inc. and CPT LOGCO, LLC (1){2)
10.27* — Temple-Inland Inc, 2008 Incentive Plan (1) (3) .
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

10.28% — Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, as revised in 2008, issued pursuant 1o the Temple-Inland Inc. 2003
Stack Incentive Plan (1)

10.29* — Form of Restricted Stock Units Agreement issued pursuant to the Temple-Inland [nc, 2008 incentive Plan (1}

21 — Subsidiaries of the Company (1)

23 — Consent of Emnst & Young LLP (1)

31.1  —Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)

312 — Cenification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)}

32,1  — Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)

322  — Cenification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)

*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(1) Filed herewith

(2) Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The omissions have been indicated with asterisks (“***”), and the
omitted text has been filed separately with the Commission.

(3) To be submitted for shareholder approval at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

TEMPLE-INLAND INC.
(Registrant)

By: /sf DovyLe R. Simons

Doyle R. Simons
Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 25, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been
signied below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Signature Capacity Date
/st DovLE R. StmoNs Director, Chairman of the Board, February 25, 2008
Doyle R. Simons and Chief Executive Officer
fs/ Ranparl D, Levy Chief Financial Officer February 25, 2008

Randall D. Levy

/s{  Troy L. HesTer Principal Accounting Officer February 25, 2008
Troy L. Hester

s/ AFSANEH M. BESCHLOSS Director February 25, 2008
Afsaneh M. Beschloss

/s/  Donalb M. CarLTON Director February 25, 2008
Donald M. Cariton

/5! Cassanpra C. Carr Director February 25, 2008
Cassandra C. Carr

/s E. LinN DraPER, JR. Director February 25, 2008
E. Linn Draper, Jr.

/s/  Larry R. FAULKNER Director February 25, 2008

Larry R. Faulkner

fs! James T. Hackert Director February 23, 2008

James T. Hackett

Is/ Jerrrey M. HELLER Director February 25, 2008

leffrey M. Heller
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Signature

/s/ 1. Patrick MaLey I

J. Patrick Maley HI

fs{ W. ALLEN REED

Ist

W. Allen Reed

Ricnarp M. SMITH

s/

Richard M. Smith

ARrTHUR TeEMPLE II]

/s/

Arthur Temple 111

Larry E. TEMPLE

Larry E. Temple
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Capacity

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

February 25. 2008

February 25. 2008

February 25, 2008

February 25, 2008

February 25, 2008




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)

I. Doyle R. Simons. certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Temple-Intand Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge. the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report:

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules |3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchunge Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries. is made known to us by others within those entities.
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting. or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:

¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls und procedures. as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evalvation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting: and

. 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed. based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record.,
process, summarize and report financial information: and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material. that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

fs! Doyle R. Simons

Doyle R. Simons
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 25, 2008



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)

I, Randall D. Levy, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Temple-Inland Inc.;

2. Based on my knowiedge, this report does not contain any untrue stalement of a material fact or omit
1o state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for. the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)} and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities.
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal conirol over tinancial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invelves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal contrel over financial reporting.

{s/  Randall D. Levy

Randall D. Levy
Chief Financial Officer

Date; February 25, 2008
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Temple-Inland Shareholder Information

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
250 Royall Street

Canton, MA 02021

781.575.2879

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP
Austin, Texas

ANNUAL MEETING
The annual meeting of shareholders of Temple-Inland will be held at 303 South Temple Drive,
Diboll, Texas, on Friday, May 2, 2008, at 9:00 a.m. CD'T.

STOCK LISTING
Temple-Inland’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
ticker symbol TIN.

As of December 29, 2007, there were 4,786 shareholders of record of the Companv’s
common stock.

CEOQ ANNUAL CERTIFICATION TO THE NYSE

As required by the rules of the NYSE, on May 7 2007, Kenaneth M. Jastrow I1, Chairman
and CEO of Temple-Inland, filed a written affirmation with the NYSE certifying that he was
not aware of any violation by the Company of any of the corporate governance listing
standards of the NYSE.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

Temple-Inland offers its shareholders a convenient and economical way to increase their
investment in the Company’s common stock through the purchase of additional shares
with quarterly dividends and optional cash payments. Under the Temple-Inland Dividend
Reinvestment Plan, administered by Computershare Trust Company, N.A., Temple-Inland
pays the brokerage fees and service charges, and the shareholder receives the benefit of larger
quantity purchases and optional free custodial services. For more information about the
plan, contact Computershare Trust Company, N.A., Dividend Reinvestment Plans,

250 Royall Street, Canton, MA 02021, 781.575.2879.

COMPANY WEB SITE

Additional informatien regarding Temple-Inland, including the annual repart on
Form 10-K and other periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
may be obtained from Temple-Inland’s home page on the Internet, the address of which

is http:/fwww.templeinland.com.

MAILING ADDRESS
Temple-Inland Inc.
P.O. Box 40

Austin, Texas 78767
512.434.5800

Temple-Infand Inc.
2007 Board Members

Afsaneh M. Beschloss
President and Chief Executive Officer
of The Rock Creek Group

Donald M. Carlton
Former President and Chief Executive
Otficer of Radian International LLC

Cassandra C. Carv
Senior Advisor, Public Strategies, Inc.

E. Linn Draper, Jr.

Former Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of American
Electric Power Company, Inc.

Larry R. Faulkner
President of Housten Endowment, Inc.

Jamas T. Hackett
Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Otficer of Anadarko Petroleum Corporation

Jeffrey M. Heller
Vice Chairman of Electronic Data
Systems, Inc.

J. Patrick Maley Itl
President and Chiet Operating Officer
of Temnple-Inland Inc.

W. Allen Reed
Former Chairman of General Motors
Asset Management Corporation

Doyle R. Simons
Chairman and Chief Executive Dfficer
of Temple-Inland inc.

Richard M. Smith
Chairman of Newsweek

Arthur Temple )i
Chairman of the Board of First Bank & Trust,
East Texas and T.L.L. Temple Foundation

Larry E. Temple
Attorney-at-law






